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At AMI Semiconductor, 2005 was a year of transition — integrating acquired
assets, moving facilities and tackling engineering challenges. But 2005 was
also a banner year for design wins, as we grew potential three-year revenue

from total design wins by more than g percent over the previous year.




a letter from our CEO

to our shereholders

For AMIS Holdings, Inc., 2005 was a
transition year in many ways and it
marked the second year with annual
revenues in excess of $500 million.
Despite some challenges during the
year we continued enhancing our core
competencies, growing our design
pipeline, and serving the automotive,

medical and industrial end markets.

Enhanced Core Competencies

In 2005 we continued to strengthen our
core competencies, which include smart
power, low power signal processing,
differentiated products and services,
and quality. As a result, we introduced a
number of new products and capabilities
throughout the year, many of which lead
the industry. Examples include smart
power with flash memory, a number of
new standard products and a refreshed
midrange digital ASIC product line. In
addition, we enhanced our engineering
support to engage customers earlier
in the development process to help
augment their in-house design teams.
This  has
process and created more competitive

strengthened the design

and innovative products.

Strong Design Pipeline

Our design pipeline remains strong and
on a full-year basis we grew potential
3-year revenue from total design wins
by over nine percent compared to
the previous year. During the year we
focused our energy on large designs that
we believe will yield a higher return on
engineering investment. In addition, in
2005 we increased our focus on getting
those designs into production. In fact,
during 2006 we expect to increase
production

new  design revenue

significantly; and we expect this

to continue to increase over time.

Furthermore, we have engineering
capacity available and continue to
capture design wins with world-class

customers in attractive markets.

Strategic End Markets

The markets we sell to continue to show
healthy growth. In fact, we set new
revenue records in both the medical and
defense end markets, growing each by
38 percent in 2005. We are strategically
positioned to take advantage of
opportunities in our target markets of

automotive, medical and industrial.

Automotive: We remain optimistic about
the long-term outlook for the autemotive
end market due to high barriers to entry,
long customer relationships and design
cycles, and the ever-increasing level of
semiconductor content in automotive
applications. In addition, we have the
right technology and capabilities within
our core competencies to provide
solutions for these applications.

Medical: We are very excited about the
long-term opportunities in the medical
end market and consider this our highest
potential growth market over the next
few years, primarily due to our strategic
core competencies in the implantable
medical devices, audiology, and imaging
sub segments. This will allow us to
capitalize on the trend toward the
increased use of silicon in therapeutics
and diagnostics.

Industrial: As semiconductor content
continues to increase in traditional and
non-traditional industrial applications
we have excellent potential to leverage
our core competencies for long-term

growth in this segment.




Revenue Performance

During 2005 we saw significant revenue
declines in many of our older products
in the 1990s,
primarily driven by & sharp decrease

that were designed

in legacy communications devices and
some digital communications products,
as well as a larger than normal roll-off
of some of our older automotive and
industrial products. While we had a
considerable number of new products
entering production in 2005, revenue
from these new products did not
compensate for the revenue attrition
from old product roll-offs, In 2006, we
expect new product introductions to
exceed old product roll-off as we return
to more historical levels.

Operations

In 2005 we initiated and substantially

completed a number of necessary
actions to streamline our manufacturing
operations. This included the substantial
completion of the move and consolidation
of our test and sort operations in Manila,
the Philippines, as well as the recently
initiated consolidation of our 4” and 6"
fabs in Belgium — a process we expect

to be complete in the first half of 2007.

In addition, we invested further in our
information systems and processes to
help improve efficiency and visibility
into our operations. While taking these
actions drove some incremental costs
in 2005, we believe they will be very
beneficial in the long run.

Acquisitions

The acquisition of Dspfactory in late 2004
and the subsequent integration during
2005 exceeded our expectations and
increased our market leadership position
in the medical end market. Financial
performance has been excellent and the
contribution of engineering talent has
been outstanding. In fact, we are now
applying our digital signal processing
(DSP) core to other medical applications
as well as applications in other markets.

The acquisition of the semiconductor
that
completed in September 2005 continues

business of  Flextronics we
to look promising, with many synergies in
our mixed signal and digital businesses,
and is already driving financial and other
benefits. Going forward, | am optimistic
about the added market depth and

product breadth that this group brings.

Key Financial Metrics

Ourfinancial performance duringthe year
was disappointing; however, the results
reflect the operational and financial
difficulties that we faced throughout
the year. Fuil year revenues for 2005
were down in total and organically due
primarily to a near 20 percent attrition
of old products. Gross margin for 2005
declined 50 basis points due primarily
to lower fixed cost absorption and
inefficiencies related to the relocation of
our test facility and transfer of our sort
operations. GAAP net income for 2005
was $20.6 million or $0.23 per diluted
share, and non-GAAP net income for
2005 was $52.9 million or $0.60 per
diluted share. (Please refer to page 90
in the attached financial information for
reconciliations between GAAP and non-
GAAP measures.)

Despite the challenging results, | am
very pleased with our continued success
in generating cash. Operating cash flow
during 2005 was nearly $60 million,
despite being negatively impacted by
our debt refinancing in the first quarter.
In fact, we generated record quarterly
operating cash flow of $42 million during
the fourth quarter.




2006 Goals

As | stated earlier, our 2005 financial
results did not meet expectations, so
we have taken a number of actions to
drive better results in 2006 and beyond.
Looking ahead, our key objectives for
2006 include:

¢ Revenue growth, both organic and
in total;

¢ Increased market share in our target
end markets;

* Increased standard products offering
— moving from under 10 percent of
revenue from standard products in
2005 toward our long-term target of
20 percent of revenue;

* Improve execution both in operations
and in our ability to convert designs to
production quickly;

¢ Continue strong design win progress;
and

* Enhance our already high customer
satisfaction rating.

The two key areas of focus will be
revenue growth and better execution,

and three things will drive both: an
increased focus on on-time transfer of
designs to production; a focus on higher
velocity designs to generate revenue
more quickly; and executing on our
standard products strategy to gain the
added revenue and margin leverage
that standard products
addition,

actions to improve our cost structure,

provide. In
we will continue to take
and we will invest further in quality and
yield improvement to decrease scrap,
increase yields, and develop leaner
business processes.

We fully understand the operational
and financial challenges of 2005 and
are taking focused steps to reduce
inefficiencies and improve execution
going forward. According to our market
indicators, 2006 will be a good year for
the semiconductor industry and | believe
we can grow with our target markets

and provide solid financial performance.

In closing | would like to express my

appreciation to our growing and

dedicated customer base, our talented

and innovative employees, and

the continued
support and contributions toward our

our shareholders for

mutual success.

Best Regards,

W@km}

Christine King

President and Chief Executive Officer




“The markets we sell to continue to show healthy growth. In

fact, we set new revenue records in both the medical and

defense end markets, growing each by 38 percent in 2005.”

When you build a company on superior quality and ongoing technological advances,
people tend to notice. In 2005, key manufacturers noticed AMI Semiconductor’s
powerfu! line-up of products and services and they tapped us to include our
solutions in their products — many on a repeat basis. This continued commitment to
our products and services and the strength in our design pipeline are a testament to
the confidence that some of the world's most revered manufacturers have placed in
AMIS to power and control the electronics that run their products.

The fact is, AMIS solutions can be found in nearly every facet of today's electronics-driven
applications. The majority of our products are utilized in three primary application areas:
automotive, medical and industrial.




Driving innovation in today’s automobiles

AMIS

electronics for automotive equipment

is a leading-edge supplier of

makers worldwide. Our system-on-chip
(SOC) approach is fast becoming the
standard-bearer of automotive design
for applications such as power train
electronics, motor drivers, compassing,
gyro-stabilization, air bag sensors, and
center applications for fuel, battery and
tire pressure monitoring.

AMIS stepper motor controller applica-
tion specific standard products (ASSP’s)

— the world’s smallest — are the brains
behind multiple vehicle functions, from
headlight controls that assist with visibility
around corners, to individual tempera-
ture controls that keep passengers com-
fortable, to the rear-view cameras that
can save the life of an errant toddler.

You'll find our sensor interfaces inside
vehicle braking and stability control
systems, brake-by-wire and drive-by-wire
systems, and gas emission regulation. And
our high-voltage interface designs help

prevent power surges that can damage
vehicle electronics.

Our

remote keyless entry and tire pressure

transceivers are tucked inside
monitoring systems, and our single-chip
controller area network (CAN) ASSP’s
the

operation to network vehicle systems,

deliver high-speed/low-power

such as engine management units,
as well as other electronics such as
power windows, climate control and

vehicle lighting.

Just what the doctor ordered

AMI
advance the cutting edge of medical

Semiconductor  continues  to
electronics. Emphasizing quality, con-
flexibility,
our growing presence in medical

venience, and real-time
data,
products

able devices) and our recent design wins

(including several implant-

reflect the low-power technologies that
are currently and will continue to contrib-
ute to a healthier society. Among them:
increasingly smaller and more powerful
wireless hearing aids, with specific focus
on patients who require two. AMIS ultra
low power DSP and wireless technologies
are facilitating binaural signal processing
by utilizing signals received from both

hearing aids to enable a significantly

enhanced hearing experience.

Meanwhile, AMI Semiconductor’s new
wireless ASIC SOC solution — which
combines ultra-low power, small size, and
optimal cost — is being used in portable
medical devices, such as implantable
glucose monitoring systems and body
temperature sensors. AMIS delivers two
key functionalities to these devices: long
battery life and absence of interference
with other electronics.

Another sterling example of AMIS medi-
cal technology is our recently introduced

electronic stethoscope reference design
that allows OEMs to design products that
will enable doctors to record and play back
(at full or half-speed) patients’ heartbeats,
improving accuracy in treating heart
disease. And speaking of heartbeats,
AMIS is designing mixed-signal semicon-
ductors that will power next-generation
implantable pacemakers.

Also on the leading edge of medical
imaging technology are AMIS imaging
devices. These encompass not only X-rays
and ultrasound tests, but also the MRl and
CT scans that deliver three-dimensional
imaging with faster image capture times.




The (atest word in industrial automation

In a continued push to expand our
standard  products
capitalizing on the shift in process
automation from analog to digital bus

offerings, we're

communication. In 2005, AMIS achieved
design wins for such diverse applications
as next-generation scanners and barcode
sensors and

readers, remote power

metering and networking.

These wins result from a continuing
string of new technologies, such as AMI
stepper

Semiconductor’s  single-chip

motor driver-controller ASSP's, deployed
in XY, Z tables, factory robotics, home
and warehouse climate control, and
process control systems, as well as security
and surveillance systems that require

camera positioning.

“Single chip” is also the operative term in
our CAN repeaters, which are important
elements in standard industrial busses
that cover long physical distances —
elevators and escalators, for example.
CAN technology is also used on the

factory floor, interconnecting machines,
process control units, and production
such as

sub-systems in  industries

printing, textiles, and injection molding.
Another notable AMIS achievement
is our flash-embedded SmartPower
technology, which delivers true SOC
designs that withstand a wide range
of temperature extremes that occur in
demanding environments.




Teaming with our clients

How does AMIS consistently deliver the solutions that our customers need? Simple:
we ask them. And we tailor our solutions to meet their particular market require-
ments. In military and aerospace applications, for example, this means partnering
with our clients’ engineering teams on milestone-driven development plans. And in
communications applications, it means having chip architects and system architects
who work with customer teams to identify opportunities and control costs.

Looking forward...

2005 was a banner year for AMIS design wins. But those victories will only matter
if they are quickly converted to production, revenue and, ultimately, success in the
marketplace. That is the AMIS focus for 2006. We will capitalize on our momentum
by transforming our designs into products that contribute revenue.

We are confident we are positioned to achieve this goal. As a leader in analog and
mixed-signal technology design, we have the technologies, we have the quality,
and we have the talent. The future is ours.

AMI/
Ami ssu:coNDuchs.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking siatements. In some cases, you can
identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “‘expects,” “plans,’
“target,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continues” or the negative of these
terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions and speak only as of the
date of this report. These forward-looking statements are based largely on our current expectations and are
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from these forward-
looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include the availability of
required capacity at our key subcontractors, manufacturing underutilization, changes in the conditions
affecting our target markets, fluctuations in customer demand, raw material costs, exchange rates, timing
and success of new products, competitive conditions in the semiconductor indusiry risks associated with
international operations, general economic and political uncertainty, conditions in the semiconductor
industry, the other factors identified under “Risk Factor” in Item iA and other risks and uncertainties
indicated from time to time in our filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). In
light of these risks and uncertainties, there can be no assurance that the matters referred to in the forward-
looking statements contained in this annual report will in fact occur. We do not intend to publicly release
any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or
to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated evenis.

>

s <e

Overview

We are a leader in the design and manufacture of customer specific integrated analog mixed signal
semiconductor products. We focus on the automotive, medical and industrial markets, which have many
products with significant real world, or analog, interface requirements. Integrated mixed signal
semiconductor products are an essential part of any electronic system that interacts with the real world.
Integrated mixed signal products interpret and manage analog inputs, such as light, heat, pressure, power
and radio waves, so that these inputs can be processed by digital control circuitry and used to drive
devices, such as motor controllers or industrial switches, or to communicate with an external system.
Integrated mixed signal products combine analog and digital semiconductor functionality on a single
integrated circuit to perform complex functions, such as monitoring human heart rates, as well as simpler
tasks, such as determining air pressure in tire pressure gauges. We focus on developing our integrated
mixed signal semiconductor products based on our customers’ specifications and requirements. We work

- closely with our customers to integrate their industry-specific requirements into a custom semiconductor
product that they use to differentiate their products in the marketplace. We add value to our customers’
products by providing significant mixed signal design expertise, an ¢xtensive analog and mixed signal
intellectual property portfolio and systems-level design expertise. We support our customers’ long product
lifecycles and manufacturing requirements with our proven proprietary process technologies and our
flexible manufacturing model.

We are also a leader in providing low cost solutions for our customers who wish to convert the field
programmable gate arrays, or FPGAs, in their systems to a structured digital solution. Customers often
would like to obtain the higher performance and lower price of products customized for their system, but
instead settle, at least initially, for higher priced FPGAs that enable faster time-to-market. Once these
products reach production volumes, however, conversion to a custom product for the balance of the
product life can reduce costs considerably while improving performance. We offer customers our
proprietary architecture, processes and manufacturing expertise to enable higher performance and efficiency
in both the conversion process and the final structured digital product. We focus on conversion
opportunities in the mid-range of volume requirements with intermediate degrees of design complexity.
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The Company and History

We are a holding company and conduct all our business operations through AMI Semiconductor, Inc.,
our wholly owned subsidiary, and its subsidiaries. We were incorporated in Delaware in 1988. Our
headquarters are located in Pocatello, Idaho, and we have wafer fabrication facilities in Pocatello, Idaho and
Oudenaarde, Belgium.

Our predecessor company was founded in Santa Clara, California in 1966 as American Micresystems, Inc.
to design and manufacture analog and mixed signal integrated circuits. American Microsystems was taken
public in the late 1960s. In the 1980s, American Microsystems shifted its focus to the design and manufacture
of mixed signal and digital custom integrated circuits and in 1985 American Microsystems entered the digital
conversion ASIC business when it completed its first significant conversion project. Our predecessor was
acquired by Gould Inc. in 1982, which in turn was acquired by a company now known as Nippon Mining
Holdings Inc. (Nippon Mining) in 1988. Between 1988 and 2000 our predecessor operated at various times as
a division of Nippon Mining and a subsidiary of GA-TEK, which was also a subsidiary of Nippon Mining. We
refer to GA-TEK as our former parent. In 2000 the division was spun out into a subsidiary, and in December
2000 the subsidiary, Nippon Mining and new investors engaged in a recapitalization transaction pursuant to
which the subsidiary was renamed AMI Semiconductor, Inc. and became our wholly owned subsidiary. In
June 2002, we acquired the mixed signal business of Alcatel Microelectronics NV from STMicroelectronics
NV. We refer to this as the MSB acquisition. In November 2004, we acquired Dspfactory Ltd. (Dspfactory),
a leader in ultra-low power digital signal processing technology for digital hearing aids and other low-power
applications. We refer to this as the Dspfactory acquisition. In September 2005, we acquired the semiconductor
business of Flextronics International USA Inc., which specializes in custom mixed signal products, image
sensors and digital application specific integrated circuits including field programmable gate array conversion
products. We refer to this as the Flextronics acquisition.

Products and Services

Our products and services are organized into two reportable segments: integrated mixed signal
products and structured digital products. We formerly had a third segment, mixed signal foundry services,
which we have combined into the integrated mixed signal products segment. Through these segments, we
provide our customers building blocks to complement their intellectual property, manufacturing services for
customer-designed silicon products and cost optimization platforms and products. See note 17 to the
audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for information by geographical
area. Because we have significant foreign sales and operations and intend to expand our global presence,
we are subject to political, economic and other risks we do not face in a domestic market.

Integrated Mixed Signal Products (78.1% of 2005 revenue)

We design and manufacture complex, customer specific, integrated mixed signal products.
Approximately 77% of our 2005 sales of our integrated mixed signal products represent sales to customers
in our target automotive, medical and industrial markets. We work closely with our customers throughout
the design period, typically lasting from six to 24 months, thereby establishing long-term working
relationships. Our integrated mixed signal products combine analog and digital functions on a single chip
to form a customer defined system-level solution and, increasingly, application specific standard products.
We focus on integrating the following building block interfaces to the real world:

Sensor Interfaces. Sensors transform real world stimuli, such as temperature and pressure, into
analog electrical signals. The proliferation of sensors and the requirement to interface with those sensors
have expanded the market for integrated mixed signal products, which interpret the outputs from the
sensors and process them using digital control circuitry. Our integrated mixed signal sensor interfaces
enable our customers to create products that are small in size and consume less power, which are
attractive attributes for sensors in the automotive, medical and industrial markets. In the automotive field,
we have worked with large automotive customers to provide sensor interfaces for angular position sensing,
used in applications such as steer-by-wire or throttle position sensing, as well as in emerging applications
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for stability control, which utilize our digital signal processing technology. In the medical diagnostics field,
we have worked with customers in the medical end market to develop integrated mixed signal solutions for
high volume applications, such as blood glucose monitoring, internal temperature measurement and
imaging.

Controls. Most equipment in the automotive, medical and industrial markets operates in high voltage
environments. Digital semiconductors usually operate in low voltage environments. Our integrated mixed
signal high voltage control products can amplify, condition and regulate analog signal inputs and outputs
ranging from five to 100 volts. Utilizing our proprietary design techniques and proprietary high voltage
manufacturing processes, we can create cost-effective, energy efficient single chip solutions for high voltage
systems. High voltage control applications include headlamp drivers and motor control for positioning of
headlamp systems for automotive suppliers, as well as arc fault detection and circuit control for industrial
suppliers.

Communications. Low data rate wireless functionality enables digital messages to be sent over
moderate distances using a low power connection. Low data rate solutions are widely used in the
automotive, medical and industrial markets. These markets are not addressed by the relatively high cost,
high power consumption, high data rate wireless products, such as those used in wireless phones. Our
products are optimized for low cost and low power and are used by industrial and automotive end market
customers in applications, such as wireless home security and keyless entry. We also offer wired
communication products for such applications as in-vehicle control and industrial networking. Digital signal
processing is another key communications building block. Our digital signal processing technology is
primarily designed for ultra-low power applications such as hearing aids, wireless headsets and electronic
stethoscopes, where extended battery life and low background noise are critical to the applications.

Mixed Signal Foundry Services. We provide mixed signal semiconductor manufacturing services
primarily to electronic systems manufacturers and semiconductor companies that have completed their own
designs but do not have their own fabrication facilities or have otherwise chosen to outsource to us. We
focus on customers and target markets that leverage our mixed signal technology and manufacturing
expertise. We specialize in serving customers with small to medium volume requirements, for which larger
foundries generally will not aggressively compete. Generally, we are the sole source provider of a particular
device for our foundry customers. We utilize established process technologies, thereby reducing technology
risk for our customers. Typical applications serviced by our mixed signal manufacturing business include
implantable medical devices for cardiac rhythm management applications and sensing circuits for military
and high voltage consumer and communications devices.

Structured Digital Products (21.9% of 2005 revenue)

To address the rising costs associated with digital semiconductor design and manufacturing, we work
with customers to provide mid-range ASIC solutions, including primarily FPGA to ASIC conversions, but
also digital ASICs and ASIC to ASIC conversions. We have beea an innovator in the digital conversion
market since 1985 and have created many methodologies and software tools that have enabled us to
develop a leading position in this market. Our structured digital products are used in a wide variety of
applications that vary in complexity, including communications infrastructure, medical imaging, automotive
and consumer applications.

While FPGAs offer greater flexibility and faster time-to-market, since they can be configured by the
customer on site rather than customized in a fab, our structured digital products offer lower per unit cost,
higher levels of integration, greater processing speed and lower power consumption.

Our XPressArray™ product platform became commercially available in 2003. In 2004, we launched
the next generation of this conversion technology, XPressArray ™-II. Our XpressArray™-II product
platform allows our customers to convert FPGAs into cost-effective structured digital products with higher
performance and efficiency using our proprietary architecture, design software, processes and manufactur-
ing expertise. We have specifically focused our design efforts and intellectual property in the
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XpressArray' -1 product platform to enable rapid and accurate conversion from an FPGA to our product
so that it will perform seamlessly in a system initially designed with an FPGA.

We use Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company’s, or TSMC’s, 0.15 micron process
technology to manufacture elements common to each XpressArray™-II product. Custom functionality is
achieved using our internal, low-cost 0.35 micron and 0.25 micron technologies to create the final circuit
connections through metalization. This unique hybrid manufacturing approach enables a product that has
very fast time-to-market, because of our flexible internal manufacturing capabilities, and low cost, due to
being able to use significantly fewer expensive semiconductor photomasks when compared to a typical
custom digital product. We believe our XPressArray™-I1 product platform provides our customers with
significant reductions in development time and low engineering costs while decreasing their semiconductor
unit costs considerably.

Customers, Markets and Applications

The following table sets forth our principal end markets, the percentage of revenue for 2005 in each
end market and some specific applications for our products during 2005:

Computing,
Consumer and
End Markets Automotive Industrial Medical Communications Military Other
Percentage of
revenue for
2005 ...... 26.2% 21.7% 17.7% 11.5% 10.1% 12.8%
Applications . . In-vehicle Industrial Medical Broadband Cockpit Printers Power
sensors Engine networking imaging analog displays management
management Circuit Pacemakers Wireless base  Guidance Storage
Headlight protection Blood glucose  stations systems systems
controls Wireless monitor Switches Munitions
Stability security White: Hearing aids Routers Infrared
control goods imaging

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, our 30 largest customers accounted for 64.6%, 69.7% and 63.6% of our
revenue, respectively. In 2003, Hella, Siemens and Alcatel accounted for 7.2%, 5.9% and 5.7% of total
revenues, respectively. In 2004, Hella, Alcatel and Siemens accounted for 6.7%, 6.5% and 5.6% of total
revenues, respectively. In 2003, STMicroelectronics accounted for 7.8% of our revenue.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

We sell our products primarily through direct sales personnel and independent sales representatives. In
2005, approximately 99% of our sales were made to original equipment manufacturers or their electronic
manufacturing service providers. One percent of our 2005 sales were made to distributors. Contracts with
our independent sales representatives and our distributors are usually terminable by either party on
relatively short notice.

We believe that maintaining a technically competent and highly focused group of direct sales
personnel supported by independent sales representatives is the most efficient way to serve our current
customers and to develop and expand our markets and customer base worldwide. Our direct sales
organization includes regional sales managers, field application engineers and account managers. Our direct
sales personnel are divided geographically throughout North America, Europe and the Asia Pacific region
to provide localized technical support. We have strategically located our sales and technical support offices
near concentrations of major customers. As of December 31, 2005, we had 74 direct sales personnel, of
which 34 covered North America, 30 covered Europe and 10 covered the Asia Pacific region.

We use our independent sales representatives network to distribute our products, except for mixed
signal foundry services, primarily in North America and the Asia Pacific region, and for a small percentage
of our sales, in Europe. Our direct sales personnel support independent sales representatives by regularly
calling on existing and prospective customers. Qur mixed signal foundry services direct sales personnel call
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on the customer generally without use of the independent sales representatives. During 2005, 2004 and
2003 we derived approximately 32.4%, 39.3%, and 50.5% respectively, of our historical revenue from
independent sales representatives. Independent sales representatives in North America do not offer other
products that compete directly with our products.

We maintain a dedicated marketing organization, which includes product marketing and strategic
marketing in our business units and segment marketing and field applications engineers located in offices
around the world, where they can be close to our customers’ locations.

Generally, orders flow from the customer directly to us, or in the case of North America, also to one
of our independent sales representatives. Our independent sales representatives do not normally carry any
product inventory. Products are shipped from our warehouse in Manila, Philippines either directly or via
freight forwarders, to our customers worldwide.

Research and Development

Our expenditures for research and development for 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $87.4 million,
$77.2 million, and $70.2 million, respectively, representing 17.4% 14.9%, and 15.5% of revenue in each of
the respective periods.

During 2005, we reorganized and decentralized our product development organization, resulting in
each segment controlling their respective product development activities. Our research and development
efforts focus on design methodology, intellectual property and process technology for integrated mixed
signal and structured digital products. We have continued to improve our manufacturing processes, design
software and design libraries. We also work closely with our major customers in many research and
development activities, including joint intellectual property development, to increase the likelihood that our
products will be more easily designed into our customers’ products and consequently achieve rapid and
lasting market acceptance. Areas of focus in intellectual property development include developing our
library of microcontroller, motor control, data conversion, high voltage (including flash memory), wireless,
low power and digital signal processing building blocks.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, maskwork rights, trademark and trade secret laws and
contractual restrictions to establish the proprietary aspects of our business and technology across all three
of our principal product and services groups. As of December 31, 2005, we held 83 U.S. patents and
92 foreign patents. We also had over 90 patent applications in progress. The patents are based primarily on
circuit design and process techniques. OQur patents have a typical duration of 20 years from application
date. At the end of 2006, approximately 7% of the patents we currently have will be expiring. We do not
expect this to have a material impact on our results, as these technologies are not revenue producing and
we will be able to continue using the technologies associated with these patents. There can be no
assurance that pending patent applications or other applications that may be filed will result in issued
patents or that any issued patents will survive challenges to their validity. However, we believe that the
loss of any one of our patents would not materially affect our business. We have licensed our design
libraries and software to selected customers to design products that are then manufactured by us. We may
also license technology from third parties to incorporate into our design libraries.

As part of the Dspfactory acquisition, we acquired 16 U.S. and foreign patents and 19 patent
applications. As part of the Flextronics acquisition, we acquired 13 U.S. and foreign patents and 7 patent
applications.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other
intellectual property rights. As is typical in the semiconductor indusiry, we have from time to time
received communications from third parties asserting rights under patents that cover certain of our
technologies and alleging infringement of certain intellectual property rights of others. We expect to
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receive similar communications in the future. In the event that any third party had a valid claim against us
or our customers, we could be required to:

+ discontinue using certain process technologies which could cause us to stop manufacturing certain
semiconductors;

» pay substantial monetary damages;
+ seek to develop non-infringing technologies, which may not be feasible; or

« seek to acquire licenses to the infringed technology which may not be available on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all.

We were named as a defendant in a complaint filed on January 21, 2003, by Ricoh Company, Ltd. in
the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California alleging infringement of a patent owned by
Ricoh. See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings™ for a more complete description of the Ricoh claim.

Manufacturing

In the fourth quarter of 2004, we initiated a project to relocate our Manila, Philippines test facility to
a new, larger facility and to transfer our wafer sort operations from Qudenaarde, Belgium and Pocatello,
Idaho to the new Manila, Philippines facility. This project continued during all of 2005, and is expected to
be completed by the first quarter of 2006. As a result, we increased inventories in 2004 and 2005 in order
to minimize supply disruptions to our customers. In addition, during the third quarter of 2005, we
announced the intended closure of our 4-inch wafer fabrication facility in Qudenaarde, Belgium. We began
building inventory in support of this closure in the fourth quarter of 2005, and expect to continue to do so
in 2006. As a result, we expect a further increase in overall inventories in 2006.

We manufacture wafers at our 5-inch fab and an 8-inch fab located in Pocatello, Idaho and our
4-inch fab and a 6-inch fab located in Oudenaarde, Belgium. Our wafer fabrication technology is based on
CMOS, BiCMOS and high voltage processes.

Our integrated mixed signal products customers do not typically require us to maintain process
technologies below (.35 micron. As a result, our capital expenditure requirements are often less as a
percentage of revenue as compared to purely digital semiconductor companies, which invest in higher cost
process technologies below 0.35 micron. We purchase 0.15 micron CMOS wafers that we use in our
XpressArray ™-II product platform from TSMC. Our XPressArray™ products are only partially processed
before they are returned to us and then completed with our 0.35 micron or 0.25 micron process in our own
fab. This process combination gives our XPressArray™-II products 0.15 micron performance without
incurring the capital expenditure needed to manufacture at this geometry. If this geometry becomes
required for our integrated mixed signal products in the future, we intend to seek an external source for
that technology.

In addition to TSMC, we procure fabricated wafers from third-party foundries, such as Samsung,
X-Fab, Chartered Semiconductor and Supertex. During 2005, we announced a joint development and
foundry agreement with Magnachip Semiconductor, Ltd., for the development and manufacture of 0.18
micron CMOS technology for low power medical applications.




Fabricated wafers are transferred to third party facilities for packaging and returned to us. We
perform wafer and packaged die testing primarily at our facility in Manila, as we continue to transition
these activities away from our Pocatello and Oudenaarde facilities. In 2005 and before, we performed
testing at our 85,600 square foot facility in Manila, which was established in 1980. Beginning in the second
quarter of 2005, we began relocating these activities to a new 129,000 square foot facility near Manila. As
of March 1, 2006 we closed the old Manila facility and now perform all of our testing activities at the new
facility. We also outsource back-end packaging and testing to a number of subcontractors in Asia,
including Amkor, ASE, STATSChipPac and AIT. The table below sets forth information with respect to
our wafer fabrication facilities, products and technologies:

Installed
Annual
Equipment Wafer
Location Products/Functions Capacity Diameter
Pocatello....................... CMOS Wafers, 0.6 micron and 235,000 57
above, 2 to 3 metal levels
Pocatello....................... CMOS Wafers, 0.35 micron to 0.8 73,000(1) 8”
micron, 2 to 5 metal levels
Oudenaarde . ................... BiCMOS Wafers, 1 micron, 2 130,000 4”7
metal levels
Oudenaarde .................... BiCMOS Wafers, 0.35 micron to 94,000(2) 67

1 micron, 2 to 5 metal levels

(1) By adding additional equipment, production capacity at our 8-inch fab could be increased to 225,000
wafers per year.

(2) By adding additional equipmént, production capacity at our 6-inch fab could be increased to 175,000
wafers per year.

Our manufacturing processes use many raw materials, including silicon wafers, copper lead frames,
molding compounds, ceramic packages and various chemicals and gases. We obtain raw materials and
supplies from a large number of sources. Although supplies of raw materials are currently adequate,
shortages could occur in various essential materials due to interruption of supply or increased demand in
the industry.

Our manufacturing groups also go through stringent certifications to support our focus on our target
markets of automotive, medical and industrial. These markets have very demanding requirements for
quality and reliability. The following standards require third party auditing to receive certification. We were
the first semiconductor company to independently certify to the MIL-PRF-38535 QML standard. In 2002
we became the first pure-play custom integrated circuit manufacturer o attain certification to the telecom
TL9000 R3 standard. We became an ISO9000 certified company in 1994, received the QS9000
automotive certification in 1997, a STACK supplier certification in 2000 and earned several government
sponsored Quality Awards. Our current certification achievements include the ISO/TS16949:2002
worldwide automotive standard and the 1S0O14001:1996 environmental standard.

Backlog

Reported backlog represents products forecasted or scheduled to be delivered under written purchase
orders within six months. Backlog is influenced by several factors, including market demand, pricing,
customer order patterns and changes in product lead times. Backlog may fluctuate from booking to time of
delivery to reflect changes in customer needs or industry conditions. Once manufacturing has commenced,
orders generally are not cancelable. In addition, because customers already have invested significant time
working with us (typically from six to 24 months before production of a custom semiconductor) and have
incurred the non-recurring engineering fee in full before production begins, customers generally have given
careful consideration to the orders they place, and generally do not cancel orders. However, there is no
guarantee that backlog will ultimately be realized as revenue. Six-month backlog was $138.0 million as of
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December 31, 2005 and $101.3 million as of December 31, 2004. The increase was driven by incremental
backlog as a result of the Flextronics acquisition.

Backlog should not be taken as an indicator of our anticipated revenue for any particular future
period. Line items recorded in backlog may not result in revenue within six months for several reasons,
including: (a) certain customer orders within backlog may not be able to be recognized as revenue within
six months (i.e., we, for various reasons, may be unable to ship the product within the specified time
frame promised); (b) certain customer order delivery dates may be delayed to a subsequent period by our
customers; and (¢) certain customer orders may even be cancelled at our customers’ request. These items
have often been offset, and exceeded by, both (a) new customer orders that are booked subsequent to the
backlog reporting date and delivered to the customer within six months and (b) customer orders with
anticipated delivery dates outside six months and subsequently shipped sooner than originally anticipated.
The amount of revenue recognized in excess of backlog during any six-month period varies and depends
greatly on overall capacity in the semiconductor industry and capacity in our manufacturing facilities. We
do not routinely monitor the extent of backlog cancelled, pushed out for later delivery or accelerated for
earlier delivery.

Seasonality

Generally, we are affected by the seasonal trends of the semiconductor and related electronics
industries. However, we believe our revenues are less susceptible to seasonality than some other
semiconductor companies because of a lower concentration of revenues in the communications, computing
and consumer markets, which are generally considered to be more cyclical in nature than our target
markets of automotive, medical and industrial. Typically, revenues are lower in the first and second
quarters of the year, and higher in the third and fourth quarters. In 2005, excluding revenues from the
Flextronics acquisition, revenues were slightly higher in the second half of the year as compared to the first
half. Revenue growth in the second half of the year was constrained by a faster-than-expected roli-off of
revenues generated by older products. Thus, specific conditions in any given year, such as inventory
corrections, increases and decreases in customer demand, new end-market product cycles or economic or
political events can override secasonal trends. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.”

Competition

We compete in highly competitive markets. The value we provide our customers includes our unique
process technologies, our ability to design complex, highly integrated products, our commitment to quality
and our commitment to support our customers’ products throughout their product lives. Although no one
company competes with us in all of our product lines, we face significant competition for products in our
two business areas from domestic, as well as international companies. Some of these companies have
substantially greater financial, technical, marketing and management resources than we have.

Our integrated mixed signal product competitors include larger diversified semiconductor suppliers,
such as STMicroelectronics and Texas Instruments, and smaller end market focused suppliers, such as
Elmos, Zarlink and Gennum. The principal markets we serve in this segment are automotive, medical and
industrial. In the automotive and industrial markets, we believe we are the fourth-largest supplier of
custom analog and mixed signal products. In the medical market, we believe we are the largest supplier of
custom and application-specific analog and mixed signal products.

In our integrated mixed signal products segment, we compete with other customer specific
semiconductor solutions providers based on design experience, manufacturing capability, depth and quality
of mixed signal intellectual property, the ability to service customer needs from the design phase to the
shipping of a completed product, length of design cycle, longevity of technology support and sales and
technical support personnel. For mixed signal foundry services, we compete with the internal
manufacturing capabilities of our customers, as well as third party foundries. In our structured digital
products segment, we compete with programmable digital logic product suppliers on the basis of chip size,
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performance and production costs. Our ability to compete successfully depends on internal and external
variables, both within and outside of our control. These variables include, but are not limited to, the
timeliness with which we can develop new products and technologies, product performance and quality,
manufacturing yields and availability, customer service, pricing, industry trends and general economic
trends.

Altera and Xilinx are our principal competitors for our structured digital products where the primary
business is conversion of FPGA’s into structured digital products. We believe we are the market leader in
FPGA conversions. In addition, companies such as Maxim, Microchip, Linear Technology, LSI Logic and
IBM have skills and base capabilities similar to ours but we do not generally compete with these
companies on a direct basis.

Employees

Our worldwide workforce consisted of 2,816 employees (full- and part-time) as of December 31,
2005, of which 1,170 were located in North America, 891 were located in Europe and 755 were located in
Asia. None of our employees in North America or Asia are represented by collective bargaining
arrangements. We believe that our relations with our employees in North America and Asia are
satisfactory. The employees located in Belgium are represented by unions and have collective bargaining
arrangements at the national, industry and company levels. We believe that our relations with our
unionized employees in Belgium are satisfactory.

Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to numerous environmental, health and safety laws and regulations that
prohibit or restrict the discharge of pollutants into the environment and regelate employee exposure to
hazardous substances in the workplace. Failure to comply with these laws or our environmental permits
could subject us to material costs and liabilities, including costs to clean up contamination caused by our
operations. In addition, future changes to environmental laws could require us to incur significant
additional expense or restrict our operations.

Some environmental laws hold current or previous owners or operators of real property liable for the
costs of cleaning up contamination, even if these owners or operaters did not know of and were not
responsible for such contamination. These environmental laws also impose liability on any person who
arranges for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances, regardless of whether the affected site is
owned or operated by such person. Third parties may also make claims against owners or operators of
properties for personal injuries and property damage associated with releases of hazardous or toxic
substances.

We are required pursuant to an order issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board
to clean up trichloroethylene contaminated groundwater at our former manufacturing facility located in
Santa Clara, California. We are currently monitoring the groundwater and, based on the results of our
clean-up efforts to date, do not expect to be required to implement any other remedial measures. We
believe that the annual cost of operating the groundwater treatmens system will be immaterial to our
financial statements in 2006. Nippon Mining Holdings Inc. (formerly known as Japan Energy
Corporation) and its subsidiary agreed to indemnify us for certain e¢xisting environmental exposures and to
pay certain existing liabilities as part of our recapitalization in December 2000. However, there are no
guarantees that Nippon Mining or the other indemnifying party will have the ability to fulfill their
obligations in the future. Unexpected costs that we may incur with respect to environmental matters may
result in additional loss contingencies.




Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our executive officers as of March 4,
2006.

Name Age Title

Executive Officers

Christine King .. ..............on 0 56  President and Chief Executive Officer

Walter Mattheus. .................. 58  Senior Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer

David A.Henry ................... 44  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

Jon Stoner ......... ... ..l 49  Senior Vice President and Chief Technology
Officer

Charlie Lesko ..................... 47  Senior Vice President, Sales & Marketing

Christine King, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director. Ms. King joined us in September
2001 as President, Chief Executive Officer and a director. From September 2000 to September 2001
Ms. King served as Vice President of Semiconductor Products for IBM Microelectronics. From September
1998 to September 2000 Ms. King was Vice President of the Networking Technology Business Unit for
IBM. Ms. King also served as Vice President of Marketing and Field Engineering at IBM from June 1995
to September 1998 and Manager of ASIC Products at IBM from March 1992 to June 1995. While at
IBM, Ms. King launched the company’s ASIC and networking businesses. Ms. King holds a B.S. degree
in electrical engineering from Fairleigh Dickinson University. Ms. King serves on the board of Analog
Devices, Inc., a semiconductor company.

Walter Mattheus, Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Mattheus joined us in June
2002 following the MSB acquisition as Chief Operating Officer, Managing Director of AMI
Semiconductor Belgium BVBA and Managing Director of AMI Semiconductor Leasing BVBA,

Mr. Mattheus started with Alcatel Microelectronics in June 1983. At Alcatel Microelectronics,

Mr. Mattheus served as General Manager and Chief Operating Officer since 1995. Mr. Mattheus began
his career with Bell Telephone Manufacturing Company that later became Alcatel Bell. Mr. Mattheus
holds a masters degree and a doctorate in electrical engineering from the University of Leuven.

David A. Henry, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Henry has served as our
Chief Financial Officer since April 2004. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Henry worked for seven years
at Fairchild Semiconductor International, Inc. where he was Vice President of Finance, Worldwide
Operations from November 2002 until April 2004, and Vice President, Corporate Controller from March
1997 until November 2002. Prior to that, Mr. Henry worked for eight years at National Semiconductor
Corporation, where he held various financial management positions. Mr. Henry holds an M.B.A. from
Santa Clara University, and a B.S. in business administration from the University of California, Berkeley.

Jon Stoner, Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer. Mr. Stoner joined us in 1980. Prior
to his current position, Mr. Stoner held various research and development positions, including Senior Vice
President, Technology and Product Development, Director of Standard Products, Director of Technology
Planning and New Business Development and Director of Process Technology. Mr. Stoner serves as a
member of the Advisory Council to the Idaho State Board of Education for Engineering Education, is a
member of Idaho’s Experimental Program for Stimulation of Competitive Research committee and is a
volunteer member of the Boise State Engineering Advisory Board. Mr. Stoner holds a B.A. degree in
chemistry from the University of Montana and a M.S. degree in physics from Idaho State University.

Charlie Lesko, Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Lesko joined us in 2003 from
Broadcom Corporation where he was Vice President of North American Sales from July 2002 to May
2003. Mr. Lesko has an extensive sales and marketing background in the semiconductor industry. Prior to
working with Broadcom Corporation, Mr. Lesko was Vice President of Worldwide Sales for Axcelis
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Technologies from July 2000 to July 2002. Prior to joining Axcelis, Mr. Lesko held various management
positions at Teradyne, Inc. from July 1990 to July 2000. Mr. Lesko holds an M.B.A. in finance from the
University of Dallas, He earned a B.E. degree in engineering at State University of New York-Stony
Brook.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC.
You may read and copy any reports, statements and other information we file at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call (800) SEC-0330 for
further information on the Public Reference Room. The SEC also maintains an internet web site that
contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC. Our filings are available on the website maintained by the SEC at
WWW.SEC.ZOV.

We make available, free of charge, through our investor relations page on our website, our reports on
Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after they
are filed with the SEC. You can find this information on our web site at www.amis.com/investor _
relations/.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Factors that May Affect our Business and Future Results

The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and
uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also adversely
affect our business.

If we are unable to improve and maintain the quality of our internal control over financial reporting, a
weakness could matevially and adversely affect our ability to provide timely and accurate information
about our company, which could harm our veputation and share price.

In connection with the preparation of our financial statements and other reports for the year ended
December 31, 2005, we identified a deficiency in our internal contrel over financial reporting relating to
revenue recognition that we have concluded rose to the level of a “material weakness.” Our internal
control over financial reporting was not designed to effectively identify when delivery of products to our
customers had occurred and related revenue could accordingly be recognized. Had the errors related to
this material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting not been identified during our year-
end review procedures, our revenue and net income would have been overstated by $1.8 million and
$0.6 million, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2005. We cannot be certain that the measures
we are taking will ensure that we will be able to correct and maintain adequate controls over our financial
processes and reporting in the future. Any failure to maintain adequate controls or to adequately
implement required new or improved controls could harm our operating results or cause us to fail to meet
our reporting obligations in a timely and accurate manner. Ineffective internal control over financial
reporting could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, which could
adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their
objectives. However, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all error and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the
fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their
costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected.
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We rely on packaging subcontractors, which reliance could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations and financial condition.

Most of our products are assembled in packages prior to shipment. The packaging of semiconductors
is a complex process requiring, among other things, a high degree of technical skill and advanced
equipment. We outsource our semiconductor packaging to subcontractors, most of which are located in
Southeast Asia. In particular, we rely heavily on a single subcontractor for packaging. We depend on these
subcontractors to package our devices with acceptable quality and yield levels. During the fourth quarter of
2005, our principal packaging subcontractor experienced capacity constraints, which impacted our ability to
ship products to customers during the quarter and negatively impacted our revenues. We have taken steps
to attempt to guarantee capacity in the future, which will cause us to incur additional costs in 2006.
Nevertheless, if our subcontractor experiences problems in packaging our semiconductor devices or
experiences prolonged quality or yield problems or continued capacity constraints, our operating results
would be adversely affected.

Our success depends on efficient utilization of our manufacturing capacity, and a failure could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

An important factor in our success is the extent to which we are able to utilize the available capacity
in our fabrication and test facilities. Utilization rates can be negatively affected by periods of industry over-
capacity, low levels of customer orders, operating inefficiencies, obsolescence, mechanical failures and
disruption of operations due to expansion or relocation of operations and fire or other natural disasters.
Because many of our costs are fixed, a reduction in capacity utilization, together with other factors such as
yield and product mix, could adversely affect our operating results. The downturn in the semiconductor
industry from 2000 to 2003 resulted in a decline in the capacity utitization at our wafer fabrication
facilities. In addition, our capacity utilization for the second half of 2004 declined from the first half of
2004 and that trend continued through 2005. If this continues, or if we enter another downturn, our wafer
fabrication capacity may be under-utilized and our inability to quickly reduce fixed costs, such as
depreciation and other fixed operating expenses necessary to operate our wafer manufacturing facilities,
would harm our operating resuits.

We could be adversely affected by manufacturing interruptions or reduced yields.

The fabrication of our integrated circuits is a highly complex and precise process, requiring production
in a tightly controlled, clean room environment. Minute impurities, difficulties in the fabrication process,
defects in the masks used to print circuits on a wafer or other factors can cause a substantial percentage of
wafers to be rejected or numerous die on each wafer to be nonfunctional. We may experience problems in
achieving acceptable yields in the manufacture of semiconductors, particularly in connection with the
production of a new product, the adoption of a new manufacturing process or any expansion of our
manufacturing capacity and related transitions. The interruption of manufacturing, including power
interruptions, or the failure to achieve acceptable manufacturing yields at any of our wafer fabrication
facilities, would adversely affect our business. In addition, we began moving our test operations to a new
facility in the Philippines beginning in the second quarter of 2005 and we are moving our sort operations in
the United States and Belgium to this new facility as well. During the course of this move, we experienced
some shortcomings in execution that resulted in higher costs in the short term, an increased level of
customer delinquencies, and imbalances at some points in our internal supply chain. This will likely take a
few quarters to work out, at which time we expect to return to normal levels of efficiencies in this part of
the manufacturing process. We are also planning to close our 4-inch wafer fabrication facility in
Oudenaarde, Belgium by the first quarter of 2007. If we experience delays or other technical or other
problems during these moves, our costs, efficiencies and ability to deliver products to customers may be
adversely affected and our results of operations could be adversely affected.

12




We may face product warranty or product liability claims that are disproportionately higher than the
value of the products involved, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations
and financial condition.

Our products are typically sold at prices that are significantly lower than the cost of the equipment or
other goods in which they are incorporated. Although we maintain rigorous quality control systems, in the
ordinary course of our business we receive warranty claims for some of these products that are defective or
that do not perform to specifications. Since a defect or failure in our product could give rise to failures in
the goods that incorporate them (and consequential claims for damages against our customers from their
customers), we may face claims for damages that are disproportionate to the revenues and profits we
receive from the products involved. See note 10 to our consolidated financial statements for further
discussion. In the fourth quarter of 2005, our gross margin was negatively impacted by approximately
$3.7 million due to a charge taken in conjunction with ongoing discussions involving a previous quality
issue with one of our customers. On March 3, 2006, an agreement in principle was reached with this
customer to settle this issue for $5 million in cash in exchange for a release for all past and future claims
with respect to this matter. This amount is fully reserved at December 31, 2005.

We attempt, through our standard terms and conditions of sale and other customer contracts, to limit
our liability for defective products to obligations to replace the defective goods or refund the purchase
price. Nevertheless, we have received claims in the past for other charges, such as for labor and other
costs of replacing defective parts, lost profits and other damages. In addition, our ability to reduce such
liabilities may be limited by the laws or the customary business practices of the countries where we do
business. And, even in cases where we do not believe we have legal liability for such claims, we may
choose to pay for them to retain a customer’s business or goodwill or to settle claims to avoid protracted
litigation. Qur results of operations and business could be adversely affected as a result of a significant
quality or performance issue in our products if we are required or choose to pay for the damages that
result.

The cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry may limit our ability to maintain or increase revenue
and profit levels, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial
condition.

The semiconductor industry is cyclical and our ability to respond to downturns is limited. The
semiconductor industry experienced the effects of a significant downturn that began in late 2000 and
continued into 2003. Our business was impacted by this downturn. During this downturn, our financial
performance was negatively affected by various factors, including general reductions in inventory levels by
customers and excess production capacity. In addition, our bookings and backlog decreased during the
second half of 2004 and remained sluggish throughout 2005. This resulted in lower revenue in 2005 as
compared to 2004. We cannot predict how long the current soft bookings environment will persist or to
what extent business conditions will change in the future. If the soft bookings environment persists, or
business conditions change for the worse in the future, these events would materially adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

Due to our relatively fixed cost structure, our margins will be adversely affected if we experience a
significant decline in customer ovders.

We make significant decisions, including determining the levels of business that we will seek and
accept, production schedules, component procurement commitments, personnel needs and other resource
requirements, based on our estimates of customer requirements. The short-term nature of commitments by
many of our customers and the possibility of rapid changes in demand for their products reduces our
ability to accurately estimate future customer requirements. On occasion, customers may require rapid
increases in production, which can challenge our resources, reduce margins or harm our relationships with
our customers. We may not have sufficient capacity at any given tirne to meet our customers’ demands.
Conversely, downturns in the semiconductor industry, such as the downturn that commenced late in 2000
and ended in 2003, can and have caused our customers to significantly reduce the amount of products
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ordered from us. In addition, we experienced a decrease in orders in the third and fourth quarters of 2004.
Sluggish business conditions continued in 2005 due to general declines in the industry and an above
average roll off of old products, particularly in the mixed signal segment, that new product introductions
failed to offset. These decreases in orders are now negatively impacting our gross margins. Reductions in
customer orders have caused our wafer fabrication capacity to be under-utilized. Because many of our
costs and operating expenses are relatively fixed, a reduction in customer demand has an adverse effect on
our gross margins and operating income. Reduction of customer demand also causes a decrease in our
backlog. There is also a higher risk that our trade receivables will be uncollectible during industry
downturns or downturns in the economy. Any one or more of these events could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

A significant portion of our revenue comes from a velatively limited number of customers and devices, the
loss of which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

If we lose a major customer or if customers cease to place orders for our high volume devices, our
financial results will be adversely affected. While we served more than 530 customers in 2005, sales to our
18 largest customers represented 50.6% of our revenue during this period. The identities of our principal
customers have varied from year to year and our principal customers may not continue to purchase
products and services from us at current levels, or at all. In addition, while we sold over 2,360 different
products in 2005, the 104 top selling devices represented 50.1% of our revenue during this period. The
devices generating the greatest revenue have varied from year to year and our customers may not continue
to place orders for such devices from us at current levels, or at all. Significant reductions in sales to any of
these customers, the loss of a major customer or the curtailment of orders for our high volume devices
within a short period of time would adversely affect our business.

We may not be able to sell the inventories of products on hand, which could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

In preparation for the relocation of our test facilities in the Philippines, the consolidation of our sort
facilities in Belgium and the United States into the new facility in the Philippines, the closure of our
4-inch wafer fabrication facility in Oudenaarde, Belgium, and for other reasons, we have built up and may
continue to build up inventories of certain products in an effort to mitigate or prevent any interruption of
product deliveries to our customers. In many instances, we have manufactured these products without
having first received orders for them from our customers. Because our products are typically designed for a
specific customer and are not commodity products, if customers do not place orders for the products we
have built, we may not be able to sell them and we may need to record reserves against the valuation of
this inventory. If these events occur, it could have a material adverse effect on our results and financial
condition.

We may need to incur impairment and other restvucturing charges, which could materially affect our
results of operations and financial conditions.

During industry downturns and for other reasons, we may need to record impairment or restructuring
charges. We have incurred impairment or restructuring charges in each of the last three fiscal years. Most
recently, we began relocating our test operations to a new larger facility in the Philippines and are in the
process of transferring our wafer sort operations in Pocatello, Idaho and Oudenaarde, Belgium to that new
facility. These actions resulted in restructuring charges in 2005 of approximately $0.5 million. We expect
to complete this relocation during the first quarter of 2006. In addition, on August 17, 2005, we announced
a plan to close our 4-inch wafer fabrication facility in Oudenaarde, Belgium by the first quarter of 2007.
We expect this action to result in restructuring charges in the range of approximately $23.0 million to
$28.0 million, of which approximately $4.9 million was recorded in 2005, with the remainder to be
recorded in 2006 and the first quarter of 2007. In 2004, we eliminated approximately 110 employee
positions, recording $7.9 million in related restructuring charges over the life of this plan. In the future, we
may need to record additional impairment charges or further restructure our business and incur additional
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restructuring charges, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial
condition, if they are large enough.

We depend on growth in the end markets that use our products, and a lack of growth in these markets
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Our continued success will depend in large part on the growth of various industries that use
semiconductors, including our target automotive, medical and industrial markets, as well as the
communications, military and computing markets, and on general economic growth. Factors affecting these
markets as a whole could seriously harm our customers and, as a result, harm us. These factors include:

+ recessionary periods or periods of reduced growth in our customers’ markets;

« the inability of our customers to adapt to rapidly changing technology and evolving industry
standards;

*» the potential that our customers’ products may become obsolete or the failure of our customers’
products to gain widespread commercial acceptance; and

+ the possibility of reduced consumer demand for our customers’ products.

Our ability to compete successfully and achieve future growth will depend, in part, on our ability to
protect our proprietary technology, as well as our ability to operate without infringing the proprietary
rights of others, and our inability to do so could have a material adverse effect on our business.

As of December 31, 2005, we held 83 U.S. patents and 92 foreign patents. We also had over
90 patent applications in progress. At the end of 2006, approximately 7% of the patents we currently have
in place will be expiring. We do not expect this to have a material impact on our results, as these
technologies are not revenue producing and we will be able to continue using the technologies associated
with these patents. We intend to continue to file patent applications when appropriate to protect our
proprietary technologies. The process of seeking patent protection takes a long time and is expensive. We
cannot assure you that patents will issue from pending or future applications or that, if patents issue, they
will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented, or that the rights granted under the patents will
provide us with meaningful protection or any commercial advantage. In addition, we cannot assure you
that other countries in which we market our services will protect our intellectual property rights to the
same extent as the United States.

We also seek to protect our proprietary technologies, including technologies that may not be patented
or patentable, by confidentiality agreements. We cannot assure you that these agreements will not be
breached, that we will have adequate remedies for any breach.

Our ability to compete successfully depends on our ability to operate without infringing the
proprietary rights of others. We have no means of knowing what patent applications have been filed in the
United States until they are published. In January 2003, Ricoh Company, Ltd. filed in the U.S. District
Court for the District of Delaware a complaint against us and other parties alleging infringement of a
patent owned by Ricoh. The case was transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of
Delaware in August 2003 and was subsequently transferred to the UL.S. District Court for the Northern
District of California. Ricoh is seeking an injunction and damages in an unspecified amount relating to
such alleged infringement. The patents relate to certain methodologies for the automated design of custom
semiconductors. Based on information available to us to date, our belief is that the asserted claims are
without merit or, if meritorious, that we will be indemnified (with respect to damages) for these claims by
Synopsys, Inc. and resolution of this matter will not have a material adverse effect on our future financial
results or financial condition.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other
intellectual property rights. As is typical in the semiconductor industry, we have from time to time
received communications from third parties asserting rights under patents that cover certain of our
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technologies and alleging infringement of certain intellectual property rights of others. We expect to
receive similar communications in the future. In the event that any third party had a valid claim against us
or our customers, we could be required to:

« discontinue using certain process technologies which could cause us to stop manufacturing certain
semiconductors;

« pay substantial monetary damages;
¢+ seek to develop non-infringing technologies, which may not be feasible; or

« seek to acquire licenses to the infringed technology which may not be available on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all.

In the event that any third party causes us or any of our customers to discontinue using certain process
technologies, such an outcome could have an adverse effect on us as we would be required o design
around such technologies, which could be costly and time consuming.

Litigation, which could result in substantial costs to us and diversion of our resources, may also be
necessary to enforce our patents or other intellectual property rights or to defend us against claimed
infringement of the rights of others. If we fail to obtain a necessary license or if litigation relating to patent
infringement or any other intellectual property matter occurs, our business could be adversely affected.

Our industry is highly competitive, and a failure to successfully compete could have a material adverse
effect on our vesults of operations and financial condition.

The semiconductor industry is highly competitive and includes hundreds of companies, a number of
which have achieved substantial market share. Current and prospective customers for our custom products
evaluate our capabilities against the merits of our direct competitors, as well as the merits of continuing to
use standard or semi-standard products. Some of our competitors have substantially greater market share,
manufacturing, financial, research and development and marketing resources than we do. We also compete
with emerging companies that are attempting to sell their products in specialized markets. We expect to
experience continuing competitive pressures in our markets from existing competitors and new entrants.
Our ability to compete successfully depends on a number of other factors, including the following:

» our ability to offer cost-effective products on a timely basis using our technologies;

« our ability to accurately identify emerging technological trends and demand for product features and
performance characteristics;

« product introductions by our competitors;

» our ability to adopt or adapt to emerging industry standards;
 the number and nature of our competitors in a given market; and
» general market and economic conditions.

Many of these factors are outside of our control. In addition, in recent years, many participants in the
industry have substantially expanded their manufacturing capacity. If overall demand for semiconductors
should decrease, this increased capacity could result in substantial pricing pressure, which could adversely
affect our operating results.

We depend on successful technological advances for growth, and a lack of such advances could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Our industry is subject to rapid technological change as customers and competitors create new and
innovative products and technologies. We may not be able to access leading edge process technologies or
to license or otherwise obtain essential intellectual property required by our customers. If we are unable to
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continue manufacturing technologically advanced products on a cost-effective basis, our business would be
adversely affected.

Our customers may cancel their ovders, change production quantities or delay production, which could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We generally do not obtain firm, long-term purchase commitments from our customers. Customers
may cancel their orders, change production quantities or delay production for a number of reasons.
Cancellations, reductions or delays by a significant customer or by a group of customers, which we have
experienced in the past as a result of soft business conditions, have adversely affected and may continue to
adversely affect our results of operations. In addition, while we do not obtain long-term purchase
commitments, we generally agree to the pricing of a particular product for the entire lifecycle of the
product, which can extend over a number of years. If we underestimate our costs when determining the
pricing, our margins and results of operations will be adversely affected.

We depend on our key personnel, and the loss of these personnel could have a material effect on our
business.

Our success depends to a large extent upon the continued services of our chief executive officer,
Christine King, and our other key executives, managers and skilled personnel, particularly our design
engineers. In July 2005, we signed a new employment agreement with Ms. King that expires on
December 31, 2008. Generally our employees are not bound by employment or non-competition
agreements and we cannot assure you that we will retain our key executives and employees. We may or
may not be able to continue to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel necessary for our business.
Loss of the services of, or failure to recruit, skilled personnel could be significantly detrimental to our
product development programs or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our business.

We are dependent on successful outsourcing relationships, which dependence could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We have formed arrangements with other wafer fabrication foundries to supplement capacity and gain
access to more advanced digital process technologies. If we experience problems with our foundry partners,
we may face a shortage of finished products available for sale. We believe that in the future we will
increasingly rely upon outsourced wafer manufacturing to supplement our capacity and technology. If any
foundries with which we form an outsourcing arrangement, experience wafer yield problems or delivery
delays, which are common in our industry, or are unable to produce silicon wafers that meet our
specifications with acceptable yields, our operating results could be adversely affected.

We rely on test subcontractors, which reliance could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition.

The testing of semiconductors is a complex process requiring, among other things, a high degree of
technical skill and advanced equipment. We are increasing our outsourcing of semiconductor testing to
subcontractors, most of which are located in Southeast Asia. In particular, we plan to rely heavily on a
single subcontractor for this activity. If our subcontractors experience problems in testing our
semiconductor devices, our operating results would be adversely affected.

We depend on successful parts and materials procurement for our manyfacturing processes, which
dependence could have a material adverse effect on our vesults of operations and financial condition.

We use a wide range of parts and materials in the production of our semiconductors, including silicon,
processing chemicals, processing gases, precious metals and electronic and mechanical components. We
procure materials and electronic and mechanical components from domestic and foreign sources and
original equipment manufacturers. However, there is no assurance that, if we have difficulty in supply due
to an unforeseen catastrophe, worldwide shortage or other reason, alternative suppliers will be available or
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that these suppliers will provide materials or electronic or mechanical components in a timely manner or
on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain adequate materials in a timely manner or on favorable terms, our
business and financial results would be adversely affected.

To service our consolidated indebtedness, we will require a significant amount of cash.

Our ability to generate cash depends on many factors beyond our control. Our ability to make
payments on our consolidated indebtedness and to fund working capital requirements, capital expenditures
and research and development efforts will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future. Our
historical financial results have been, and we expect our future financial results will be, subject to
substantial fluctuation based upon a wide variety of factors, many of which are not within our control.
These factors include:

+ the cyclical nature of both the semiconductor industry and the markets for our products;
» fluctuations in manufacturing yields;

» the timing of introduction of new products;

+ the timing of customer orders;

+ changes in the mix of products sold and the end markets into which they are sold;
 the extent of utilization of manufacturing capacity;

» the length of the lifecycle of the semiconductors we are manufacturing;

« availability of supplies and raw materials;

¢ price competition and other competitive factors; and

» work stoppages, especially at our fabs in Belgium.

Unfavorable changes in any of these factors could harm our operating results and our ability to
gencrate cash to service our indebtedness. If we are unable to service our debt using our operating cash
flow, we will be required to pursue one or more alternative strategies, such as selling assets, refinancing or
restructuring our indebtedness or selling equity securities, each of which could adversely affect the market
price of our commeon stock. However, we cannot assure you that any alternative strategies will be feasible
at the time or prove adequate. Also, certain of these strategies would require the consent of our senior
secured lenders.

We may incur costs to engage in future acquisitions of companies or technologies and the anticipated
benefits of those acquisitions may never be realized, which could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.

From time to time we have purchased other businesses or their assets. In November 2004 we
acquired substantially all of the assets of Dspfactory Ltd. On September 9, 2005, we purchased
substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of the semiconductor business of Flextronics
International USA Inc. for approximately $138.5 million in cash. These, as well as any future acquisitions,
are accompanied by risks, including the following:

» potential inability to maximize our financial or strategic position, which could result in impairment
charges if the acquired company or assets are later worth less than the amount paid for them in the
acquisition;

« difficulties in assimilating the operations and products of an acquired business or in realizing
projected efficiencies, cost savings and revenue synergies;

« entry into markets or countries in which we may have limited or no experience;
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« potential increases in our indebtedness and contingent liabilities and potential unknown liabilities
associated with any such acquisition;

« diversion of management’s attention due to transition or integration issues;
+ difficulties in managing multiple geographic locations;

« cultural impediments that could prevent establishment of good employee relations, difficulties in
retaining key personnel of the acquired business and potential litigation from terminated employees;
and

+ difficulties in maintaining uniform standards, controls and procedures and information systems.

We may in the future make additional acquisitions of complementary companies or technologies. We
cannot guarantee that we will be able to successfully integrate anv company or technologies that we might
acquire in the future and our failure to do so could harm our business. The benefits of an acquisition may
take considerable time to develop and we cannot guarantee that any acquisition wili in fact produce the
intended benefits.

In addition, our senior credit facilities and our senior subordinated notes may prohibit us from making
acquisitions that we may otherwise wish to pursue.

We may need to raise additional capital that may not be available, which could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Semiconductor companies that maintain their own fabrication facilities have substantial capital
requirements. We made capital expenditures of $34.5 million in 2005 and $32.4 million in 2004. In 2005,
these expenditures were made in relation to the transfer of our wafer sort operations and the relocation of
our test facility in the Philippines to a new location as well as for increases in our manufacturing capacity.
In 2004, these expenditures were made to expand capacity in our =ight-inch fabrication facility, replace
equipment and expand our test and design capabilities. In the future, we intend to continue to make
capital investments to support business growth and achieve manufacturing cost reductions and improved
yields. The timing and amount of such capital requirements cannot be precisely determined at this time
and will depend on a number of factors, including demand for products, product mix, changes in
semiconductor industry conditions and competitive factors. We may seek additional financing to fund
further expansion of our wafer fabrication capacity or to fund other projects. As of December 31, 2005, we
had consolidated indebtedness of approximately $317.9 million. Because of this or other factors, additional
financing may not be available when needed or, if available, may not be available on satisfactory terms. If
we are unable to obtain additional financing, this could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition.

Our substantial consolidated indebtedness could adversely affect our financial health.

AMI Semiconductor, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary through which we conduct all our business
operations, has a substantial amount of indebtedness that is guaranteed by us. We are a holding company
with no business operations and no significant assets other than our ownership of AMI Semiconductor, Inc.’s
capital stock. On March 2, 2005, we announced a tender offer for our 10°%:% senior subordinated notes as
well as a refinancing of our existing $125.0 million senior secured term loan and $90.0 million revolving
credit facility, which we refer to collectively as our senior credit facilities. In September 2005 we amended
our existing senior credit facilities to permit the Flextronics Acquisition and to permit an increase of
$110.0 million in our indebtedness. As of December 31, 2005, our consolidated indebtedness was
approximately $317.9 million and our total consolidated debt as a percentage of total capitalization was 52%.
Subject to the restrictions in the senior credit facilities, our subsidiaries and we may incur certain additional
indebtedness from time to time.
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Our substantial consolidated indebtedness could have important consequences. For example, our
substantial indebtedness:

« will require our operating subsidiaries to dedicate a substantial portion of cash flow from operations
to payments in respect of indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of cash flow to fund
working capital, capital expenditures, research and development efforts and other general corporate
purposes;

+ could increase the amount of our consolidated interest expense because some of our borrowings are
at variable rates of interest, which, if interest rates increase, could result in higher interest expense;

+ will increase our vulnerability to adverse general economic or industry conditions;

» could limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business or the industry in
which we operate;

« could restrict us from making strategic acquisitions, introducing new technologies or exploiting
business opportunities;

» could place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

 could limit, along with the financial and other restrictive covenants in our indebtedness, among
other things, our ability to borrow additional funds or dispose of assets.

These factors could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Restrictions imposed by the senior credit facilities limit our ability to take certain actions.

Our senior credit facilities contain certain operating and financial restrictions and covenants and
require us to maintain certain financial ratios, which become more restrictive over time. Our ability to
comply with these ratios may be affected by events beyond our control. We cannot assure you that the
operating and financial restrictions and covenants will not adversely affect our ability to finance our future
operations or capital needs or engage in other business activities that may be in our interest. A breach of
any of the covenants or our inability to comply with the required financial ratios could result in a default
under our senior credit facilities. In the event of any default under the senior credit facilities, the lenders
under our senior credit facilities will not be required to lend any additional amounts to us and could elect
to declare all outstanding borrowings, together with accrued interest and other fees, to be due and payable,
and require us to apply all of our available cash to repay these borrowings. If we are unable to repay any
such borrowings when due, the lenders could proceed against their collateral, which consists of
substantially all of our assets, including 65% of the outstanding stock of certain of our foreign subsidiaries.
If the indebtedness under our senior credit facilities were to be accelerated, there can be no assurance that
our assets would be sufficient to repay such indebtedness in full.

In addition, we may be required to seek waivers or consents in the future under our senior credit
facilities. We cannot be sure that these waivers or consents will be granted.

We could incur matevial costs to comply with environmental laws, which could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Increasingly stringent environmental regulations restrict the amount and types of pollutants that can
be released into the environment from our operations. We have incurred and will in the future incur costs,
including capital expenditures, to comply with these regulations. Significant regulatory changes or
increased public attention to the impact of semiconductor operations on the environment may result in
more stringent regulations, further increasing our costs or requiring changes in the way we make our
products. For example, Belgium has enacted national legislation regulating emissions of greenhouse gases,
such as carbon dioxide.

In addition, because we use hazardous and other regulated materials in our manufacturing processes,
we are subject to risks of accidental spills or other sources of contamination, which could result in injury
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to the environment, personal injury claims and civil and criminal fines, any of which could be material to
our cash flow or earnings. For example, we have recently received concurrence with a proposal to curtail
pumping at one of our former manufacturing sites. Ongoing monitoring and reporting is still required. If
levels significantly change in the future additional remediation mzy be required. In addition, at some point
in the future, we will have to formally close and remove the extraction wells and treatment system. The
discovery of additional contamination at this site or other sites where we currently have or historically have
had operations could result in material cleanup costs. These costs could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations and financial condition.

Our international sales and operations expose us to various political and economic risks, which could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

As a percentage of total revenue, our revenue outside of North America was approximately 58% in
2005. Our manufacturing operations are located in the United States and Belgium, our test facilities and
our primary assembly subcontractors are located in Asia and we maintain design centers and sales offices
in North America, Europe and Asia. International sales and operations are subject to a variety of risks,
including:

» greater difficulty in staffing and managiﬁg foreign operations;
+ greater risk of uncollectible accounts;

* longer collection cycles;

» logistical and communications challenges;

» potential adverse changes in laws and regulatory practices, including export license requirements,
trade barriers, tariffs and tax laws;

+ changes in labor conditions;

« burdens and costs of compliance with a variety of foreign laws;

» political and economic instability;

¢ increases in duties and taxation;

» greater difficulty in protecting intellectual property; and

¢ general economic and political conditions in these foreign markets.

An adverse development relating to one or more of these could have a materially adverse effect on
our results of operations and financial position.

We are subject to risks associated with currency fluctuations, wkich could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial condition.

A significant portion of our revenue and costs are denominated in foreign currencies, including the
euro and, to a lesser extent, the Philippine Peso and the Japanese Yen. Euro-denominated revenue
represented approximately 29% of our revenue in 2005. As a resulf, changes in the exchange rates of these
foreign currencies to the U.S. dollar will affect our revenue, cost of revenue and operating margins and
* could result in exchange losses. The impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on our results of
operations cannot be accurately predicted. From time to time, we will enter into exchange rate hedging
programs in an effort to mitigate the affect of exchange rate fluctuations. However, we cannot assure you
that any hedging transactions will be effective or will not result in foreign exchange hedging losses.
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We are exposed to foreign labor laws due to our operational presence in Europe, which could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We had 891 employees in Europe as of December 31, 2005, most of whom were in Belgium. The
employees located in Belgium are represented by unions and have collective bargaining arrangements at
the national, industry and company levels. In connection with any future reductions in work force we may
implement, we would be required to, among other things, negotiate with these unions and make severance
payments to employees upon their termination. In addition, these unions may implement work stoppages or
delays in the event they do not consent to severance packages proposed for future reductions in work force
or for any other reason. Furthermore, our substantial operations in Europe subject us to compliance with
labor laws and customs that are generally more employee favorable than in the United States. As a result,
it may not be possible for us to quickly or affordably implement workforce reductions in Europe.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

In the United States, our corporate and manufacturing headquarters and warehouse operations are
located in 443,000 square feet of space built on 33 acres of land owned by us in Pocatello, Idaho. We also
lease an engineering and research center in Pocatelio.

In Europe, our manufacturing and other facilities are located in 15,601 square meters on
44,000 square meters owned by us in Oudenaarde, Belgium.

In Manila, the Philippines, through March 1, 2006, we leased approximately 85,600 square feet of
light manufacturing and warchouse space. Sort, test and administration functions were housed in this
facility. In January 2005, we signed an agreement to lease a new 129,000 square foot facility near Manila.
The relocation of our sort and test operations to this new facility was complete in the first quarter of 2006.

We also lease space in many locations throughout the United States for regional sales offices, field
design centers and remote engineering and development operations.

Outside the United States, we lease space for regional offices in Canada, Israel, Europe and Asia. The
leased space is for sales, marketing, administrative offices or design engineering and related support space.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We were named as a defendant in a complaint filed on January 21, 2003, by Ricoh Company, Ltd. in
the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware alleging infringement of a patent owned by Ricoh.
Ricoh is seeking an injunction and damages in an unspecified amount relating to such alleged
infringement. The case was transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Delaware on
August 29, 2003 and was subsequently transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of
California. A claims construction hearing was completed on January 18, 2005, and the court issued its
ruling on April 7, 2005. In addition, in August 2005, we and the other defendants filed a motion for
summary judgment, asking the court to find that five of the claims stated in Ricoh’s patent were not
infringed by the defendants as a matter of law. On November 5, 2005, the court denied our motion, ruling
that a finding of infringement was not precluded at a matter of law and was, instead, a factual matter that
we and the other defendants are free to argue at trial. Discovery is proceeding and trial is scheduled for
November 27, 2006. The patents relate to certain methodologies for the automated design of custom
semiconductors. The allegations are premised, at least in part, on the use of software we licensed from
Synopsys. Synopsys has agreed to assume the sole and exclusive control of our defense relating to our use
of the Synopsys software pursuant to the indemnity provisions of the Synopsys software license agreement,
subject to the exceptions and limitations contained in the agreement. Synopsys will bear the cost of the
defense as long as it is controlling the defense. However, it is possible that we may become aware of
circumstances, or circumstances may develop, that result in our defense falling outside the scope of the
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indemnity provisions of the Synopsys software license agreement, in which case we would resume control
of our defense and bear its cost, or share the cost of the defense with Synopsys and any other similarly
situated parties. Based on information available to us to date, our belief is that the claims asserted against
us are without merit or, if meritorious, that we will be indemnified (with respect to damages) for such
claims by Synopsys, and that resolution of this matter will not have a material adverse effect on our future
financial results or financial condition. However, if Ricoh is successful, we could be subject to an
injunction or substantial damages or we could be required to obtain a license from Ricoh, if available, each
of which may have a material adverse effect on our future financial results or financial position.

From time to time we are a party to various litigation matters incidental to the conduct of our business.
There is no pending or threatened legal proceeding to which we are a party that, in the opinion of
management, is likely to have a material adverse effect on our future financial results or financial condition.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stockholders during the fourth quarter of 2005.

PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “AMIS.” The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low bid price per share of our common
stock as quoted on the Nasdaq National Market.

_High  Low
2005
Fourth Quarter (from October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005) ............. $12.19  $ 9.89
Third Quarter (from July 3, 2005 to October 1, 2005) .................... $14.21  $10.68
Second Quarter (from April 3, 2005 to July 2, 2005) ..................... $13.95 $10.15
First Quarter (from January 1, 2005 to April 2, 2005) .. ... ...t $16.45 § 9.59
2004
Fourth Quarter (from September 26, 2004 to December 31, 2004) .......... $17.26  $12.90
Third Quarter (from June 27, 2004 to September 25,2004) ................ $17.40 $11.01
Second Quarter (from March 28, 2004 to June 26, 2004) . ................. $18.52  $14.25
First Quarter (from January 1, 2004 to March 27,2004) .................. $20.20 $15.22

As of March 8, 2006 there were approximately 243 stockholders of record of our common stock.

In November 2004, we acquired Dspfactory Ltd. (Dspfactory), a leader in ultra-low power digital
signal processing technology for digital hearing aids and other low power applications. The consideration
that we paid for that acquisition included 1,314,000 shares of unregistered common stock. We expect to
pay an additional $8.5 million worth of unregistered common stock during the second quarter of 2006 in
connection with the Dspfactory acquisition based on the achievement of certain revenue milestones.

Dividend Policy

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain earnings to
finance future growth, and therefore do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Our
senior credit facilities prohibit us from paying cash dividends on cur equity securities, except in limited
circumstances. See note 6 to our audited consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this
report for a more complete description of limitations on our ability to pay dividends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical financial data for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
and as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 were derived from our audited consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this annual report. The selected historical financial data for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001 and as of December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were derived from our
auditedconsolidated financial statements, which are not included in this annual report. When comparing
the 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial position and operating results to prior periods, you should note
that the initial public offering of our common stock and the issuance of our senior subordinated notes
during 2003 had a significant impact on our financial position and operating results. When comparing the
2005, 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial position and operating results to prior periods, you should note
that the MSB acquisition in June 2002 had a significant impact on our 2005, 2004 and 2003 financial
position and operating results. The Flextronics acquisition in 2005 and the Dspfactory acquisition in 2004
also impact the consolidated financial position and operating results when comparing those periods to prior
periods. You should read the following tables in conjunction with other information contained under
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” our audited
consolidated financial statements and related notes and other financial information contained elsewhere in
this annual report.

Years Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In millions, except per share and percent information)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

REVENUE . ...\ttt $503.6 $517.3 $454.1 § 3453 $ 326.5
GIOSS PIOAL . oo oo et 2372 2463  198.8 130.3 140.1
Net income (loss) ............cooiiiiiniion.. 20.6 52.4 (0.4) 5.1 12.7
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ 20.6 § 524 $(46.7) $ (57.4) $ (34.9)
Basic net income (loss) per common share........... $024 $ 063 $(0.84) $ (1.24) $ (0.76)
Fully diluted net income (loss) per common share .... $ 023 $ 0.60 $(0.84) $ (1.24) $ (0.76)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (end of the period):
Cash ... e $ 967 $161.7 $119.1 § 622 § 287
Accounts receivable, net. . ........ .. ... ... ... 99.9 78.6 73.6 66.0 36.2
Inventories ...... ... .. 64.3 52.2 45.6 394 26.0
Total @ssets .. ....cvvt i 739.7 643.2 550.1 502.5 384.3
Long-term liabilities . .............. .. ..o ... 8.2 24 04 3.1 34
Long-term debt, including current portion............ 317.9 253.5 254.7 160.1 173.3
Series A Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock ......... — — — 233.7 204.2
Series B Junior Redeemable Convertible Preferred

Stock .. — — — 190.5 164.9
Series C Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock ......... — — — 79.3 —
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) .................. 298.7 286.1 205.0 (240.4) (189.2)
Other Financial Data:
Gross profit margin...........cov ... 47.1% 47.6% 43.8% 37.7% 42.9%
Research and development ........................ $874 $772 $702 § 521 % 421
Depreciation and amortization...................... $ 511 $438 $448 § 470 § 44.1
Capital expenditures .. .............. ... ... 0..... $345 §$324 $26 $ 220 §$§ 207
Operating cash flow ......... ... oo, $595 $962 $707 $ 811 § 426
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to, the attached consolidated financial statements. Except for the historical information contained
herein, the discussions in this section contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those discussed below due to a number of factors,
including the factors identified under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A or elsewhere in this report, and other risks
and uncertainties indicated from time to time in our filings with the SEC. ‘

Overview

We are a leader in the design and manufacture of customer specific integrated analog mixed signal
semiconductor products. We focus on the automotive, medical and industrial markets, which have many
products with significant real world, or analog, interface requirements. We have organized our business into
two operating segments: integrated mixed signal products, and structured digital products. During 2005, our
mixed signal foundry services segment was combined with our integrated mixed signal products segment.
Integrated mixed signal products combine analog and digital functions on a single chip to form a customer
defined system-level solution. We also provide outsourced mixed signal foundry services for other
semiconductor designers and manufacturers. Structured digital products, which involve the conversion of
higher cost programmable digital logic integrated circuits into lower cost digital custom integrated circuits,
provide us with growth opportunities and digital design expertise that we use to support the design of
system solutions for customers in our target markets.

When evaluating our business, we generally look at financial measures, such as revenue, gross margins
and operating margins. When reviewing operating margins, we exclude restructuring charges, amortization
of acquisition related intangibles and other unusual charges. We also use internal tracking measures, such
as projected three-year revenue from design wins, to gauge the future health of our business and the
capacity utilization of our fabrication facilities. OQur projected three-year revenue from design wins
increased by 9% in 2005 when compared with 2004. We are seeing continued softness in our capacity
utilization. Capacity utilization in the fourth quarter of 2005 was 71%. This is a measure of the degree to
which our manufacturing assets are being used, thus sharing the fixed costs of these items across multiple
products. Our gross margins could continue to be negatively affected by this in the future. Other key
metrics we use to analyze our business include days sale outstanding (DSO) and days of inventory. Based
on annualized fourth quarter 2005 revenues of $139.6 million, which includes a full quarter of revenues
from the Flextronics acquisition, DSO increased from 55 days in 2004 to 65 days in 2005 due to a larger
than normal amount of billings in the last month of the year, the granting of some contractually extended
payment terms and late customer payments throughout 2005. Based on annualized fourth quarter 2005
cost of revenue, which includes a full quarter of cost of revenue from the Flextronics acquisition, and
excluding customer funded development cost of revenue, days of inventory increased to 81 days in 2005
from 77 days in 2004. This was due primarily to additional inventory built in preparation for the relocation
of our Manila test facility.

In June 2002, we acquired the mixed signal business of Alcatel Microelectronics NV from
STMicroelectronics NV. We refer to this as the MSB acquisition. The MSB acquisition increased our
analog and mixed signal engineering team, enhanced our relationships with major European customers,
provided us with additional high voltage and wireless technologies that enable us to offer new types of
custom integrated circuits to our end markets and provided us with two fabs in Oudenaarde, Belgium. The
results of operations for 20035, 2004 and 2003 include MSB for the entire period.

In November 2004, we acquired Dspfactory Ltd. (Dspfactory), a leader in ultra-low power digital
signal processing technology for digital hearing aids and other low power applications. The results of
operations for 2004 include Dspfactory from the date of acquisition. See note 16 to the audited
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report.
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In September 2005, we acquired the semiconductor business of Flextronics International USA Inc.,
which specializes in custom mixed signal products, imaging sensors and digital application specific
integrated circuits including field programmable gate array conversion products. The results of operations
for 2005 include Flextronics from the date of acquisition. See note 15 to the audited consolidated financial
statements in Item 8 of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires our management to make estimates and judgments that affect our reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses and related disclosures. We have identified revenue recognition,
inventories, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, income taxes and stock options as
areas involving critical accounting policies and the most significant judgments and estimates.

We evaluate our estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on assumiptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Cur experience
and assumptions form the basis for our judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may vary from what we anticipate and different
assumptions or estimates about the future could change our reported results. We believe the following
accounting policies are the most critical to us, in that they are important to the portrayal of our financial
statements and they require the most difficult, subjective or complex judgments in the preparation of our
financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Several criteria must be met before we can recognize revenue from our products and revenue relating
to engineering design and product development. We must apply our judgment in determining when
revenue recognition criteria are met.

We recognize revenue from products sold directly to end customers when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, the price is fixed and determinable, delivery is fulfilled and collectibility is reasonably
assured. In certain situations, we ship products through freight forwarders. In most cases, revenue is
recognized when the product is delivered to the customer’s carrier, regardless of the terms and conditions
of sale. The only exception is where title does not pass until the product is received by the customer. In
that case, revenue is recognized upon receipt by the customer. Estimates of product returns and
allowances, based on actual historical experience and our knowledge of potential issues, are recorded at the
time revenue is recognized and are deducted from revenue.

Revenue from contracts to perform engineering design and product development are recognized as
milestones are achieved, which approximates the percentage-of-completion method. Costs associated with
such contracts are expensed as incurred, except as discussed below with regard to loss accruals recorded.
Revenues under contracts acquired as part of the Flextronics acquisition are recorded using the completed
contract method. This method is consistently applied to each contract and revenue is recognized
accordingly when the item enters production or when the contract is complete.

For contracts that are recognized as milestones are achieved, a typical milestone billing structure is
40% at the start of the project, 40% at the creation of the reticle set and 20% upon delivery of the
prototypes. Since up to 40% of revenue is billed and recognized at the start of the design development
work and, therefore, could resnlt in the acceleration of revenue recognition, we analyze those billings and
the status of in-process design development projects at the end of each reporting period in order to
determine that the milestone billings approximate percentage-of-completion on an aggregate basis. We
compare each project’s stage with the total level of effort required to complete the project, which we
believe is representative of the cost-to-cost method of determining percentage-of-completion. Based on this
analysis, the relatively short-term nature of our design development process and the billing and recognition
of 20% of the project revenue after design development work is complete (which effectively defers 20% of
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the revenue recognition to the end of the contract), we believe our milestone method approximates the
percentage-of-completion method in all material respects.

Our engineering design and product development contracts generally involve pre-determined amounts
of revenue. We review each contract that is still in process at the end of each reporting period and
estimate the cost of each activity vet to be performed under that contract. This cost determination involves
our judgment and the uncertainties inherent in the design and development of integrated circuits. If we
determine that our costs associated with a particular development contract exceed the revenue associated
with such contract, we estimate the amount of the loss and establish a corresponding reserve.

Inventories

We generally initiate production of a majority of our semiconductors once we have received an order
from a customer. Based on forecasted demand from specific customers, we may build up inventories of
finished goods in anticipation of subsequent purchase orders. We purchase and maintain raw materials at
sufficient levels to meet lead times based on forecasted demand. If forecasted demand exceeds actual
demand, we may need to provide an allowance for excess or obsolete quantities. We provide an allowance
for inventories that are in excess of forecasted demand. Forecasted demand is determined based on
multiple factors including: historical sales or inventory usage, expected future sales, other projections or the
nature of the inventories. We also review other inventories for indicators of impairment and provide an
allowance as deemed necessary. We also provide an allowance for obsolete inventory, which is written off
at the time of disposal.

We state inventories at the lower of cost or market (using the first-in, first-out method). The
Company determines the cost of inventory by adding an amount representative of manufacturing costs plus
a burden rate for general manufacturing overhead to the inventory at major steps in the manufacturing
process.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

We regularly evaluate the carrying amounts of long-lived assets, including property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, as well as the related amortization periods, to determine whether
adjustments to these amounts or to the useful lives are required based on current circumstances or events.
The evaluation, which involves significant management judgment, is based on various analyses including
cash flow and profitability projections. To the extent such projections indicate that future undiscounted
cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amounts of the related long-lived assets, the carrying
amount of the underlying assets will be reduced, with the reduction charged to expense so that the
carrying amount is equal to fair value, primarily determined based on future discounted cash flows. To the
extent such evaluation indicates that the useful lives of property, plant and equipment are different than
originally estimated, the amount of future depreciation expense is modified such that the remaining net
book value is depreciated over the revised remaining useful life. We entered into a non-compete agreement
with Nippon Mining and its subsidiary in connection with our December 21, 2000 recapitalization.
According to this agreement, each of Nippon Mining and its subsidiary agreed to not engage in the custom
semiconductor business anywhere in the world through December 2005. In our 2003 review of the carrying
value of intangible assets, we reached a determination that the carrying value of the non-compete had been
impaired based primarily on a change in Nippon Mining’s and its subsidiary’s business focus and related
capabilities such that they did not intend to focus on custom semiconductors. Effective June 26, 2003, we
released Nippon Mining and its subsidiary from the non-compete agreement and we recorded an
impairment charge of $20.0 million related to the non-cash write-off of the remaining value of the non-
compete provision of this agreement.

Goodwill

Under the guidelines of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” we assess goodwill at least annually for impairment using fair value
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measurement techniques. Specifically, goodwill impairment is determined using a two-step process. The
first step is to identify potential impairment by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit to which the
goodwill is assigned with the unit’s net book value (or carrying amount), including goodwill. If the fair
value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, there is no deemed impairment of goodwill and
the second step of the impairment test is unnecessary. However, if the carrying amount of the reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the
amount of goodwill impairment loss, if any. The second step compares the implied fair value of the
reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting
unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to that excess. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the
amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination. That is, the fair value of the reporting unit is
allocated to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit (including any unrecognized intangible assets) as if
the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting unit was
the purchase price paid to acquire the reporting unit. We annually test our goodwill for impairment during
the fourth quarter. Since the adoption of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, our testing has not indicated any
impairment.

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit under the first step of the goodwill impairment test and
determining the fair value of individual assets and liabilities of a reporting unit (including unrecognized
intangible assets) under the second step of the goodwill impairment test is judgmental in nature and often
involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions could have a
significant impact on whether an impairment charge is recognized, and on the magnitude of any such
impairment charge. To assist in the process of determining goodwill impairment, we may obtain appraisals
from independent valuation firms. In addition to the use of independent valuation firms, we perform
internal valuation analyses and consider other market information that is publicly available. Estimates of
fair value are primarily determined using discounted cash flows and market comparisons of recent
transactions. These approaches use significant estimates and assumptions including the amount and timing
of projected future cash flows, discount rates reflecting the risk inherent in the future cash flows, perpetual
growth rates, determination of appropriate market comparables and the determination of whether a
premium or discount should be applied to these comparables.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded based on the liability method, which requires recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities based on differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and
liabilities measured using enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences
are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce our deferred tax asset to an amount
we determine is more likely than not to be realized based on our analyses of past operating results, future
reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and projected taxable income, including tax strategies
available to generate future taxable income. Our analyses of future taxable income are subject to a wide
range of variables, many of which involve estimates, and therefore our deferred tax asset may not be
ultimately realized. Ultilization of our net operating loss carryforwards may be subject to an annual
limitation under the “change of ownership” provisions of the Internal Revenue Code.

Stock Options

Through the year ended December 31, 2005, we have elected to follow the intrinsic value-based
method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25), and related interpretations in accounting for employee stock options rather than
adopting the alternative fair value accounting provided under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” Therefore, we have not recorded any compensation expense for stock options we granted
to our employees where the exercise price equals the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant
and the exercise price, number of shares eligible for issuance under the options and vesting period are
fixed. Deferred stock-based compensation is recorded when stock options are granted to employees at
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exercise prices less than the estimated fair value of the underlying common stock on the grant date.
Historically, we generally determined the estimated fair value of our common stock based on independent
valuations. We recorded deferred stock-based compensation of approximately $0.5 million in 2003, prior to
our initial public offering. We comply with the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 and

SFAS No. 148, which require that we disclose our pro forma net income or loss and net income or loss
per common share as if we had expensed the fair value of the options in determining net income or loss.
In calculating such fair value, there are certain assumptions that we use, as disclosed in our consolidated
financial statements.

Certain of our options that we issued in 2000 included options to purchase shares of our Series A
Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock. Under the terms of these options, the exercise prices
changed in conjunction with changes in the accreted value of the related Preferred Stock. We recorded
and adjusted compensation expense each reporting period, as required under APB 235, for the intrinsic
value generated by the change in the exercise price. During the third quarter of 2003, all options to
purchase preferred stock were redeemed, with accrued amounts due being paid in October 2003. This
redemption resulted in an additional charge to compensation expense of approximately $2.9 million during

the third quarter of 2003.

During 2003, we accelerated the vesting of certain unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock options
previously awarded to employees and officers that had exercise prices per share of $13.00 to $20.00. As a
result, options to purchase approximately 1.9 million shares of our stock became exercisable immediately.
We expect this acceleration will reduce the pre-tax expense that we would have been required to recognize
with respect to stock-based compensation under adoption of SFAS No. 123R by approximately
$5.0 million in 2003, $2.7 million in 2007 and $0.9 million in the aggregate for 2008 and 2009.

Resuits of Operations

The following table summarizes certain information relating to our operating results, as derived from

our audited consolidated financial statements:

Statement of Operations Data:

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in Millions)

Revenue ...... .. ... $503.6 100.0% $517.3 100.0% $454.1 100.0%
Grossprofit...... ... 237.2 47.1% 246.3 47.6% 198.8 43.8%
Operating expenses:

Research and development ................... 87.4 174% 772 149%  70.2 15.5%

Marketing and selling ........... P 351 7.8% 430 83% 378 3.3%

General and administrative .. ................. 28.5 57% 287 55% 227 5.0%

Amortization of acquisition-related intangible

ASSETS o e 9.0 1.8% 1.3 0.3% 4.8 1.1%

In-process research and development .......... 0.8 0.2% 1.5 0.3% — 0.0%

Restructuring and impairment charges ......... 5.3 1.1% 7.9 1.5%  21.7 4.8%

Nonrecurring charges ........... ... . ...... — 0.0% — 0.0% 11.4 2.5%

Total operating expenses . .................... 170.1 33.8% 159.6 30.9% 168.6 37.1%
Operating income .. ............ooviii ... 67.1 13.3%  86.7 16.8%  30.2 6.6%
Other income (expense): _

Interest expense, net ........ ... .. .. .. ... ... (13.3) 2.7)% (18.6) (3.6)% (22.5) (5.0)%

Other expense, net ..., (347) 69% (0.7) (0.1)% (16.2) (3.6)%
Income (loss) before income taxes .............. 18.6 3.7% 67.4 13.0% (8.5) (1.9%
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ............. (20) 0.4)% 15.0 29%  (8.1) (1.8)%
Netincome (loss) ............................ $ 206 41% $ 524 10.1% $ (0.4) (0.D)%
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Approximately 29% in 2005, 35% in 2004, and 36% in 2003 of our revenues are denominated in euros.
The semiconductor industry is cyclical in nature. Our product sales track the general market conditions
seen throughout the semiconductor industry.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared With Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenue

Revenue in 2005 decreased 3% to $503.6 million from $517.3 million in 2004. Excluding revenues of
$23.8 million in 2005 due to the Flextronics acquisition, revenue decreased 7% to $479.8 million in 2005.
In 2005 we experienced a significant decrease in our communications end market driven by the loss of
foundry revenues to STMicroelectronics as a result of the expiration of a take-or-pay contract in June
2004. Across our other end markets, but primarily in automotive and industrial, we experienced a greater
than normal roll-off of revenues from older products in 2005 as compared to 2004, This was partially offset
by increases in medical and defense revenues. The increase in medical revenues was due in part to a full
year of revenues from our Dspfactory acquisition in November 2004.

According to Gartner Dataquest (December 2005), the application specific segment of the
semiconductor industry is forecasted to grow by 9% from 2004 to 2005. For both application specific
integrated circuits, and application specific standard products, the market is expected to grow by the same
amount, 9%, in 2005. The Flextronics acquisition provided us greater entry into the market for both mixed
signal and digital application specific integrated circuits as well as CMOS linear image sensors. The World
Semiconductor Trade Statistics (WSTS, January 2006) noted that the market for image sensors grew by
11% in 2005. Our revenues declined by 3% over this same period, underperforming the forecasted growth
of the application specific integrated circuit segment, where the majority of our revenues were derived in
2008.

Integrated mixed signal revenue of $393.2 million in 2005 decreased 1% compared with 2004 sales of
$397.7 million. In 2005, we saw strong growth in the medical end market for this segment, offset by
decreases in the communications end market for the reasons noted above. This segment saw a decrease in
average selling prices, due in part to changes in pricing as well as, to changes in the product mix, which
was partially offset by an increase in unit volume sold, due to greater product offerings with the addition of
revenue from the Dspfactory and Flextronics acquisitions.

Structured digital products revenue was $110.4 million in 2005, a decrease of 8% over 2004 revenue of
$119.6 million. Increased revenue from the defense and industrial end markets were offset by decreases in
the communications and computing end markets in 2005. This segment saw a decrease in average selling
prices, due primarily to changes in the product mix, which was partially offset by an increase in unit
volume sold, due to greater product offerings with the addition of revenue from the Flextronics acquisition.

We formerly had a third segment, mixed signal foundry services, which we have combined into the
integrated mixed signal products segment.

The following table represents our revenue by region for the years ended December 31:

2005 2004
NOrth AMEIICa . . . ot e 425% 42.1%
BUrope . . o 37.8% 41.3%
A ST o 19.7% 16.6%

Gross Profit

Cost of revenue consists primarily of purchased materials, labor and overhead (including depreciation)
associated with the design and manufacture of products sold. Costs related to non-recurring engineering
fees are included in cost of revenue to the extent that they are reimbursed by our customers under a
development arrangement as such reimbursements are recorded as revenue. Costs associated with
unfunded non-recurring engineering are classified as research and development because we typically retain
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ownership of the proprietary rights to intellectual property that has been developed in connection with non-
recurring engineering work. Gross profit decreased to $237.2 million, or 47.1% of revenue, in 2005 from
$246.3 million, or 47.6% of revenue, in 2004. The decrease in gross profit percentage is a result of
decreased utilization of our wafer fabrication facilities, inefficiencies related to the relocation of our test
operations in the Philippines and the transfer of our sort operations from Pocatello and Oudenaarde to the
Philippines, and a $3.7 million charge related to ongoing discussions involving a previous quality issue with
one customer.

Operating Expenses

Research and development expenses consist primarily of activities related to process engineering, cost
of design tools, investments in development libraries, technology license agreements and product
development. Research and development expenses increased to $87.4 million, or 17.4% of revenue, in 2005
from $77.2 million, or 14.9% of revenue, in 2004. This increase is primarily attributable to higher expenses
driven by increased design wins and the associated non-customer funded expenses, as well as incremental
expense from the Flextronics acquisition.

Marketing and selling expenses consist primarily of commissions to sales representatives, salaries,
benefits, and commissions of sales and marketing personnel and advertising and communication costs.
Marketing and selling expenses decreased to $39.1 million, or 7.8% of revenue, in 2005 from $43.0 million,
or 8.3% of revenue, in 2004. This decrease is due to decreased costs associated with lower sales levels as
well as the results of cost reduction efforts, including focusing on the use of internal sales people rather
than sales rep firms, partially offset by additional costs related to the Flextronics acquisition.

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and benefits of our administrative
staff, professional fees related to audit and tax services and advisorv fees for various consulting projects.
General and administrative expenses decreased to $28.5 million, or 5.7% of revenue, in 2005 from
$28.7 million, or 5.5% of revenue, in 2004. This decrease was primarily due to lower management incentive
plan costs in 2005 as our financial performance did not meet the minimum requirements to trigger
payments under the plan.

Amortization of acquisition related intangible assets increased to $9.0 million from $1.3 million in
2004, This increase is due to a full year of amortization of intangible assets associated with the Dspfactory
acquisition as well as a partial year of amortization of the intangible assets associated with the Flextronics
acquisition.

In-process research and development charges were $0.8 million in 2005 related to the Flextronics
acquisition compared with $1.5 million in 2004 related to the Dspfactory acquisition.

We recorded $5.3 million in restructuring charges in 2005, compared to $7.9 million in 2004. The
amounts in 2005 are related to several restructuring plans, including the announced consolidation of our
Fab 1 in Belgium and the relocation of our Philippines facility combined with the transfer of our wafer
sort operations in the United States and Belgium to our new facility in the Philippines. The amount in
2004 includes charges for employee severance and other items as a result of our restructuring program
announced in the fourth quarter of 2004, This program includes headcount reductions related to the
consolidation of our sort operations in the United States and Belgiurn to the Philippines, as well as other
reductions in force resulting from cost containment measures.

Operating Income

Operating income decreased to $67.1 million in 2005 compared with $86.7 million in 2004, driven by
lower revenues, lower gross profit margin and higher operating expenses, particularly intangible
amortization and research and development costs.

Integrated mixed signal products operating income decreased to $44.8 million, or 11.4% of segment
revenue in 2005 from $71.7 million, or 18.0% of segment revenue, in 2004. This decrease is attributable to
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lower revenue levels and lower capacity utilization, which drove higher per unit product costs and a
reallocation of resources to support this segment’s design win activity.

Structured digital products operating income increased to $27.6 million, or 25.0% of segment revenue
in 2005 from $22.9 million, or 19.1% of segment revenue, in 2004. This increase is attributable to
improved product sales mix and a decrease in operating expense due to a reallocation of resources to
support integrated mixed signal design win activity.

Net Interest Expense

Net interest expense for 2005 decreased to $13.8 million, compared with $18.6 million in 2004. The
lower interest expense was primarily attributable to the redemption of our senior subordinated notes (see
further discussion in “Liquidity and Capital Resources”), partially offset by a higher balance on our term
loan beginning in September 2005 due to additional financing obtained in conjunction with the Flextronics
acquisition.

Other Expense

Other expense in 2005 increased to $34.7 million from $0.7 million in 2004. This increase is primarily
due to charges associated with the redemption of our senior subordinated notes in the first quarter of 2005.

Income Taxes

Income tax benefit was $2.0 million in 2005 compared with an income tax expense of $15.0 million in
2004. The effective tax rate for 2005 was not a meaningful number. The effective tax rate was 22% in
2004. The primary reason for recording a tax benefit on positive net income before taxes in 2005 is that
there was a loss and a corresponding tax benefit recorded in the U.S. for the year related to our debt
refinancing activities in the first quarter, while at the same time there was income and a corresponding tax
expense recorded in foreign jurisdictions with lower statutory tax rates. While the income in the foreign
jurisdictions more than offset the U.S. losses in 2005, the foreign tax expense was not large enough to
offset the U.S. tax benefit. Contributing to the large U.S. tax benefit was a reduction in our valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets. Based on projections of taxable income for future periods, we reversed
approximately $6.2 million of valuation allowance in 2005. We have reduced our deferred tax assets
through the use of a valuation allowance to amounts that are more likely than not to be realized. We will
continue to evaluate the need to increase or decrease the valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets
based upon the anticipated pre-tax operating results of future periods.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared With Year Ended December 31, 2003
Revenue

Revenue in 2004 increased 14% to $517.3 million from $454.1 million in 2003. In 2004, we benefited
from strong market conditions during the first half of the year. During the second half of 2004, we began
to see the demand from some of our end markets weakening. We experienced strong growth in our ‘
automotive, medical and industrial end markets, as revenues for 2004 in those markets increased 19% in
the aggregate over 2003. Communications was the weakest end market, as revenues increased three
percent in 2004 over 2003. Communications revenues were particularly weak in the second half of 2004,
due primarily to the expiration of the take-or-pay arrangement with STMicroelectronics in June 2004.
Incremental revenues from our acquisition of Dspfactory in November 2004 slightly offset weaker market
conditions in the second half of 2004,

According to Gartner Dataguest (December 2004), the application specific integrated circuit segment
of the semiconductor industry grew by 13% from 2003 to 2004. For both application specific integrated
circuits, and application specific standard products, the market grew by 18% in 2004. Our acquisition of
Dspfactory provided us greater entry into the market for application specific standard products. Our
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revenues grew by 14% over this same period, in line with the growth of the application specific integrated
circuit segment, where the majority of our revenues were derived in 2004.

Integrated mixed signal sales of $397.7 million increased 11% over 2003 sales of $357.4 million. In
2004, we saw steady growth across all end markets for this segment offset by decreased mixed signal
foundry sales to STMicroelectronics as a result of the expiration of the take-or-pay arrangement in June
2004. Excluding mixed signal foundry sales, which distort price/volume relationships, this segment saw
both an increase in average selling prices, due to product mix improvements, and an increase in unit
volume sold, due to strong market conditions, particularly during the first half of 2004,

Structured digital products revenue was $119.6 million, an increase of 24% over 2003 sales of
$96.7 million. Increased revenue from the computing, industrial and communications end markets, as well
as revenue from our XPressArray™ products, helped to increase structured digital products sales in 2004.
In the fourth quarter of 2004 we saw significant weakness in the communications end market for this
segment. For the full year 2004, this segment saw a decrease in average selling prices due to changes in

product mix, but an increase in unit volume sold, due to strong market conditions, particularly during the
first half of 2004. :

The following table represents our regional revenue for the years ended December 31:

2004 2003
North AMeriCa . . ..o o e 42.1% 40.9%
BUrOpE . . .o 41.3% 40.7%
AT . . 16.6% 18.4%

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased to $246.3 million, or 47.6% of revenue, in 2004 from $198.8 million, or 43.8%
of revenue, in 2003. The increase in gross profit percentage is a result of our continued cost reduction
efforts, increased utilization of our fabrication facilities, particularly in the first half of 2004, and an
increased percentage of higher margin products in the mix of the products we sold. During 2004, mixed
signal foundry revenues as a percentage of total revenues decreased to 20.7% from 25.6% in 2003. This
helped to increase our overall gross margin as margins in our mixed signal foundry segment are generally
lower than the company average.

Operating Expenses

Research and development expenses increased to $77.2 million, or 14.9% of revenue, in 2004 from
$70.2 million, or 15.5% of revenue, in 2003. This increase is primarily attributable to expenses related to
increased design wins and the associated non-customer funded expenses, as well as incremental expense
from the Dspfactory acquisition.

Marketing and selling expenses increased to $43.0 million, or 8.3% of revenue, in 2004 compared to
$37.8 million, or 8.3% of revenue, in 2003. This increase is due to increased costs associated with higher
sales levels.

General and administrative expenses increased to $28.7 millior, or 5.5% of revenue, in 2004 compared
to $22.7 million, or 5.0% of revenue, in 2003. This increase was primarily due to increases in professional
fees associated with various consulting projects, including Sarbanes-Oxley compliance.

Amortization of acquisition related intangible assets decreased to $1.3 million in 2004 compared with
$4.8 million in 2003. This decrease is primarily due to amortization of an acquisition-related intangible
asset in 2003, but not in 2004, due to the impairment of the intangible asset in June 2003. This decrease
was partially offset by increased amortization expense in 2004 related to amortization of intangible assets
associated with the Dspfactory acquisition.
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In the fourth quarter of 2004, we recorded a charge of $1.5 million for in-process research and
development related to the Dspfactory acquisition. No comparable amounts were recorded in 2003,

We recorded $7.9 million in restructuring charges in the fourth quarter of 2004, compared to
$21.7 million in 2003. This amount includes charges for employee severance and other items as a result of
our restructuring program announced in the fourth quarter of 2004. This program includes headcount
reductions related to the consolidation of our sort operations in the United States and Belgium to the
Philippines as well as other reductions in force resulting from cost containment measures. We expect to
realize $4 million per quarter in cost savings as a result of this action by the fourth quarter of 2005.

In the second quarter of 2003, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $20.0 million related to
the write off of the unamortized balance of an intangible asset that had no remaining value. We entered
into a non-compete agreement with Nippon Mining and its subsidiary that was our former parent in
connection with our December 21, 2000 recapitalization pursuant to which they agreed to not engage in
the custom semiconductor business anywhere in the world through December 2005. In our second quarter
review of the carrying value of intangible assets in 2003, we reached a determination that the carrying
value of the non-compete had been impaired based primarily on a change in Nippon Mining’s and our
former parent’s business focus and related capabilities such that they did not intend to focus on custom
semiconductors. Effective June 26, 2003, we released Nippon Mining and our former parent from the non-
compete agreement and we expensed the $20.0 million remaining unamortized balance of the agreement as
of the effective date.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we recorded restructuring charges of $1.7 million. This amount was
primarily related to employee severance as a result of employee terminations and the termination of
services with certain sales representative firms.

In September 2003, we recorded nonrecurring charges of $11.4 million. This amount includes a one-
time payment of $8.5 million associated with amendments to our advisory agreements as well as
compensation expense of $2.9 million related to the redemption of options to purchase our Series A and
Series B Preferred Stock. The advisory agreements were in place prior to our initial public offering and
provided for Citigroup Venture Capital (CVC) and Francisco Partners to provide financial, advisory and
consulting services to us. In conjunction with our IPO, we terminated the advisory agreement and the
associated future scheduled annual fees. These charges did not recur in 2004.

Operating Income

Operating income increased to $86.7 million in 2004 compared with $30.2 million in 2003, driven by
increases in operating income across all of our segments and lower restructuring and nonrecurring charges
in 2004 as compared with 2003.

Integrated mixed signal products operating income increased to $71.7 million, or 18.0% of segment
revenue, in 2004 from $47.8 million, or 13.4% of segment revenue, in 2003. This increase is attributable to
increased revenue levels and improved capacity utilization, which drove lower per unit product costs,
particularly in the first half of 2004, as well as the decrease of low margin revenue associated with the
STMicroelectronics take-or-pay agreement that had been in place for all of 2003, but only the first half of
2004.

Structured digital products operating income increased to $22.9 million, or 19.1% of segment revenue,
in 2004 from $15.5 million, or 16.0% of segment revenue, in 2003. This increase is attributable to
improved product sales mix and improved factory utilization, which drove lower per unit product costs,
particularly in the first half of 2004.

Net Interest Expense

Net interest expense for 2004 decreased to $18.6 million, compared with $22.5 million in 2003. The
lower interest expense was primarily attributable to the decreased debt balance of our senior subordinated
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notes (see further discussion in “Liquidity and Capital Resources™) and increased interest income related
to our higher average cash balances in 2004.

Other Expense

Other expense in 2004 decreased to $0.7 million from $16.2 million in 2003. This decrease is
primarily due to the $7.9 million non-cash write-off of deferred financing fees, the $7.5 million premium
paid in conjunction with the redemption of $70.0 million of our senior subordinated notes and $0.8 million
relating to the settlement of hedging transactions, all of which occurred in 2003.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $15.0 million in 2004, compared with an income tax benefit of $8.1 million
in 2003. The effective tax rate was 22% in 2004. Our effective tax rate in 2004 is favorably impacted by a
reduction in our deferred tax valuation allowance because of improved operating results in the
United States. We have a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to amounts that are more
likely than not to be realized. Based on the operating results of 2004, we reversed approximately
$6.4 million of valuation allowance during 2004. We will continue to evaluate the need to increase or
decrease the valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets based upon the anticipated pre-tax operating
results of future periods.

Our effective tax rate was 95% in 2003. The effective tax rate was unusually high as a percentage of
our pre-tax loss due to jurisdictional profit and loss mix. Jurisdictions with losses where tax benefits were
recorded were those that generally had higher statutory tax rates, whereas jurisdictions with income where
tax expense was recorded were those that generally had lower statutory tax rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal cash requirements are to fund working capital needs, meet required debt payments,
including debt service payments on our senior credit facilities, complete planned maintenance of equipment
and equip our fabrication facilities. We anticipate that cash flow from operations, together with available
borrowings under our revolving credit facility, will be sufficient to meet working capital needs, interest
payment requirements on our debt obligations and capital expenditures for at least the next twelve months.
Although we believe these resources may also meet our liquidity needs beyond that period, the adequacy
of these resources will depend on our growth, semiconductor industry conditions and the capital
expenditures necessary to support capacity and technology improvements.

On September 9, 2005, we amended our senior secured credit facilities by borrowing an additional
$110.0 million under the term loan to fund a portion of the Flextronics Acquisition. The amended senior
credit facilities consist of the amended senior secured term loan and a $90.0 million revolving credit
facility, of which $0.3 million was allocated to a letter of credit as of December 31, 2005. Pursuant to the
senior credit facility, the covenants require 100% of the domestic corporations’ equity and 65% of the
directly owned foreign corporations’ equity be collateralized. The term loan requires principal payments of
$0.8 million, together with accrued interest, on the last day of March, June, September and December of
each year, with the balance due on April 1, 2012. The interest rate on the senior secured term loan on
December 31, 2005 was 5.9%, based on LIBOR +1.5. The revolving credit facility ($40.0 million of which
may be in the form of letters of credit) is available for working capital and general corporate purposes. In
addition, we recorded $1.6 million in deferred financing costs related to the amended senior credit facility,
included in other long-term assets in the accompanying audited consolidated balance sheet, which will be
amortized over the term of the senior credit facilities.

The facilities require us to maintain a consolidated interest coverage ratio and a maximum leverage
ratio and contain certain other nonfinancial covenants, all as defined within the credit agreement. The
facilities also generally restrict payment of dividends to parties outside of the consolidated entity. We were
in compliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2005. We anticipate continuing to be in
compliance with these covenants in the first quarter of 2006.
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On March 2, 2005, we announced a tender offer for our 10%:% senior subordinated notes as well as a
refinancing of the then-existing $125.0 million senior secured term loan and $90.0 million revolving credit
facility. On April 1, 2005, 100% of the outstanding notes had been repurchased and the indenture
governing the senior subordinated notes was discharged. Proceeds from a new senior secured term loan of
$210.0 million, entered into on April 1, 2005, and existing cash of $75.8 million were used to purchase the
outstanding notes for $130.0 million, pay a premium on the notes and expenses associated with the tender
of $28.0 million in the aggregate, which is recorded in other expense on the accompanying audited
consolidated statement of operations, repay the outstanding balance of the previous senior secured term
loan of $123.2 million, with the remainder used to pay accrued interest on the notes and the previous
senior secured term loan, and pay expenses related to the refinancing of our senior credit facilities. As a
result of these transactions, total debt was reduced by $43.2 million. In conjunction with the refinancing,
we recorded a charge of $6.7 million in other expense on the accompanying audited consolidated statement
of operations in the first quarter of 2005 for the write-off of deferred financing and other costs associated
with the notes and the previous senior credit facilities. In addition, we recorded $2.9 million in deferred
financing costs related to the new senior credit facility, included in other long-term assets in the
accompanying audited consolidated balance sheet, which will be amortized over the term of the senior
credit facilities.

We generated $59.5 million in cash from operating activities in 2005, compared to $96.2 million in
cash from operating activities in 2004. This decrease was primarily due to costs associated with the tender
offer and redemption of our 10%% senior subordinated notes during the first quarter of 2005 and increases
in working capital.

Other significant sources and uses of cash can be divided into investing activities and financing
activities. During 2005 and 2004, we invested in capital equipment in the amounts of $34.5 million and
$32.4 million, respectively. See “Capital Expenditures” below. During 2005 we also paid cash of
$138.5 million for the Flextronics Acquisition, of which $110.0 was financed by increased bank debt.

During 2005, we generated net cash from financing activities of $63.6 million due primarily to the
addition of $110.0 million to our term loan in the third quarter of 2005 to finance the Flextronics
acquisition, partially offset by lowering our long-term debt by $43.2 million in conjunction with the tender
offer and redemption of our 10%:% senior subordinated notes and the refinancing of our senior credit
facilities. During 2004, we generated net cash from financing activities of $1.3 million, primarily as a result
of the issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options.

Capital Expenditures

During 2005, we spent $34.5 million for capital expenditures, compared with $32.4 million in 2004.
Capital expenditures for 2005 focused on transferring our wafer sort operations in the United States and
Belgium to a new facility in the Philippines and manufacturing capacity increases. Our test operations in
the Philippines are also currently being relocated to a new facility. Our annual capital expenditures are
limited by the terms of the senior credit facilities.
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Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Other than operating leases for certain equipment and real estate, purchase agreements for certain
chemicals, raw materials and services at fixed prices or similar instruments, we have no significant
off-balance sheet transactions and we are not a guarantor of any other entity’s debt or other financial
obligations. The following table presents a summary of our contractual obligations and payments, by
period, as of December 31, 2005.

Cash Payments Due by Period

2-3 After
Total 1 Year Years 4-5 Years 5 Years

(In millions)

Seniorterm loan ..................... ..., $317.9 § 32 $ 64 $ 6.4 $301.9
Total long-term debt . ...................... 317.9 3.2 6.4 6.4 301.9
Capital lease obligations .................... — — — -~ —
Operating leases. ...t 384 6.8 11.8 1.5 12.3
Purchase obligations ....................... 19.4 8.2 5.6 5.6 —
Other long-term liabilities .................. 9.2 2.1 44 24 0.3
Total contractual cash obligations ............ $384.9  §20.3 $28.2 $21.9 $314.5

During January 2005 our subsidiary, AMI Semiconductor Belgium, BVBA obtained a letter of credit
in connection with the planned relocation to a new facility in the Philippines. The letter of credit is for
$6.0 million, of which $3.0 million is collateralized with a cash deposit. The face value of the letter of
credit decreases every six months by $0.2 million for 15 years and the $3.0 million of collateral is reduced
by the same amount until fully eliminated in 7.5 years. The bank issuing the letter of credit has the right
to create a mortgage on the real property of AMI Semiconductor Belgium, BVBA as additional collateral.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Staff Position FAS 13-1,
“Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period,” which requires rental costs
associated with ground or building operating leases that are incurred during a construction period to be
recognized as rental expense. The Staff Position is effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2005, and retrospective application is permitted but not required. We do not expect the
adoption of Staff Position FAS 13-1 to have a material impact on our results of operations or financial
position.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 154,
“Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB
Statement No. 3.” This Statement replaces APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes,” and FASB
Statement No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements,” and changes the
requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. This Statement
applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle. It also applies to changes required by an
accounting pronouncement in the unusual instance that the pronouncement does not include specific
transition provisions. When a pronouncement includes specific transition provisions, those provisions should
be followed. The provisions of SFAS No. 154 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2005. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 154 to have a material impact on our results of
operations or financial position.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which requires the
measurement of all employee share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock
options, using a fair-value-based method and the recording of such expense in the consolidated statements
of operations. Securities and Exchange Commission Release number 33-8568, “Amendment to
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Rule 4-01(a) of Regulation S-X Regarding the Compliance Date for Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment” has made the effective date the beginning of
the first fiscal year after June 15, 2005. We are required to adopt SFAS No. 123R in the first quarter of
2006. The pro forma disclosures previously permitted under SFAS No. 123 no longer will be an alternative
to financial statement recognition. See “Stock-Based Compensation” in note 2 to our audited consolidated
financial statements located in Item 8§ of this Form 10-K for the pro forma net income (loss) and net
income (loss) per share amounts for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 as if we had
used a fair-value-based method similar to the methods required under SFAS No. 123R to measure
compensation expense for employee stock incentive awards. We intend to use the Black Scholes valuation
model for expensing options upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R. SFAS No. 123R also provides for optional
modified prospective or modified retrospective adoption. We have determined that we will use the modified
prospective adoption method. We expect the adoption to impact diluted earnings per share by $0.07 in
2006, although it will have no impact on our overall financial position. During 2005, we accelerated the
vesting of certain unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock options previously awarded to employees and
officers that had exercise prices per share of $13.00 to $20.00. As a result, options to purchase
approximately 1.9 million shares of our stock became exercisable immediately. We expect this acceleration
will reduce the pre-tax expense that we would have recognized with respect to stock-based compensation
by approximately $5.0 million in 2005, $2.7 million in 2007 and $0.9 million in the aggregate for 2008 and
2009. In addition, as a result of the adoption, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors is
considering granting performance shares and granting fewer stock options in 2006 and beyond.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB
No. 43, Chapter 4.” This statement amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing, to
clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted
material (spoilage). Paragraph 5 of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, previously stated that . . .under some
circumstances, items such as idle facility expense, excessive spoilage, double freight, and rehandling costs
may be so abnormal as to require treatment as current period charges. . .” SFAS No. 151 requires that
those items be recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of “so
abnormal.” In addition, this statement requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of
conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. The provisions of SFAS 151 shall
be applied prospectively and are effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2005, with earlier application permitted for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning
after the date this Statement was issued. Our adoption of SFAS No. 151 is not expected to have a
material impact on our financial position and results of operations.

Outlook

We expect our first quarter 2006 revenue to be down two to four percent as compared to fourth
quarter 2005 revenue due to lower demand from some key medical and military customers. We anticipate
first quarter gross margins to be in the range of 44 to 45 percent. We expect operating margins, excluding
restructuring charges and amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets of approximately $7.5 to
$8.5 million in the first quarter, to be in the range of 11.5 to 12.5 percent, which includes the impact of
expensing stock compensation under SFAS No. 123R. We anticipate our effective tax rate to be between
16 and 18 percent in the first quarter. We expect capital expenditures for 2006 to be approximately eight
percent of annual revenues. Depreciation and amortization is expected to be about $15.5 million in the first
quarter.

We base this outlook on our review of industry conditions, historical trends, estimates we make based
on information from customers and other factors and information. Should industry conditions, customer
demand or other factors change, as often happens in our industry, our results could differ materially from
those referenced in this outlook.




ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of changes in value of a financial instrument, derivative or non-
derivative, caused by fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Changes in
these factors could cause fluctuations in the results of our operations and cash flows. In the ordinary
course of business, we are exposed to foreign currency and interest rate risks. These risks primarily relate
to the sale of products and services to foreign customers and changes in interest rates on our long-term
debt.

We have foreign currency exposure related to our operations in Belgium as well as other foreign
locations. This foreign currency exposure, primarily related to Euro denominated exposure, is due to
potential fluctuations in our annual sales and operating costs denominated in foreign currencies as well as
exposure arising from the translation or remeasurement of our foreign subsidiaries’ financial statements into
U.S. dollars. For example, a substantial portion of our annual sales and operating costs are denominated in
Euros and we have exposure related to sales and operating costs increasing or decreasing based on changes
in Euro currency exchange rates. We have attempted to mitigate the impact of this exchange rate risk by
utilizing financial instruments, including derivative transactions pursuant to our policies. During December
2005, we entered into a foreign exchange collar contract, which ensures conversion of €3.9 million at a rate
of no less than $1.14 and no more than $1.2070 per €1.

Additionally, we have foreign currency exposure arising from the translation or remeasurement of our
foreign subsidiaries’ financial statements into U.S. dollars. The primary currencies to which we are exposed
to fluctuations include the Euro, the Japanese Yen and the Philippine Peso. If the U.S. dollar increases in
value against these foreign currencies, the value in U.S. dollars of the assets and liabilities originally
recorded in these foreign currencies will decrease. Conversely, if the U.S. dollar decreases in value against
these foreign currencies, the value in U.S. dollars of the assets and liabilities originally recorded in these
foreign currencies will increase. Thus, increases and decreases in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to
these foreign currencies have a direct impact on the value in U.S. dollars of our foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities, even if the value of these items has not changed in their original
currency. As of December 31, 2005, approximately 70% of our consolidated net assets were attributable to
subsidiaries that prepare their financial statements in foreign currencies. As such, a 10% change in the
U.S. dollar exchange rates in effect as of December 31, 2005 would cause a change in consolidated net
assets of approximately $14 million, primarily due to Euro denominated exposures. We have attempted to
mitigate the impact of this exchange rate risk by utilizing financial instruments, including derivative
transactions pursuant to our policies. On December 30, 2005, we entered into a foreign currency contract
to sell €30.0 million on April 4, 2006 at a rate of $1.18525 per €1. This contract acts as a hedging
instrument to limit the variability of the Euro cash balance, as valued in dollars, held by our European
subsidiaries that use the Euro as their functional currency. (see note 13 to our audited consolidated
financial statements contained elsewhere in Item 8 of this annual report). We enter into forward contracts
throughout the quarter as necessary using contracts that have maturities that do not exceed 100 days. All
derivative contracts we entered into are components of our hedging program and are entered into for the
sole purpose of hedging an existing or anticipated currency exposure, not for speculation or trading
purposes.

The fair value of our forward contracts is subject to change as a result of potential changes in market
rates and prices. 1f the U.S. dollar were to strengthen or weaken by 10% against the foreign currencies that
are hedged by our forward exchange contracts, the hypothetical value of the contracts would have
increased or decreased by approximately $3.6 million at December 31, 2005. However, these forward
exchange contracts are hedges and consequently any market value gains or losses arising from these foreign
exchange contracts should be offset by foreign exchange losses or gains on the underlying net assets and
liabilities. Calculations of the above effects assume that each rate changed in the same direction at the
same time relative to the U.S. dollar. The calculations reflect only those differences resulting from
mechanically replacing one exchange rate with another. They do not factor in any potential effects that
changes in currency exchange rates may have on statement of operations translation, sales volume and
prices and on local currency costs of production. As of December 31, 2005, our analysis indicated that
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such market movements, given the offsetting foreign currency gains or losses on the underlying cash
balances, would not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

Factors that could impact the effectiveness of our hedging programs include volatility of the currency
and interest rate markets, availability of hedging instruments and the our ability to accurately project sales,
expenses and cash balances. Actual gains and losses in the future may differ materially from the our
analysis depending on changes in the timing and amount of interest rate and foreign exchange rate
movements and our actual exposures and hedges.

Our exposure to interest rate risk consists of floating rate debt based on the London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR) plus an adjustable margin under our credit agreement. A change of 10% in the interest
rate would cause a change of approximately $1.9 million in interest expense. We are also subject to
interest rate risks on our current cash and cash equivalent balances. For example, if the interest rate on
our interest bearing investments were to change 1% (100 basis points), interest income would have
hypothetically increased or decreased by $0.8 miilion during 2005. This hypothetical analysis does not take
into consideration the effects of the economic conditions that would give rise to such an interest rate
change or our potential response to such hypothetical conditions. Cash and cash equivalents include all
marketable securities purchased with maturities of three or fewer months. Cash equivalents at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, consisted primarily of investments in money market funds and
U.S. agencies.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). Our management assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005. In making this
assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Management’s
assessment and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include
the internal controls of the acquired Flextronics semiconductor business, which we acquired on
September 9, 2005. As of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, Flextronics semiconductor business
constituted approximately 5% and 9% of total assets and net assets, excluding goodwill and intangible
assets related to this acquisition, respectively and 5% and 8% of revenues and net income, respectively.

Our management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2005, our internal control over financial
reporting was not effective to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles based on the criteria set forth by the COSO. This determination was made
because management identified a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting as described
below. A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in a
more than remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company did not have adequate controls in place to ensure that
revenue was being recognized in the proper period. Had this material weakness in internal control over
financial reporting not been identified prior to the reporting date of our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
revenues and net income would have been overstated for the three months and year ended December 31,
2005 by $1.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively.

Although our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our controls will prevent all error
and all fraud. In addition, our internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Furthermore, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risks that our controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued a report on our
assessment of our internal control over financial reporting, which is included herein.




REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
AMIS Holdings, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that AMIS Holdings, Inc. did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, because of the effect of the material weakness
identified in management’s assessment, based on criteria established in Internal Control#Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). AMIS Holdings, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. '

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements
will not be prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been identified and included in
management’s assessment.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company identified a material weakness in its internal control over
financial reporting which resulted from deficiencies in the design and operation of the Company’s controls
related to the process in place to ensure that revenue was being recognized in the proper period. Errors
resulting from this deficiency affected the inventory, accounts receivable, revenue, cost of revenue and net
income accounts. Adjustments were recorded in the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2005 to correct the errors identified.

This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the 2005 financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated
March 8, 2006 on those financial statements.
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As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting, management’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting did not include the internal controls of the Flextronics semiconductor business, which
AMIS acquired on September 9, 2005. As of and for the period from September 9, 2005 through
December 31, 2005, net and total assets, total revenues and net income subject to Flextronics’ internal
control over financial reporting represented 5% and 9% of total and net assets, excluding goodwill and
intangible assets, respectively, as of December 31, 2005 and 5% and 8% of revenues and net income,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
of AMIS Holdings, Inc. also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting
of Flextronics semiconductor business.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that AMIS Holdings, Inc. did not maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on the COSO control criteria. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the matertal weakness
described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, AMIS Holdings Inc. has not
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the COSO
control criteria.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Salt Lake City, UT
March 8, 2006




The Board of Directors and Stockholders
AMIS Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance shects of AMIS Holdings, Inc. as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
(deficit) and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. QOur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of AMIS Holdings, Inc. at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of AMIS Holdings, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
March 8, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment and an adverse opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Salt Lake City, Utah
March 8, 2006
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2005 2004

(In millions, except
share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ...........co it $ 967 § 1617
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $4.4 million and $3.1 million at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively ........ ... e 99.9 78.6
INVEnEOTIES o . ot e e e 64.3 52.2
Deferred 1aX @S88TS . . vt vttt e e e e e 4.5 6.5
Prepaid eXPENSES .« ...ttt e e e 229 17.2
Other CUITEN A8SEES . . o ot o ettt ettt e e e 8.8 12.9
T0tal CUITENL ASSEES . o\ ittt ittt e et vt et e 297.1 329.1
Property, plant and equipment, Net ... ... ...t e 203.8 199.2
GoodWill, Mt L.t e e 72.6 16.9
Intangible aSSe1S, NEt .. .. ...t e 92.5 35.1
Deferred taX ASSEtS . . .ottt e e e 50.3 39.6
OB RET A886ES . ot it ittt e e e e e 23.4 23.3
Total aSSets .. ..ttt e e $ 739.7 $ 643.2

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt .. ....... . ... . . . $ 32 % 13
Accounts payable . . ... 48.8 37.6
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities .. ........ ... ... ... . . 62.7 62.4
Foreign deferred tax Liability. ....... ... i 2.7 —
Income taxes payable ......... .. . 0.7 1.3
Total current liabilities ... ... .. . . . 118.1 102.6
Long-term debt, less current portion . ........... . oo i 314.7 2522
Other long-term liabilities. . . ... ... ot e 8.2 2.4
Total Habilities .. ... i 441.0 357.2

Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 86,348,367 and
84,832,862 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2005 and

December 31, 2004, respectively .. ... ..ot e 0.9 0.8
Additional paid-in capital .. ... ... 534.4 530.6
Accumulated deficit. .. ... ... e (250.0)  (270.6)
Deferred compensation .. ... .. ..ottt e (0.2) 0.4)
Accumulated other comprehensive income............... [P 13.6 25.6
Total stockholders’ equity .........c 298.7 286.0
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ........... .. i il $ 7397 § 6432

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2005

2004 2003

(In millions, except
per share data)

REVENUE . ..ottt e $503.6 $517.3  $454.1
Costofrevenue . ..o 266.4 271.0 255.3
237.2 246.3 198.8
Operating expenses:
Research and development .......... .. ... ... .. 874 77.2 70.2
Marketingand selling . ........ ... .. 39.1 43.0 37.8
General and administrative ......... ... ... ... .. . 28.5 28.7 227
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets .................... 9.0 1.3 4.8
In-process research and development .............. .. ... .. 0.8 L.5 —
Restructuring and impairment charges............. ... ... ...... . ... 5.3 7.9 21.7
Nonrecurring charges . ...t — — 11.4
170.1 159.6 168.6
Operating IMCOME . .. ...t vttt ittt e e e e e e 67.1 86.7 30.2
Other income (expense):
Interest EXPeISe. . o\ (16.1)  (20.7) (23.9)
Interest INCOME .. ..ot e e 23 21 1.4
Other eXpPense, NEt . ... vtt ittt et e (34.7) 0.7y  (16.2)
(48.5) (19.3) (38.7)
Income (loss) before income taxes............... i, 18.6 67.4 (8.5)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ............. .. ... . 0., (2.0) 15.0 (8.1)
Net income (10S8) ..ottt e 20.6 52.4 (0.4)
Preferred stock dividend . . ........ .. . . — — (46.3)
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders . .................. $ 206 $ 524 $(46.7)
Basic net income (loss) per common share.............................. $ 024 $ 063 $(0.84)
Diluted net income (loss) per common share. ........................... $ 023 $ 060 $(0.84)
Weighted average number of shares used in calculating basic net income
(loss) per common share . ...... ...t 85.7 82.9 55.4
Weighted average number of shares used in calculating diluted net income
(loss) per common share .................. e 88.2 86.6 55.4

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated
Other
Additional Steckholder Comprehensive
Common Stock  “p;q fp Notes Accumulated Deferred Income
Shares Amount  Capital Receivable Deficit Compensation {Loss) Teotal
(In millions)
Balance at January 1,2003 ......... 467 $05 § 389 $(5.6) $(276.3) $ — $ 21 $(240.4)
Comprehensive income:
Netloss.....oooooievniii. — — — — (0.4) — — (0.4)
Unrealized derivative gain ........ — — — — —_ — 0.6 0.6
Foreign currency translation
adjustment ................... e — — — — 14.3 14.3
Total comprehensive income ........ — — — — (0.4) — 14.9 14.5
Exercise of stock options ........... 1.1 — 0.7 — — — — 0.7
Accretion of dividends on Series A
Senjor Redeemable, Series B Junior
Redeemable Convertible and
Series C Senior Redeemable
Preferred Stock ................. — — — — (46.3) — — (46.3)
Net exercise of warrants .. .......... 9.1 0.1 (0.1) — — — — —
Issuance of shares from initial public
offering ............. it 25.1 0.2 470.0 — — — — 470.2
Stock compensation on acceleration of
stock option vesting.............. — — 0.7 — — — — 0.7
Interest on stockholder notes X
receivable ...................... — — — (0.2) — —_ — (0.2)
Deferred compensation ............. — — 0.5 — — (0.5) — —
Amortization of deferred
compensation ................... — — — — — — — —
Proceeds from stockholder notes
receivable ......... ... ... ... - = — 5.8 — — — 5.8
Balance at December 31, 2003 ...... 82.0 0.8 510.7 — (323.0) (0.5) 17.0 205.0
Comprehensive income:
Net income .................... — — — — 524 — — 524
Foreign currency translation
adjustment ............. ... ... - = — L — — — 8.6 8.6
Total comprehensive income ........ — — — — 52.4 — 8.6 61.0
Exercise of stock options ........... 1.4 — 1.1 — — — — 1.1
Issuance of common stock related to
acquisition. ..................... 1.3 — 16.5 — — — — 16.5
Employee stock purchase plan....... 0.1 — 1.5 — — — — 1.5
Stock compensation on acceleration of
stock option vesting and options
issued to nonemployees........... — — 0.8 — — — — 0.8
Amortization of deferred
compensation ................... o~ = — — — 0.1 — 0.1
Balance at December 31, 2004 ...... 84.8 0.8 530.6 — (270.6) (04) 25.6 286.0
Comprehensive income:
Netincome .................... -— -— — — 20.6 — — 20.6
Unrealized derivative gain ........ — — — — — — 0.1 0.1
Foreign currency translation
adjustment ................... — — — — (12.0) (12.0)

Total comprehensive income ........ —_ — 20.6 — (11.9) 8.7

Exercise of stock options ........... 1.2 0.1 0.8 — — — 0.9
Issuance of common stock related to

exercise of warrant. . ............. 0.1 — — — — — —_— —
Employee stock purchase plan....... 0.3 — 2.9 — — — — 2.9
Amortization of deferred

compensation . .......... ... - — — — — 0.2 — 0.2
Balance at December 31, 2005 ...... 86.4 509  $534.3 $ — $(250.0) $(0.2) $ 13.7 $ 298.7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(In millions)
Cash flows from operating activities
Netincome (105S) ...t e $ 206 $524 § (04)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. . ...........ov i 51.1 43.8 44.8
In-process research and development .......... ... . ... ... ... ..., 0.8 1.5 —
Amortization of deferred financing costs ........... .. ... ... 0.8 1.3 1.3
Stock-based compensation eXpense. .. ..... ... eiiiiiiiiii 0.2 0.9 3.9
Restructuring charges, net of cash expended . ...... .. ... ... ... .. ... 49 5.1 0.7
Impairment of long-term asset ......... ... i — — 20.0
Provision for (benefit from) deferred income taxes ................... (34) 2.2 (19.1)
Write-off of deferred financing charges and loss on settlement of
ErIVALIVE . oottt e 6.7 — 8.7
Loss on retirement of property, plant and equipment.................. 0.1 — 0.5
Income statement impact of change in value of derivatives ............ — — —
Interest on stockholder notes receivable . ............ ... ... ... . ..., — — (0.3)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable ... . e (16.3) (04) (1.7)
InVentories . ... oo (11.5) 4.0) (2.3)
Prepaid expenses and other assets. ... 8.6 (5.2) 6.5
Accounts payable .. ... ... e 8.2 09 3.6
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ............................ (11.3) (2.3) 4.5
Net cash provided by operating activities. ... ........... ... ... oo 59.5 96.2 70.7
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ............ ... ... . ... (34.5) (324) (26.6)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment.................... — 0.1 03
Purchase of business, net of cash acquired ............................ (138.5)  (26.8) —
Changes in restricted cash .. ... ... . i i i (1.2) 24 —
Changes in other @ssets ............. i 5.4) 3.3) (0.2)
Net cash used in investing activities . ........... oo, (179.6)  (60.0) (26.5)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on long-term debt ........ ... . (255.6) (1.2)  (2304)
Issuance of common and preferred stock, net of offering costs....... ..... — — 470.3
Proceeds from senior term loan. ... ... .. o i i i 320.0 — 125.0
Redemption of preferred stock ....... ... .. — — (550.2)
Payments on long-term payables. ... ... ...t — — (1.4)
Proceeds from senior subordinated notes . ......... ... ... ... L oL — — 200.0
Proceeds from exercise of stock options for common and preferred stock
and employee stock purchase plan ....... ... ... .. il 3.8 2.5 0.9
Debt issuance costs............... e (4.5) (11.4)
Payment to settle derivatives ......... ... . i (0.1) — (0.8)
Net cash provided by financing activities . .. ....... .. oo i © 636 1.3 20
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ... ... ... .. (8.5) 5.1 10.7
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ... ... ... ... ... .. (65.0) 42.6 56.9
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. .. ................. .... 161.7 119.1 62.2
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . ............................ $ 967 §161.7 $ 119.1
Supplementary cash flow information
Cash paid for interest . .. ... oottt e $ 211 $194 § 167
Cash paid for income taxes . . ...t e $ 42 $126 $ 93
Supplementary disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities
Common stock issued for purchase of business. ............ ... ... ..... $ — $167 $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

1. Background, Basis of Presentation and Recapitalization
Background and Basis of Presentation

AMIS Holdings, Inc., through its wholly-owned subsidiary, AMI Semiconductor, Inc., (collectively,
the Company) is primarily engaged in designing, manufacturing and marketing integrated circuits
worldwide. The Company is headquartered in Pocatello, Idaho and has manufacturing operations in
Pocatello, Idaho, Oudenaarde, Belgium and Manila, the Philippines, and design centers and sales offices
throughout the world.

Recapitalization

During 1997, American Microsystems, Inc. (AMI) operated as a subsidiary of Japan Energy
Corporation, which later merged into Nippon Mining Holdings, Inc. (Nippon Mining). Effective
January 1, 1998, AMI merged into Gould Electronics Inc. (GE1), another subsidiary of Nippon Mining.
Gould Electronics simultaneously changed its name to GA-TEK, Inc. AMI and GEI continued to conduct
business as American Microsystems, Inc. and Gould Electronics Inc., respectively, and operated as
separate business units of GA-TEK.

Effective July 29, 2000, AMI Spinco, Inc. (Spinco), a newly formed entity, and GA-TEK entered
into a separation agreement (the Separation Agreement) whereby substantially all of the assets and
liabilities of AMI and its related operating entities were transferred to Spinco in exchange for all of the
Series A Preferred Stock of Spinco (see further discussion of the Preferred Stock in Note 11). For the
period from July 29, 2000 through December 21, 2000, Spinco operated as a subsidiary of GA-TEK (the
Parent).

On December 21, 2000, Spinco was recapitalized and certain related transactions were effected (the
Recapitalization) pursuant to an agreement (the Recapitalization Agreement) among Spinco, the Parent,
certain affiliates of Spinco and the Parent, an affiliate of Citicorp Venture Capital Ltd. (CVC) and an
affiliate of Francisco Partners, L.P. (FP). In connection with the Recapitalization, Spinco became a wholly
owned operating subsidiary of AMIS Holdings, Inc. (AMIS Holdings) and Spinco was renamed AMI
Semiconductor, Inc. (AMIS).

The Recapitalization was effected through the following transactions:

» AMIS Holdings was capitalized with three tranches of capital stock: approximately 46.0 million
shares of common stock; approximately 17.9 million shares of Series A Senior Redeemable
Preferred Stock; and approximately 14.3 shares of Series B Junior Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock.

+ The Parent’s ownership in Spinco was converted into the following securities of AMIS Holdings:
(i) approximately 45.1 million shares of common stock, (ii) 17.5 million shares of Series A Senior
Redeemable Preferred Stock, and (iii) 14.0 million shares of Series B Junior Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Stock. The Parent was also issued a warrant to purchase an additional
approximately 4.6 million shares of common stock.

« Current and former executives’ ownership in Spinco was converted into the following securities of
AMIS Holdings: (i) approximately 1.0 million shares of common stock, (ii) approximately
0.4 million shares of Series A Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock, and (iii) approximately
0.3 million shares of Series B Junior Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock.

+ CVC and FP each acquired the following securities of AMIS Holdings directly from the Parent:
(i) approximately 17.8 million shares of common stock, (ii) approximately 6.9 million shares of
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AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUESIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Series A Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock, and (iii) approximately 5.5 million shares of Series B
Junior Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for $138.5 million in cash. Another
third-party investment fund acquired the following securities of AMIS Holdings directly from the
Parent: (i) approximately 0.4 million shares of common stock, (ii) approximately 0.2 million shares
of Series A Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock, and (iii) approximately 0.1 million shares of
Series B Junior Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for $3.0 million in cash. The
aggregate consideration paid by these third parties to the Parent was $280.0 million in cash.

+ AMIS Holdings obtained $175.0 million in bank debt and used the proceeds for the following:
(i) redemption of outstanding Spinco Series B and C Preferred Stock and common stock warrants
for total consideration of approximately $6.5 million; (ii) repayment of $72.2 million of Spinco
intercompany debt payable to the Parent; (iii) payment of $40.5 million to the Parent for a non-
compete agreement; (iv) payment of $29.2 million to the Parent in satisfaction of the remaining
liquidation preference on the Spinco Series A Preferred Stock; and (v) payment of Recapitalization
related transaction expenses of $24.9 million.

+ The Parent agreed to indemnify the Company for certain existing environmental contingencies and
to pay certain existing liabilities of the Company. The estimated amount of these obligations at
December 21, 2000 was $11.2 million.

As a result of the foregoing transactions, CVC and FP each held approximately 38.8%, the Parent
held approximately 19.6% and the remaining stockholders, including certain current and former executive
officers, held approximately 2.8% of each class of capital stock of AMIS Holdings immediately subsequent
to the Recapitalization.

On September 26, 2003, the Company completed its initial public offering (IPO) of approximately
25.1 million shares of its common stock. After the [PO, CVC and FP still held a significant ownership
interest in the company.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AMIS Holdings and its subsidiaries. Al}
significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Several criteria must be met before the Company can recognize revenue from its products and
revenue relating to engineering design and product development. Management must apply its judgment in
determining when revenue recognition criteria are met.

The Company recognizes revenue from products sold directly to end customers when persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed or determinable, delivery is fulfilled and collectibility
is reasonably assured. In certain situations, the Company ships products through freight forwarders. In
most cases, revenue is recognized when the product is delivered to the customer’s carrier, regardless of the
terms and conditions of sale. The only exception is where title does not pass until the product is received

51




AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

by the customer. In that case, revenue is recognized upon receipt by the customer. Estimates of product
returns and allowances, based on actual historical experience and the Company’s knowledge of potential
issues, are recorded at the time revenue is recognized and are deducted from revenue.

Revenue from contracts to perform engineering design and product development are recognized as
milestones are achieved, which approximates the percentage-of-completion method. Costs associated with
such contracts are expensed as incurred except as discussed in Note 7. Revenues under coniracts acquired
as part of the Flextronics acquisition are recorded using the completed contract method. This method is
consistently applied to each of these contracts and revenue is recognized accordingly when the item enters
production or when the contract is complete. For contracts that are recognized as milestones are achieved,
a typical milestone billing structure is 40% at the start of the project, 40% at the creation of the reticle set
and 20% upon delivery of the prototypes. Since up to 40% of revenue is billed and recognized at the start
of the design development work and, therefore, could result in the acceleration of revenue recognition,
management analyzes those billings and the status of in-process design development projects at the end of
each reporting period in order to determine that the milestone billings approximate percentage-of-
completion on an aggregate basis. Management compares each project’s stage with the total level of effort
required to complete the project, which management believes is representative of the cost-io-cost method
of determining percentage-of-completion. Based on this analysis, the relatively short-term nature of the
Company’s design development process and the billing and recognition of 20% of the project revenue after
design development work is complete (which effectively defers 20% of the revenue recognition to the end
of the contract), management believes the Company’s milestone method approximates the percentage-of-
completion method in all material respects.

Shipping and handling costs are expensed as incurred and included in cost of sales.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Certain specifically defined fundamental
and prototype research projects, executed by the Company’s Belgian subsidiary in collaboration with other
research centers, are partly funded by research and development grants provided by the IWT (Flemish
Institute for the enhancement of scientific technologic research in the industry) and the European
Commission (the “Authorities”). Such grants are recorded as a reduction to research and development
expense as costs are incurred and when it is reasonably assured that all conditions under the grant
agreement will be met. Management regularly evaluates whether it is reasonably assured that such
conditions will be met. '

Capitalized Software Development Costs for Internal Use

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Position (SOP) No. 98-1, “Accounting for the
Costs of Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use,” the Company capitalizes internal and external
costs to develop or obtain internal use software during the application development stage. Costs incurred
during the preliminary project stage are expensed as incurred, as are training and maintenance costs. The
Company capitalized approximately $1.1 million, $1.4 million and $0.5 million relating to purchased
software and the internal and external costs to develop that software in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.
Amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets, which
has been determined to be three years.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of trade receivables. The Company’s customers include, but are not limited to, other U.S. and
foreign semiconductor manufacturers and manufacturers of computer systems, automobiles, and medical,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

industrial and telecommunications equipment. Management believes that any significant risk of accounting
loss is reduced due to the diversity of its products and end customers. The Company performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customners’ respective financial condition and requires collateral, such as
prepayments or letters of credit, when deemed necessary. The Company monitors the need for an
allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical losses, economic conditions and expected collections of
accounts receivable. No one customer accounted for more than 10% of revenue or net accounts receivable
for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less
to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (using the first in, first out method) or market. The
Company provides an allowance for inventories on hand that are in excess of forecasted demand.
Forecasted demand is determined based on historical sales or inventory usage, expected future sales or
inventory usage using backlog and other projections, and the nature of the inventories. The Company also
reviews other inventories for indicators of impairment and provides an allowance as deemed necessary.

The Company also provides an allowance for obsolete inventories, which are written off when disposed
of. The Company determines the cost of inventory by adding an amount representative of manufactaring
costs plus a burden rate for general manufacturing overhead to the inventory at major steps in the
manufacturing process.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, including capitalized interest. Any assets acquired as
part of the purchase of all or a portion of another company’s operations are stated at their relative fair
values at the date of acquisition. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from thres to thirty years. Repair and
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation expense related to property, plant and equipment was approximately $41.8 million,
$40.4 million, and $37.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash as of December 31, 2005 is composed of a guarantee made by our Belgian subsidiary
on behalf of our Philippine subsidiary related to the lease of their new facility. For prior periods, restricted
cash was comprised of an escrow account, which was created to provide for the duties and obligations
associated with an employment agreement between the Company and its Chief Executive Officer.
Restricted cash is included as a component of other assets. (See Note 3.)

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the lower of cost or their net realizable value and are being
amortized on a straight-line basis over six months to fifteen years.
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The following table summarizes the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for each
major class of intangible assets at December 31 (in millions):

2005 2004
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization Useful Life
Licenses . .....ovuinnnnnn. $ 724 $63.3 $70.8 $61.8 0.5 to 15 years
Non-compete agreements. .. .. 2.3 04 0.4 0.1 2 years
Customer relationships ....... 45.8 3.0 10.1 0.2 4 to 10 years
Developed technology ........ 379 4.7 12.7 03 S years
Patents ....... ... ... ... ... 6.6 1.2 4.2 038 5 to 10 years
Contracts .................. 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.2 5 years
Total ........... ... .. ... $165.3 $72.8 $98.5 $63.4

Amortization expense relating to intangible assets, except for acquisition-related intangible assets, was
approximately $1.4 million, $2.0 million, and $2.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004,
and 2003, respectively. These amounts are classified in research and development expenses in the
accompanying statements of operations. Amortization expense related to acquisition-related intangible
assets was approximately $9.0 million, $1.3 million, and $4.8 million for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. These amounts are shown as a separate line item in operating expenses
in the accompanying statements of operations. The accumulated amortization balances as of December 31,
2005 and 2004 include the impact of translation from foreign currencies to the US Dollar and therefore,
the change in accumulated amortization balances between the periods does not necessarilv equal the
amortization expense for the same period.

The scheduled amortization expense for the next five years is as follows (in millions}:

2006 .. $17.0
2007 $16.9
2008 L $16.6
2000 $14.4
20010 $10.5

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company regularly evaluates the carrying amounts of long-lived assets, including its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, as well as the related depreciation and amortization periods, to
determine whether adjustments to these amounts or to the useful lives are required based on current
circumstances or events. The evaluation, which involves significant judgment by management, is based on
various analyses including cash flow and profitability projections. To the extent such projections indicate
that future undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amounts of the related long-
lived assets, the carrying amount of the underlying assets will be reduced, with the reduction charged to
expense so that the carrying amount is equal to fair value, primarily determined based on future
discounted cash flows.

In conjunction with the Recapitalization Agreement, the Company entered into a non-competition
agreement with Nippon Mining and its subsidiary (our former Parent). According to this agreement, each
of Nippon Mining and its subsidiary agreed to not engage in the custom semiconductor business anywhere
in the world through December 2005. During 2003, the Company reached a determination that the
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carrying value of the non-compete had been impaired based primarily on a change in Nippon Mining’s and
its subsidiary’s business focus and related capabilities such that they did not intend to focus on custom
semiconductors. Effective June 26, 2003, the Company released Nippon Mining and its subsidiary from
the non-compete agreement and expensed the $20.0 million remaining unamortized balance of the
agreement, which is included as part of the 2003 Restructuring and impairment charges on the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs relate to fees incurred to obtain and amend bank term loans and revolving credit
facilities and fees incurred in connection with senior subordinated notes (see Note 6). These costs are
being amortized to interest expense over the respective lives of the debt issues on a straight-line basis,
which approximates the effective interest method. Amortization expense was approximately $0.8 million,
$1.3 million and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. During
20035, the Company repaid the senior subordinated notes (see Note 6). In connection with this repayment,
the Company expensed approximately $6.7 million of unamortized debt issuance costs, which is included
as part of other expense on the accompanying 2005 consolidated statements of operations. During 2003,
the Company repaid the original term loan and a portion of the senior subordinated notes. In connection
with this repayment, the Company expensed approximately $7.9 million of unamortized debt issuance
costs, which is included as part of other expense on the accompanying 2003 consolidated statements of
operations.

Goodwill

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” In accordance with the guidelines of this
accounting principle, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are no longer amortized, but are
assessed for impairment on at least an annual basis. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company
identified its reporting units and determined the carrying value of the reporting units by assigning assets
and liabilities, including goodwill and intangible assets, to the reporting units. As of December 31, 2005,
all of the Company’s goodwill is classified within the Company’s Integrated Mixed Signal Products and
Structured Digital Products segments. The Integrated Mixed Signal Products segment is comprised of the
following reporting units: Integrated Mixed Signal Product Line, Medical Wireless Product Line and
Image Sensing Product Line. The Structured Digital Products segment is also a reporting unit.

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company’s gross goodwill balance is approximately
$94.4 million, and $38.7 million, respectively, with accumulated amortization of approximately $21.8 million
for each period. The Company’s goodwill balance is also impacted by foreign currency translation.

SFAS No. 142 requires a two-step impairment test. In the first step, the Company determines the fair
value of the reporting unit using a discounted cash flow valuation model and compares it to the reporting
unit’s carrying value. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, goodwill of the
reporting unit is considered not impaired and no further testing is required. If the fair value does not
exceed the carrying value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the
amount of impairment loss, if any.

In the second step of the goodwill impairment test, the implied fair value of the reporting unit
goodwill is compared to the carrying value. The implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill is
determined as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination. If the carrying value of
the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal
to the excess.
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The Company’s valuation methodology requires management to make judgments and assumptions
based on historical experience and projections of future operating performance. If these assumptions differ
materially from future results, the Company may record impairment charges in the future. Additionally,
the Company’s policy is to perform its annual impairment testing for its reporting unit in the fourth
quarter of each fiscal year. The Company performed its annual impairment test for goodwill, not including
the goodwill acquired from the Flextronics acquisition in September 2005 (see Note 15) during the fourth
quarter of 2005 and concluded that goodwill was not impaired. Due to the proximity of the Flextronics
acquisition to the Company’s fiscal year end, the Company believes that the fair value of the reporting
units that contain goodwill from the Flextronics acquisition of $57.9 million would continue to exceed the
carrying value at December 31, 2005.

Foreign Currency

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for the Company’s operations in the Philippines.
Remeasurement adjustments that result from the process of remeasuring this entity’s financial statements
into U.S. dollars are included in the statement of operations. Amounts have not been material for 2005,
2004, and 2003.

The local currencies are the functional currencies for the Company’s fabrication facilities, sales
operations and/or product design centers outside of the United States, except for the Company’s
operations in the Philippines. Cumulative translation adjustments that result from the process of translating
these entities’ financial statements into U.S. dollars are included as a component of comprehensive income
which totals approximately $13.6 million and $25.6 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Translation gains and losses relating to balance sheet accounts in U.S. dollars held in foreign
operations with non-U.S. dollar functional currencies are recorded in the statement of operations as
incurred.

Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions, such as those resulting from the settlement of
transactions that are denominated in a currency other than a subsidiary’s functional currency, are included
in the correlating line of the statement of operations. The effects of foreign currency on the statement of
operations in 2005, 2004 and 2003 were immaterial.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded based on the liability method, which requires recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities
measured using enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the deferred tax asset to an amount that
is determined to be more likely than not to be realized, based on an analyses of past operating results,
future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and projected taxable income, including tax
strategies available to generate future taxable income. The Company’s analyses of future taxable income
are subject to a wide range of variables, many of which involve management’s estimates and therefore the
deferred tax asset may not be ultimately realized.

Stock Options

For the year ended December 31, 2005 and prior, the Company has elected to follow the intrinsic
value-based method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options through the
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year ended December 31, 2005 rather than adopting the alternative fair value accounting provided for
under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”

Stock compensation expense for options and/or warrants granted to non-employees through the year
ended December 31, 2005 has been determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123 and the Emerging
Issues Task Force consensus on Issue No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to
Other than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services.” The fair value of
options or warrants granted to non-employees is periodically re-measured as the underlying options or
warrants vest.

The following table provides pro forma information for the years ended December 31 that illustrates
the net income (loss), net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders (in millions, except per
share data), and net income (loss) per common share as if the fair value method had been adopted under
SFAS No. 123.

2005 2004 2003

Net income (loss) asreported . ... .. i $ 206 $524 $ (04)
Less: Stock compensation expense determined under the fair value

method, net of related tax effects .. ...... ... ... ... ... oL (13.3)  (3.9) (03)
Add: Compensation expense associated with accelerated stock

options, net of related tax effects .......... . ... ... oL — 0.4 0.4

Amortization of deferred compensation, net of related tax effects . . 0.1 0.1 —
Pro forma net income (loss) .. .. .. S 7.4 49.0 0.3)
Preferred stock dividend as reported............ ... ..o L — —  {46.3)
Pro forma net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders ... § 7.4 $49.0 $(46.6)
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic as reported . ... ... e $ 024 $0.63 $(0.84)
Diluted as reported . .. .. ..ottt e $ 023 $0.60 $(0.84)
Pro forma basic........... ... i e $0.09 $059 $(0.84)
Proformadiluted ..... ... i $ 0.08 $057 $(0.84)

As of January 1, 2006, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment.” As a
result, during 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of certain unvested and “out-of-the-money”
stock options previously awarded to employees and officers that had exercise prices per share of $13.00 to
$20.00. As a result, options to purchase approximately 1.9 million shares of the Company’s stock became
exercisable immediately. Management expects this acceleration will reduce the pre-tax expense that the
Company would have recognized with respect to stock-based compensation by approximately $5.0 million
in 2006, $2.7 million in 2007 and $0.9 million in the aggregate for 2008 and 2009.

The fair value of stock options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model which was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Option valuation methods require the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. The fair value of these options was
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estimated at the date of the grant based on the following weighted-average assumptions as of

December 31:
2005 2004 2003

Dividend yield ......... e e e e 0% 0% 0%
Volatiity ..o 66% 75% 8%
Risk-free interest rate. ... ...t 418% 3.14% 2.07%
Expected life in years .. ... oo e 5.4 3.7 2.5
Weighted average fair value of options at grant date* ................ $7.01 3$8.05 $2.16

* The fair value of these options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black Scholes Value option
pricing model subsequent to the IPO in 2003 and the Minimum Value option pricing mode! prior to the
IPO.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the options’ vesting period. Because the effect of SFAS No. 123 is prospective, the
impact on pro forma net income and earnings per share may not be representative of compensation
expense in future years.

Advertising

Advertising expenditures are charged to expense as incurred. Advertising expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were not material to the consolidated financial statements.

Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates earnings per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.”
Basic net earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. The dilutive effect of the common stock equivalents is included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share only when the effect of their inclusion would be dilutive.
Potentially dilutive common equivalent shares consist of stock options and warrants.

Options to purchase 5.5 million, 1.2 million, and 4.9 million shares of common stock and warrants to
purchase 4.6 million, 4.7 million, and 4.7 million shares of common stock were outstanding as of
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share as the effect would have been anti-dilutive.

On September 4, 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders effected a one-for-three
reverse split of the Company’s outstanding common stock. All share and per share amounts have been
retroactively restated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes for all periods
presented.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted shares outstanding for the years
ended December 31 (in millions):
2005 2004 2003

Weighted-average basic shares outstanding ............................ 85.7 829 354

Effect of dilutive securities — shares issuable upon exercise of options,
warrants and contingently issuable shares .................. . covn.
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Weighted-average fully diluted shares outstanding . .....................
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Derivatives

In 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” which was subsequently amended by SFAS No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative Financial
Instruments and Hedging Activities — Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS No. 133,” and
SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities.”

SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring that every derivative instrument,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, be recorded in the balance sheet as
either an asset or liability and measured at its fair value. The statement also requires that changes in the
derivative’s fair value be recognized in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. (See
Note 13 for further discussion.)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Staff Position FAS 13-1,
“Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period,” which requires rental costs
associated with ground or building operating leases that are incurred during a construction period to be
recognized as rental expense. The Staff Position is effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2005, and retrospective application is permitted but not required. Management does not
expect the adoption of Staff Position FAS 13-1 to have a material impact on the Company’s results of
operations or financial position,

In May 20035, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 154,
“Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB
Statement No. 3.” This Statement replaces APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes,” and FASB
Statement No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements,” and changes the
requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. This Statement
applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle. It also applies to changes required by an
accounting pronouncement in the unusual instance that the pronouncement does not include specific
transition provisions. When a pronouncement includes specific transition provisions, those provisions should
be followed. The provisions of SFAS No. 154 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2005. Management does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 154 to have a material impact on the
Company’s results of operations or financial position.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which requires the
measurement of all employee share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock
options, using a fair-value-based method and the recording of such expense in the consolidated statements
of operations. Securities and Exchange Commission Release number 33-8568, “Amendment to
Rule 4-01(a) of Regulation S-X Regarding the Compliance Date for Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment” has made the effective date the beginning of
the first fiscal year after June 15, 2005. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 123R in the first
quarter of 2006. The pro forma disclosures previously permitted under SFAS No. 123 no longer will be an
alternative to financial statement recognition. See “Stock-Based Compensation” in Note 2 for the pro
forma net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share amounts for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2004 and 2003 as if the Company had used a fair-value-based method similar to the methods required
under SFAS No. 123R to measure compensation expense for employee stock incentive awards. The
Company intends to use the Black Scholes valuation model for expensing options upon adoption of
SFAS No. 123R. SFAS No. 123R also provides for optional modified prospective or modified retrospective
adoption. The Company has determined that it will use the modified prospective adoption method.
Management expects the adoption to impact diluted earnings per share by $0.07 in 2006, aithough it will
have no impact on the Company’s overall financial position. During 2005, the Company accelerated the
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vesting of certain unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock options previously awarded to employees and
officers that had exercise prices per share of $13.00 to $20.00. As a result, options to purchase
approximately 1.9 million shares of the Company’s stock became exercisable immediately. Management
expects this acceleration will reduce the pre-tax expense that the Company will recognize with respect to
stock-based compensation by approximately $5.0 million in 2005, $2.7 million in 2007 and $0.9 million in
the aggregate for 2008 and 2009. In addition, as a result of the adoption, the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors is considering granting performance shares and granting fewer stock options in 2006
and beyond.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB
No. 43, Chapter 4.” This statement amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing, to
clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted
material (spoilage). Paragraph 5 of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, previously stated that “. . .under some
circumstances, items such as idle facility expense, excessive spoilage, double freight, and rehandling costs
may be so abnormal as to require treatment as current period charges. . .” SFAS No. 151 requires that
those items be recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of “so
abnormal.” In addition, this statement requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of
conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. The provisions of SFAS 151 shall
be applied prospectively and are effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2005, with earlier application permitted for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning
after the date this Statement was issued. The Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 151 is not expected to
have a material impact on its financial position and results of operations.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts shown have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

3. Financial Statement Details

Inventories consist of the following at December 31 (in millions):

2005 2004
Raw materials. . . ...t $49 $55
WOrK-In-PrOCESS « . v ottt et 40.6 277
Finished goods ........... _18.8  19.0

8643 §522
Other long-term assets consist of the following at December 31 (in millions):

2005 2004
Restricted cash .. ... oo $26 $18
Prepaid pension asset. .. ... ... ... e 8.6 12.6

Debt 1SSUaANCe COSES, ME . .ttt e et e 4.0 7.1
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Property, plant and equipment consists of the following at December 31 (in millions):

2005 2004
Land and buildings .. ... ... $ 706 $ 657
Machinery and equipment .......... .. e 4337 407.2
COonStIUCHON-TN-PIOZTESS . . o\ o et ettt e st et r e e et e ee e e 11.3 10.0

515.6 482.9
Less accumulated depreciation . ... ..ot e (311.8)  (283.7)

$ 2038 $ 199.2

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following at December 31 (in millions):

2005 2004
Accrued employee COMPEnSAtion . . ... .. vv ittt e $239 $314
Reserve for restructuring charges . ....... ..o i 48 5.3
Reserve for product development project losses ......................... ..., 8.6 7.0
Investment grant payable ........ . . . . 3.7 39
Reserve for Warranty .. ...t e 4.7 1.5
Interest payable . ...... ... 0.1 6.0
Other . o 16.9 7.3

5627 $624

4. Lease and Other Commitments

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under noncancelable operating lease arrange-

ments, some of which include various renewal options and escalation clauses. During the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, rental expense under such arrangements was approximately
$6.8 million, $7.1 million and $6.7 million respectively.

Approximate future minimum annuoal rental commitments at December 31, 2005 are as follows (in

millions):

2006 Lo e e e e e e $6.8
2007 L $6.2
2008 L £5.6
2000 $4.1
2000 L $3.4

In order to achieve more favorable pricing and ensure delivery when demanded, the Company

contracts for certain chemicals, raw materials, and services at fixed prices, but not fixed quantities. These
contracts are renegotiated on either a quarterly or annual basis. As no fixed quantities are required and

terms are less than one year, no reportable commitment is deemed to exist for these contracts. In October
1995, the Company entered into a 15-year take-or-pay supply agreement under which Praxair, Inc.
(“Praxair”) will supply 100% of the Company’s need for certain industrial gases. The Company does have
the option to purchase these gases elsewhere, if the Company can prove that market prices are lower than
those charged by Praxair. In 2005, 2004, and 2003 the Company purchased approximately $1.8 million,

$1.3 million, and $1.0 million, respectively, under this agreement. No amounts have been paid out under
the take-or-pay provision of the contract. In March 2003, the Company entered into a three-year take-or-
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pay supply agreement under which ZMD, GmbH (“ZMD”) will reserve manufacturing capacity for the
Company equal to 400 five-inch wafers per year. The amounts purchased under this agreement were
immaterial to the audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003.

From time to time, the Company enters into contracts with customers in which the Company
provides some indemnification to the customer in the event of claims of patent or other intellectual
property infringement resulting from the customer’s use of the Company’s technology. Such provisions are
customary in the semiconductor industry and do not reflect an assessment by the Company of the
likelihood of a claim. The Company has not recorded a liability for potential obligations under these
indemnification provisions and would not record such a liability unless the Company believed that the
likelihood of a material obligation was probable.

5. Transactions with Related Parties
Shareholders’ Agreement

We are party to a shareholders’ agreement with Francisco Partners, CVC and Nippon Mining, each of
which beneficially owns more than 5% of our outstanding common stock, and certain other stockholders.
This agreement originated at the time Francisco Partners and CVC invested in the Company and was
amended and restated at the time of the initial public offering in 2003. The agreement covers matters of
corporate governance, restrictions on transfer of securities, tag-along rights, rights to compel a sale of
securities, registration rights and information rights.

Advisory Agreements

The Company is party to advisory agreements with each of Francisco Partners and CVC pursuant to
which each may provide financial advisory and consulting services to the Company. For 2005 and 2004, no
fees were paid and no expenses recorded related to these agreements. For 2003, expenses totaling
$1.5 million were recorded related to these agreements. Each advisory agreement was amended at the time
of the initial public offering in 2003 and annual advisory fees payable under these agreements ceased. The
Company paid the advisors an aggregate one-time fee of $8.5 million at the time of the amendment for
investment banking and financial advisory services. The Company may in the future engage the advisory
services of Francisco Partners and CVC under these agreements but Francisco Partners and CVC are not
required to provide such services and there are no future annual advisory fees contemplated by these
agreements.

Each advisory agreement has an initial term of ten years, ending on December 20, 2010 and will
automatically extend on a year to year basis thereafter unless it is terminated by Francisco Partners, CVC
or the Company upon written notice 90 days prior to the expiration of the initial term or any extension
thereof. Each advisory agreement includes customary indemnification provisions in favor of each of CVC
and Francisco Partners.

In 1999, Nippon Mining entered into an agreement with a major semiconductor manufacturer
pursuant to which the semiconductor manufacturer provides certain technology and related technological
assistance to the Company. The Company agreed to reimburse Nippon Mining for the amounts due under
the agreement, which is denominated in yen, totaling approximately ¥1.0 billion (or $9.5 million) over a
five-year period. Under the Recapitalization Agreement, Nippon Mining’s subsidiary agreed to pay one-
half of the remaining outstanding obligation to this major semiconductor manufacturer.

In addition, the Company is a “primary responsible party” to an environmental remediation and
cleanup at its former corporate headquarters in Santa Clara, California (see discussion below regarding
indemnification by Nippon Mining’s subsidiary). Costs incurred by the Company include implementation
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of the clean-up plan, operations and maintenance of remediation systems, and other project management
costs. Management’s estimate of the remaining cost to fulfill its obfigations under the remediation effort, as
determined in consultation with its environmental consultants and the governing regulatory agency, is
immaterial to the financial statements. Remaining accruals for costs associated with the remediation are
immaterial to the financial statements.

In conjunction with the Recapitalization Agreement, Nippon Mining’s subsidiary agreed to indemnify
the Company for any obligation relating to this environmental issue. In accordance with Statement of
Position (SOP) No. 96-1, “Environmental Remediation Liabilities,” because amounts to be paid by the
Company and reimbursed by Nippon Mining’s subsidiary are not fixed and determinable, the Company has
not offset the receivable from Nippon Mining’s subsidiary against the estimated liability on the
consolidated balance sheets. Therefore, a receivable from Nippon Mining’s subsidiary is recorded on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to this
matter. The amounts are immaterial to the financial statements.

In September 2004, the Company, signed a memorandum of understanding with Synecor, LLC, of
which Mr. Starling, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, is Chief Executive Officer and a
managing member. In the memorandum of understanding, the Company and Synecor agreed that they
intend to enter into a strategic business relationship whereby AMI Semiconductor would be the exclusive
supplier to Synecor and its affiliates of digital and mixed signal application specific integrated circuits
(*“ASICs”) for use in medical products. The parties contemplate entering into definitive agreements
specifying the details of this relationship but have not yet done so. The Company is currently in the
development phase of two ASIC devices for Interventional Rhythm Management (“IRM”), an affiliate of
Synecor. Mr. Starling was the Chief Executive Officer of IRM until September 26, 2005 and serves as the
chairman of its Board of Directors. In 2005 and 2004, IRM paid the Company $0.4 million and
$0.2 million, respectively, in non-recurring engineering charges associated with the development of those
ASIC devices.

In 2005 and 2004, the Company manufactured integrated circuits for Intersil Corporation on a
foundry services basis. Intersil paid the Company $5.9 million and $10.6 million in 2005 and 2004,
respectively, for the integrated circuits. Mr. Williams, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, was
the chairman of Intersil’s Board of Directors until May 2005.

6. Long-Term Debt

The following table summarizes the Company’s outstanding long-term debt at December 31, (in
millions):

2005 2004
Term LOaN .. oottt i e e e $317.9  $1235
Senior subordinated notes . ... i _— 1300

317.9 253.5
Less CUrrent portion . ... oottt e 32 13
Total Jong-term debt ... ... $_31_____4_7_ $252.2

Amendments to Senior Credit Facilities

The Company and AMI Semiconductor, Inc., its wholly owned subsidiary, maintain senior secured
credit facilities consisting of a senior secured term loan and a revolving credit facility.
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On March 2, 2005, AMI Semiconductor, Inc. announced a tender offer for its 10%:% senior
subordinated notes as well as a refinancing of the existing $125.0 million senior secured term loan and
$90.0 million revolving credit facility. On April 1, 2005, 100% of the outstanding notes had been
repurchased and the indenture governing the senior subordinated notes was discharged. Proceeds from a
new senior secured term loan of $210.0 million, entered into on April 1, 2005, and existing cash of
$75.8 million were used to purchase the outstanding notes for $130.0 million, pay a premium on the notes
and expenses associated with the tender of $28.0 million in the aggregate, which is recorded in other
expense on the accompanying consolidated statement of operations, repay the outstanding balance of the
previous senior secured term loan of $123.2 million, with the remainder used to pay accrued interest on
the notes and the previous senior secured term loan and pay expenses related to the refinancing of the
senior credit facilities. As a result of these transactions, total debt was reduced by $43.2 million. In
conjunction with the refinancing, the Company recorded a charge of $6.7 million in other expense on the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations in the first quarter of 2005 for the write off of deferred
financing and other costs associated with the notes and the previous senior credit facilities. In addition, the
Company recorded $2.9 million in deferred financing costs related to the new senior credit facility,
included in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, which will be
amortized over the term of the senjor credit facilities.

On September 9, 2005, AMTI Semiconductor, Inc. amended its senior secured credit facilities by
borrowing an additional $110.0 million under the term loan to fund a portion of the purchase of
substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of the semiconductor division of Flextronics
International USA Inc. (see Note 15). The new amended senior credit facilities consist of the new
amended senior secured term loan and a $90.0 million revolving credit facility, of which $0.3 million was
allocated to a letter of credit as of December 31, 2005. The Company recorded an additional $1.6 million
in deferred financing costs related to this amendment. Pursuant to the senior credit facility the covenants
require 100% of the domestic corporations’ equity and 65% of the directly owned foreign corporations’
equity be collateralized. The term loan requires principal payments of $0.8 million, together with accrued
interest, on the last day of March, June, September and December of each year, with the balance due on
April 1, 2012. The interest rate on the senior secured term loan, which is based on LIBOR + 1.5, on
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was 5.9%, 4.9% and 3.6%, respectively. The revolving credit facility
($40.0 million of which may be in the form of letters of credit) is available for working capital and general
corporate purposes.

The facilities require the Company to maintain a consolidated interest coverage ratio and a maximum
leverage ratio and contains certain other nonfinancial covenants, all as defined within the credit agreement.
The facilities also generally restrict payment of dividends to parties outside of the consolidated entity. The
Company was in compliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2005.

Senior Subordinated Notes

On January 29, 2003, AMIS issued $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 10%.% senior
subordinated notes maturing on February 1, 2013 (senior subordinated notes). The proceeds were used to
repay approximately $111.8 million of the original Term Loan and redeem the Series C Preferred Stock
for a total, including cumulative dividends, of approximately $80.8 million.

On November 1, 2003, the Company used proceeds from the IPO and the new Term Loan to
exercise a call provision and redeem 35% of the senior subordinated notes for approximately $77.5 million
including accrued interest to the date of redemption. Pursuant to the Indenture, this amount inciuded a
premium of 10.75% of the principal amount, which was charged to expense in 2003. In connection with
the repayment of the senior subordinated notes, the Company wrote off approximately $2.8 million of
deferred financing costs. The premium and write-off of the deferred financing costs were charged to other
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expense in 2003 on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The $130.0 million remaining
balance of the senior subordinated notes was repaid in conjunction with the refinancing of the senior credit
facilities in 2005.

Letters of Credit

During January 2005 one of the Company’s subsidiaries, AMI Semiconductor Belgium, BVBA
obtained a Letter of Credit in association with the planned relocation to a new facility in the Philippines.
The Letter of Credit is for $6.0 million, of which $3.0 million is collateralized with a cash deposit recorded
as restricted cash in other assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The face value of the
Letter of Credit decreases every six months beginning June 30, 2006 by $0.2 million for 15 years and the
$3.0 million of collateral is reduced by the same amount until fully eliminated in 7.5 years. As of
December 31, 2003, the value of the cash deposit was $3.0 million. The bank issuing the Letter of Credit
has the right to create a mortgage on the real property of AMI Semiconductor Belgium, BVBA as
additional collateral, which had not been done as of December 31, 2005.

Aggregate Maturities of Long-Term Debt

The following table summarizes the aggregate maturities of the Company’s long-term (in millions):
2006 m_‘l_ 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter

Term Loan............... ..., $3.2  $3.2 $32 $32 $32  $301.9

7. Customer-Funded Product Development Activities

Customer-funded product development activities are accounted for as contracts. The Company
evaluates individual contracts and, where appropriate, records an accrual for any contracts that individually
are expected to result in an overall loss. Revenue earned and costs incurred on product development
contracts for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, are as follows: 2005 — $32.3 million
and $23.1 million, respectively; 2004 — $32.3 million and $24.1 million, respectively; and
2003 — $34.6 million and $25.8 million, respectively.

8. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 is as follows (in millions):

2005 2004 2003
Federal:
CuITent . it e e $(107) $01 § —
Deferred . ... ... 5.3 5.5 (12.5)
(5.4) 5.6 (12.5)
State:
CUITEN . L oo e (1.2) — —
Deferred . .. ... i e 0.6 1.0 (2.2)
(0.6) 1.0 (2.2)
Foreign:
CuITent . .. 1.4 12.3 11.4
Deferred . ... .o 2.6 (3.9) (4.3)
4.0 8.4 6.6
Total . . $ (2.0) $15.0 §$ (8.1
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The provision (benefit) for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the federal
statutory income tax rate of 35% for the following years ended December 31 as follows (in millions):

2005 2004 2003

Federal tax at statutory rate. ... .......ovvivnreriii i, § 65 3236 $ (3.0)
State taxes (net of federal benefit} ............ ... ... ... ... 0.7 4.0 (0.5)
Impact of Foreign tax rates . .......covurineetnneeiinenanenn.. (3.7)  (5.6) (6.3)
Foreign research and development credits ................ ... .. — (0.9) —
Change in valuation allowance ............ ... ... ciiiiiiin. (6.2) (6.4) 1.9
Change in estimate of blended statutory rate ..................... 1.7 — —
Permanent differences ........ .. ... o (1.2) — (0.5)
Other,net........... ... ... ..o, e e 0.2 0.3 0.3
Total ..o e $ (2.0) %150 §$ (8.1
Effective tax rate. ... o.ovi i i e (109% 22.3% (95.3)%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows at
December 31 (in millions):

2005 2004
Deferred tax assets:
Foreign research and development investment deduction ................. $ 163 $ 197
Reserves not currently deductible .......... ... . .. . L 9.4 8.2
Intangible asset basis difference ....... ... .. ... ... oot 62.6 71.9
Net operating loss carryforwards . ........ ... ... ... i, 49.3 37.5
Tax credit carryforwards . ............ . .. 4.2 2.7
Other . o 02 12
Total deferred tax assets ...t 142.0 141.2
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax in excess of book depreciation ............ ... ... .. i, (36.1) (34.6)
Prepaid pension assel. ... ...t e 2.9) (4.3)
Other . o e e _(56) _(58)
Total deferred tax liabilities ........ ... ... ... ... ... . . _(44.6) (44.7)
97.4 96.5
Valuation allowance . ..................cvvinenn... B .. _(45.3) _(50.4)
Net deferred tax a88€tS . ..o vvivt it e $ 521 § 461

Pretax income from foreign operations was approximately $23.9 million, $36.2 million, and
$31.4 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. As of December 31, 2005, undistributed pretax
earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries in the amount of approximately $108.2 million is considered by the
Company to be permanently invested outside the U.S. and, accordingly, U.S. income taxes have not been
provided on this amount.
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A portion of the Company’s operations in the Philippines and in Switzerland is eligible for tax
holidays which expire in whole or in part during 2010 and 2011. The impact of these tax holidays to
income taxes was not material for 2003, 2004 or 2005.

During 2005, the Company recorded a charge of $1.7 million to reduce its deferred tax asset to reflect
a change in its estimated U.S. statutory tax rate from 41% to 39%. This statutory tax rate change is a
result of a decrease in the Company’s estimated blended state tax rate from 6% to 4%, based upon the
apportionment of its income to states in which the Company does business, net of the deduction for
federal income tax purposes.

Changes in the Company’s deferred tax valuation allowance for 2005 included a decrease of
$6.2 million based on projections of future U.S. taxable income and a decrease of $2.5 million relating to
the revaluation of deferred tax assets in conjunction with the statutory rate change from 41% to 39%
explained above. Offsetting these decreases was an increase in the deferred tax valuation allowance of
$3.6 million relating to exercises of employee stock options during 2005. The valuation allowance on these
deferred tax assets will be reduced in the period in which the Company realizes a benefit on its tax return
from a reduction of income taxes payable attributable to the use of its net operating loss carryforwards
generated by deductions associated with the exercise of employee stock options. When recognized, the tax
benefit of these loss carryforwards will be accounted for as a credit to additional paid in capital rather than
as a reduction of income tax expense. As of December 31, 2005, deferred tax assets of approximately
$12.6 million related to net operating loss carryforwards resulting from the exercise of employee stock
options.

Similarly, a portion of the Company’s deferred tax assets attributable to the carryforward of tax
credits for increasing research and experimentation expenditures (R&D Tax Credit) has been generated by
costs relating to the exercise of employee stock options. As of December 31, 2005, deferred tax assets of
approximately $0.1 million pertained to the portion of R&D Tax Credit carryforwards resulting from the
exercise of employee stock options . When recognized, the tax benefit of the R&D Tax Credit
carryforwards will be accounted for as a credit to additional paid in capital rather than as a reduction of
income tax expense. :

The Company has prepared an analysis of projected future taxable income, including tax strategies
available to generate future taxable income. Based on that analysis, the Company believes its valuation
allowance reduces the net deferred tax asset to an amount that will more likely than not be realized.

At December 31, 2005, aggregated federal and state net operating loss carryforwards were
$124.2 million and aggregated tax credit carryforwards were $4.2 miliion. Net operating loss carryforwards
will begin to expire in 2021. The tax credit carryforwards include federal and state research and
development credits of $2.6 million and state investment tax credits of $1.6 million, which begin expiring
in 2015. The state investment tax credits are treated as a reduction in income taxes in the year in which
the credits arise in accordance with APB 4, Accounting for the Investment Credit. At December 31, 2003,
the Company had no remaining foreign net operating loss carryforwards. Under the “change of ownership”
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code utilization of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards may
be subject to an annual limitation.

9. Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution Plans

Substantially all United States employees are eligible to participate in a 401 (k) plan sponsored by the
Company. This plan requires the Company to match 50% of employee contributions, as defined, up to 6%
of the employee’s annual salary. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, employer
contributions totaled approximately $1.9 million, $1.8 million, and $1.7 million respectively.
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Certain Belgian employees are eligible to participate in a defined contribution plan. Under the terms
of the plan, the Company is required to contribute amounts based on each respective employee’s pay
grade. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 employer contributions totaled
approximately $0.6 million, $0.6 million and $0.6 million, respectively.

Employees in certain of the Company’s overseas subsidiaries are covered by defined contribution
plans. These plans provide contributions based on the employees’ annual salary. Employer contributions to
these plans are not material to the consolidated financial statements.

Defined Benefit Plan

Certain Belgian employees are also eligible to participate in a defined benefit retirement plan. The
benefits of this plan are for all professional employees who are at least 20 years old and have an
employment agreement for an indefinite period of time. The prepaid pension asset recorded on the
accompanying 2005 and 2004 balance sheets represents the amount of the net assets in the pensi on fund
in excess of the post-retirement obligation.

The following disclosures regarding this pension plan are based upon an actuarial valuation prepared
for the years ended December 31 (in millions):

2005 2004
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period. . ...... ... . i $31.5 8219
=3 4y ot PP 2.7 2.1
Tnterest COSt . oL i 1.3 1.1
Benefits, administrative expenses and premiums paid ........................ 0.3) (0.3)
Actuarial (gain) 10SS ...\ttt e e (4.5) 42
Foreign currency translation (gain) loss ...... ... (4.2) 2.5
Benefit obligation at end of period......... .. .. i 26.5 31.5
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period . ............ ... . ... .. ..., $38.8 $35.0
Actual return on plan assets .. ..ot e e 2.6 1.3
Benefits, administrative expenses and premiums paid ................. . o (0.3) (0.3)
Foreign currency translation (loss) gain ... i, (5.3) 2.8
Fair value of plan assets at end of period . ..., 35.8 38.8
Excess of plan assets over benefit obligation............. ... oot 9.3 7.3
Unrecognized net actuarial (loss) gain .................. e {0.8) 4.8
Foreign currency translation gail .. .........ooveiiteiiiniininneennneeen.n. 0.1 0.5
Prepaid pension @sset. .. ..ottt ettt e $ 86 $126
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
S OIVICE COSE. . v\ttt ettt ettt e e e e $27 $21
INtErESt COSt . oottt et e e 1.3 1.1
Expected return on plan assets. ... .. ..o i e (1.5) (L8)
Net periodic Pension COSt ... .. vtt ittt et $ 25 1.4
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2005 2004
Weighted average assumptions:
DiISCOUNE TALE . ..ottt et e e e e e e 45%  53%
Expected return on plan assets . ... ...t e 45%  5.3%
Compensation Tate IMCTCASE . . ...t vttte ettt ie ettt eie e e 4.0% 4.0%

During 2005, the Company changed the investment strategy of this fund. The fund now operates
under an investment strategy that is designed to achieve an appropriate diversification of investments as
well as safety and security of the principal invested. Under the Company’s contract with the plan
administrator, 40% of the fund is guaranteed a minimum rate of return of 3.75% (formerly the entire fund
was guaranteed a minimum rate of return of 3.75%). The remaining 60% of assets invested are allocated to
certain global sub-asset categories within prescribed ranges in order to promote international diversification
across security type, issue type, investment style, industry group and economic sector in order to generate
greater returns for the plan assets. Projected benefits to be paid over the next ten years are as follows (in
millions):

Expected Benefits

to be Paid
2006 . e $0.4
2007 . e $0.1
2008 . $2.4
2000 L e e $0.1
2000 $1.1
2001 - 2005 e e $2.7

There are no mandatory funding requirements. Because the plan is overfunded, the Company does not
intend to make any contributions in 2006.

Employees in the Philippines are covered by a noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan (the
Philippine Plan). The Philippine Plan provides employees with a lump-sum retirement benefit equivalent
to one month’s salary per year of service based on the final monthly gross salary before retirement. Total
benefit obligations under the Philippine Plan and contributions to it are not material to the consolidated
financial statements.

Employees in certain of the Company’s overseas subsidiaries are covered by.other contributory defined
benefit plans. Total benefit obligations under these plans and contributions to these plans are not material
to the consolidated financial statements.

Collective Bargaining Agreements

At December 31, 2005, the employees located in Belgium, representing 32% of the Company’s
worldwide labor force, are represented by unions and have collective bargaining arrangements at the
national, industry and company levels.

10. Contingencies

The Company is subject to various claims and legal proceedings covering matters that arise in the
ordinary course of its business activities. Management believes any liability that may ultimately result from
the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, operating results, or cash flows.
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In 2004 the Company produced parts for a customer that the customer incorporated into its product
that it shipped to its customers. After experiencing a number of product failures, the customer initiated a
recall of its product. The Company has accrued a total of $5.0 million to cover the cost of replacing the
parts in the recalled products and to settle any future claims. On March 3, 2006, an agreement in principle
was reached with the customer to settle this issue for $5.0 million in cash, in exchange for a release for all
past and future claims with respect to this matter.

In conjunction with the Recapitalization Agreement, Nippon Mining’s subsidiary agreed to indemnify
the Company for any obligation relating to this environmental issue. In accordance with Statement of
Position (SOP) No. 96-1, “Environmental Remediation Liabilities,” because amounts to be paid by the
Company and reimbursed by Nippon Mining’s subsidiary are not fixed and determinable, the Company has
not offset the receivable from Nippon Mining’s subsidiary against the estimated liability on the
consolidated balance sheets. Therefore, a receivable from Nippon Mining’s subsidiary is recorded on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to this
matter. The amounts are immaterial to the financial statements.

11. Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Common and Preferred Stock

In accordance with the Recapitalization Agreement dated December 21, 2000, the Company issued
approximately 46.0 million shares of its 133.3 million authorized shares of common stock, 17.9 million
shares of its 20.0 million authorized shares of Series A Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock (Senior
Preferred Stock) and 14.3 million shares of its 20.0 million authorized shares of Series B Junior
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock (Junior Preferred Stock). During 2003 the Company used the
proceeds from the IPO, together with the borrowings under a new $125.0 million Senior Term Loan, to
redeem all of its outstanding shares of Senior Preferred Stock, Junior Preferred Stock, options to purchase
shares of such preferred stock and associated cumulative dividends for approximately $469.5 million, net of
stockholder notes receivable.

In order to fund a portion of the MSB acquisition, the Company issued approximately 75,000 shares
of Series C Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock (Series C Preferred Stock) on June 26, 2002 resulting in
net proceeds to the Company of $75.0 million. The Series C Preferred Stock was entitled to quarterly cash
dividends when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors. Such dividends were cumulative, whether or
not earned or declared, and accrued at an annual compounding rate of 12.0%, and 16.0% after
December 27, 2002, because the Series C Preferred Stock had not been redeemed by December 26, 2002.
During 2003, the Company used proceeds from the senior subordinated notes to redeem the Series C
Preferred Stock for a total, including cumulative dividends, of approximately $80.8 million.

Warrants

In conjunction with the Recapitalization Agreement, AMIS Holdings issued a warrant to Nippon
Mining’s subsidiary to purchase approximately 4.6 million shares of common stock for an initial exercise
price of $19.41 per share. The warrants, which became exercisable upon the initial public offering in 2003,
expire on December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, AMIS Holdings had 4.6 million shares of
its authorized, unissued common shares reserved for issuance pursuant to the warrant obligation.

12. Stock Based Compensation

In conjunction with the recapitalization in December 2000, outstanding options to purchase common
stock of Spinco were converted to options to purchase a unit consisting of the following shares of AMIS
Holdings: (a) two-thirds of a share of common stock, (b} .2588164 shares of Series A Senior Preferred
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Stock and (c) .2070531 shares of Series B Junior Preferred Stock. Proceeds from the IPO and the new
Term Loan were used to redeem all options for preferred stock during September 2003. As part of this
redemption, the Company recognized compensation expense of approximately $2.9 million during the third
quarter of 2003, which is included in nonrecusrring charges on the accompanying statement of operations.

Under the guidance of Financial Interpretation (FIN) No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions
Involving Stock Compensation — An Interpretation of APB Opinion 25,” to the extent that the exercise
price of the original options, as compared to the fair value of the underlying stock at the time of the
Recapitalization, is consistent with the relationship of the exercise price of the replacement options to the
fair value of the underlying stock, a new measurement date does not exist and no compensation expense is
required to be recorded at the time of the Recapitalization. However, under the terms of the replacement
options, the exercise price of the Senior and Junior Preferred Stock portions of the units increases as
dividends accrete on the underlying Senior and Junior Preferred Stock. As such, these components of the
unit were variable. Therefore, compensation expense was measured and recorded each period based upon
the incremental change in the exercise price of these components. For the year ended December 31, 2003,
the Company has recorded approximately $0.3 million as compensation expense with regard to these
components.

In conjunction with the TPQ, the Company re-evaluated its prior estimates of the fair value of its
common stock. As a result, the Company determined that, although the Company’s Board of Directors
had determined the vale of the Company’s common stock in good faith, certain options issued during 2003
were issued with exercise prices that, in hindsight, were less than the deemed fair value of the Company’s
common stock, as determined by an independent appraiser in connection with the IPO. As a result,
deferred stock-based compensation of approximately $0.5 million was recorded. The deferred stock-based
compensation has been recorded as a component of stockholders’ equity and is being recognized over the
vesting period of the underlying stock options using the straight-line method under FIN No. 28
“Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Options or Award Plans.” Upon the
adoption of FAS 123R, “Share-Based Payment” in 2006, this amount will be written off to additional paid
in capital.

During 2003, as part of the restructuring plan, the vesting on certain options was accelerated making
those options immediately exercisable upon termination of employment of certain individuals. In
accordance FIN No. 44, the Company expensed approximately $0.7 million, which is included in
Restructuring and impairment charges on the accompanying 2003 ccnsolidated statement of operations.

During 2004, the vesting on certain options was accelerated making those options immediately
exercisable upon termination of employment of a certain individual. The Company also granted stock
options to a non-employee contractor. In accordance with FIN No. 44, the Company expensed
approximately $0.8 million in connection with these options, which is included in general and
administrative expenses on the accompanying 2004 consolidated statement of operations.

During 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of certain unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock
options previously awarded to employees and officers that had exercise prices per share of $13.00 or higher.
As a result, options to purchase approximately 1.9 million shares of the Company’s stock became
exercisable immediately. The resulting pro forma expense, net of tax expense of $5.2 million, is included in
the 2005 pro forma expense, net of tax amount of $13.3 million in Note 2 above.

The Company grants stock options pursuant to its Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive
Plan, which was originally adopted by Spinco (see Note 1) on July 29, 2000. In general, options granted
vest over three and a half to four years. In 2003, the Board of Directors amended and restated the
2000 Equity Incentive Plan and revised the share reserve such that it shall not exceed in the aggregate
approximately 11.9 million shares of common stock, plus an annual increase on the first day of each fiscal
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year during the term of the Plan beginning January 1, 2005 through January 1, 2010, in each case in an
amount equal to the lesser of (i) 1.8 million shares, (if} 2.5% of the number of shares of the common
stock outstanding on such date, or (iii) an amount determined by the Board.

A summary of option activity under the Plan for the three years ended December 31, 2005, for both
option units and common stock options is as follows (in millions, except per share and year amounts):

Number of Number of Yveighted Average Exercise Price

Number of Senior Junior Senior Junior  Weighted-Average
Common Preferred Preferred Common Preferred Preferred Remaining
Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Contractual Life
Balance at January 1, 2003 5.5 0.5 0.4 $ 072 $8.80  $8.97 8.27 years
Options granted ......... 0.7 — — 10.58 — —
Options exercised . ... .... (1.1) — — 0.66 9.35 9.59
Options canceled ........ (0.2) — — 0.82 9.20 9.41
Options redeemed . ...... = (0.5) (04) — 9.72 9.98
Balance at December 31,
2003 ... 4.9 — — 2.11 — — 7.75 years
Options granted ......... 2.9 — — 15.05 — —
Options exercised .. ... ... (1.4) — — 0.76 — —
Options canceled ........ (0.3) = = 13.87 — —
Balance at December 31,
2004 ... 6.1 — — 8.08 — — 8.12 years
Options granted ......... 3.0 — — 11.68 — —
Options exercised .. ...... (1.2) — — 0.81 — —
Options canceled ........ {0.4) = - 12.57 — —
Balance at December 31,
2005. . ... 7. $1040 $ — § — 7.23 years

||
I
I

The following table summarizes exercisable options at December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 (in
millions):

Exercisable
__Shares
December 31, 2005:
Common StOCK. ... o 4.5
December 31, 2004:
Common StoCK. ... o 2.3
December 31, 2003:
Common S10CK. ... 2.5
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The following information relates to common stock options cutstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2005:

Options Outstanding

Weighted Average ‘ Options Exercisable
Range of Exercise Number Remaining Weighted--Average Number Weighted-Average
Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
(In millions) (In millions)

$ 0.53-811.14 ... 2.6 6.29 $ 3.77 1.7 $ 0.95
$11.86 - $14.28 ... 3.6 149 $12.83 1.5 $14.09
$14.51 - $20.00 ... 13 8.39 $16.99 13 $16.98

$ 0.53 - $20.00 ... 15 7.23 $10.40 45 $10.11

‘The Company has approximately 1.0 million shares of common stock available for grant under stock
options at December 31, 2005 under the Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan. The
Company has reserved shares of common stock for issuance for all outstanding options and share of
common stock available for grant under the Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan.

During 2003, the Company adopted the Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan and
reserved approximately 2.3 million shares. The plan was amended on February 1, 2005. This plan provides
employees the opportunity to purchase common stock of the Company through payroll deductions. Under
this amended Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the Company’s employees, subject to certain restrictions,
may purchase shares of common stock at 90% of fair market value at the purchase date, which is the last
trading date within the applicable offering period. The amended plan consists of offering periods of six
months. As of December 31, 2005, approximately 0.4 million shares had been granted from this plan.

13. Derivatives and Hedging

The Company has entered into derivative contracts to hedge forecasted Euro-denominated income
streams. The Company has not chosen to pursue cash flow hedge accounting treatment under
SFAS No. 133 and therefore changes in fair value are recognized on a current basis in the statement of
operations. The Company has also entered into derivative contracts to hedge the Euro-denominated net
investments of our European subsidiaries that use the Euro as their functional currency. The Company has
met the requirements pursuant to SFAS No. 133 and these derivatives qualify as hedges. Therefore, the
Company records the changes in fair value in Other Comprehensive Income on the Balance Sheet. The
Company’s objectives with holding derivatives are to minimize the risks associated with Euro-denominated
income, mitigate the exposure arising from the translation or remeasurement of our foreign subsidiaries’
financial statements into U.S, dollars, and to reduce the effect these exposures have on results of
operations.

The amounts recognized in the statements of operations pertaining to these hedges were not material
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, or 2003. No cash flow hedges were derecognized or
discontinued in 2005, 2004, or 2003.

The Company paid a variable rate of interest under its original Term Loan. Under the terms of the
Credit Agreement for the original Term Loan, the Company was required to enter into agreements to
effectively “fix” the interest rate on one half of the outstanding balance of its Term Loan. On June 21,
2001, the Company entered into certain derivative instruments with major banks in order to manage its
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. Such instruments were designated and qualified as cash flow hedges
in accordance with SFAS No. 133.
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Two such instruments were interest rate swap agreements that effectively converted interest rate
exposure from variable rates to fixed rates of interest. During the quarter ended March 29, 2003 in
conjunction with the Company’s repayment of a portion of the Term Loan one of these swap agreements
was settled. The Company was required to pay approximately $0.4 million to settle the instrument before
its scheduled maturity in June 2003. This amount is recorded as other expense in the accompanying 2003
consolidated statements of operations. The remaining swap agreement matured during the quarter ended
June 28, 2003. Under the swap agreements, the Company paid fixed rates of interest of 4.5% and 4.7% and
received a floating rate of interest based on the three month LIBOR. The difference between amounts to
be paid or received on the interest rate swap agreements was recorded as an increase or reduction of
interest expense.

The Company also entered into an interest rate cap agreement and an interest rate floor agreement on
June 21, 2001. Both agreements were settled during the three months ended March 29, 2003 in
conjunction with the Company’s repayment of a portion of the Term Loan. The interest rate cap
agreement granted the Company the right to limit the LTBOR rate it would have paid on its variable rate
debt to a maximum of 7.25%. The interest rate floor agreement restricted the Company from paying a
LIBOR rate of less than 3.15% on its variable rate debt. The Company paid approximately $423,000 to
settle the agreements. This amount is recorded as other expense in the accompanying 2003 consolidated
statements of operations.

14. Restructuring and Impairment Charges

The Company entered into a non-compete agreement with Nippon Mining and its subsidiary in
conjunction with the December 21, 2000 Recapitalization pursuant to which each of Nippon Mining and
its subsidiary agreed to not-engage in the custom semiconductor business anywhere in the world through
December 20035. In connection with the Company’s 2003 review of the carrying value of its intangible
assets, the Company reached a determination that the carrying value of the non-compete had been
impaired based primarily on a change in Nippon Mining’s and its subsidiary’s business focus and related
capabilities. Effective June 26, 2003, the Company released each of Nippon Mining and its subsidiary
from all of its obligations under the non-compete agreement. Therefore, the Company wrote off the
remaining unamortized balance of this non-compete agreement of approximately $20.0 million as of the
effective date. This amount is included in impairment charges in the accompanying 2003 statement of
operations,

Pursuant to FASB Statement 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities,” and EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits
and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring),” in 2005, 2004
and 2003, senior management and the Board of Directors approved plans to restructure certain of the
Company’s operations.

The 2005 consolidation plan involves the consolidation of the 4-inch fabrication facility in Belgium
into the 6-inch fabrication facility in Belgium and the termination of certain employees. The objectives of
the plan are to reduce manufacturing costs of the Company and ensure that the assets of the Company are
being utilized effectively. The negotiations with the workers’ council are complete with respect to the
severance package to be offered, however the number of employees to be terminated is not yet fixed and is
dependent upon future business needs. The Company currently estimates the costs related to one-time
termination benefits to be approximately $12.0 mililion. These employees are likely to be located in the
Belgian facility. Expenses related to the plan in 2005 were approximately $4.9 million. An accrual has
been recorded of approximately $4.7 million on the accompanying balance sheet as of December 31, 2005,
Additional expenses expected to be incurred relating to this plan primarily relate to qualification of
products in the 6-inch fabrication facility, equipment relocation costs, and decommissioning and
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decontamination of the 4-inch fabrication facility. In the aggregate, total expense related to this
restructuring plan is expected to be in the range of approximately $23.0 million to $28.0 million, the
majority of which will be recorded in 2006. This plan is expected to be complete by the end of the first
quarter of 2007.

The 2004 plan involved the relocation of the Philippine test facility to a larger building and the
consolidation of sort operations in the United States and Belgium into the new facility, the move of certain
offices to lower cost locations and the termination of certain employees. The objectives of the plan were to
increase the competitiveness of the Company, provide future flexitility in the Company’s test operations, and
manage costs during a period of end-market weakness. In total, approximately 110 employees in the United
States and Belgium were terminated as part of this program. Such terminations affected virtually all
departments within the Company’s business. All terminated employees were notified in the period in which
the charge was recorded. Expenses related to the plan totaled approximately $8.3 million as of December 31,
2005. As of December 31, 2005, approximately $8.5 million had been paid out. Approximately $1.3 million
of expenses related to this plan were reversed in 2005. Additional expenses expected to be incurred primarily
relate to completion bonuses and equipment relocation costs and are expected to be recorded in 2006. This
plan is expected to be complete by the end of the first quarter of 2006.

The 2003 plan involved the termination of certain management and other employees as well as certain
sales representative firms in the United States. Internal sales employees replaced these sales representative
firms. In total, 32 employees, from various departments within the Company, were terminated as part of
this program. All terminated employees and sales representative firms were notified in the period in which
the charge was recorded. Expenses related to the plan totaled approximately $1.7 million, which includes
$0.6 million related to the accelerated vesting on certain options making them immediately exercisable
upon termination. As of December 31, 2005, approximately $1.0 million had been paid out related to this
plan. The remaining accrual relating to the 2003 plan is immaterial to the accompanying balance sheet as
of December 31, 2005 and is expected to be paid in 2006. This plan is expected to be complete by the end
of 2006.

Following is a summary of the restructuring accrual relating to the 2005, 2004 and 2003 plans (in
millions):

Lease Legal Fees
Severance  Termination and Other
Costs Costs Costs Total
Balance at January 1,2003 ............................. $ 0.9 $ 03 — 1.2
2003 EXDPENSE . oottt e 1.7 — — 1.7
2003 Paid ........... e (1.9)* (0.1) — (2.0)
Balance at December 31,2003, .......................... 0.7 0.2 — 0.9
2004 EXPENSe . .o vittt e 7.7 0.2 — 7.9
2004 Paid ... ... .. (3.4) (0.1) — (3.5)
2004 Reserve Reversal........ ... ..o i, — — — —
Balance at December 31,2004, .......................... 5.0 0.3 — 5.3
2005 EXPENSE . oottt 5.1 — 1.7 6.8
2005 Pald ... e (4.0) (0.1) (1.7) (5.8)
2005 Reserve Reversal. .. ..., (1.3) (0.2) — (L35)
Balance at December 31, 2005.......... PR $ 4.8 $ — $ — $ 4.8

* $0.6 million non-cash
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15. Purchase of the Semiconductor Business of Flextronics International USA Inc.

On September 9, 2005, AMI Semiconductor, Inc., Emma Mixed Signal CV and AMI Semiconductor
Israel LTD, subsidiaries of the Company, acquired substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of
the semiconductor business of Flextronics International USA Inc. (the “Flextronics Semiconductor
Business”) for approximately $138.5 million in cash plus other liabilities. This is referred to as the
“Flextronics Acquisition.” The Flextronics Semiconductor Business specializes in custom mixed-signal
products, imaging sensors and digital application specific integrated circuits including field programmable
gate array conversion products. The Flextronics Semiconductor Business employed approximately 170
people in the United States, the Netherlands and Israel, of which the Company retained approximately
half. The Company amended its existing credit facility in order to permit the acquisition and new
indebtedness, increased its existing senior secured term loan by $110.0 million and used this additional
term loan and existing cash to finance the Flextronics acquisition (see Note 6).

The Flextronics acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting as required by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 141, “Business Combinations.” The purchase method of
accounting allocates the aggregate preliminary purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based upon their respective fair values. The final purchase price and resulting allocation is dependent upon
management completing the analysis of assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

The purchase price reflects the estimate of restructuring costs, accrued pursuant to EITF No. 95-3,
“Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business Combination,” the Company expects
to incur associated with the Flextronics acquisition. Approximately $1.2 million in restructuring costs have
been accrued and included in the purchase price to account for the relocation of Flextronics’s San Jose
test operations to the Far East. Relocation expense of approximately $0.2 million was also accrued for
three former Flextronics employees who became Company employees and will relocate to Pocatello, Idaho.

The following is a summary of the preliminary Flextronics acquisition purchase price (in millions):

Cash paid to Flextronics International USA Inc. ..... ... ... .., $138.5
Acquisition-related €Xpenses .. .. ... e 6.0
Receivable from Flextronics for a working capital adjustment ....................... (5.2)
Exit-related Hability COStS. . ...ttt e e 14
Operating liabilities assumed (including accounts payable of $5.6, deferred revenue of

$1.4, and other current liabilities of $0.7 million) ................... ... ... ..... 7.7

Total purchase price




AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The following is a summary of the preliminary allocation of the Flextronics acquisition purchase price
(in millions):

- Trade accounts receivable, net .................... e $ 107
InVentory, Mt . . ... e e 4.2
Deferred CoStS ... vvvvvire it i e 1.2
Deferred tax @sSBt . . .o\ v it e e e e e 3.6
Other current @ssets . ... ... .. . i e 0.4
Property, plant and equipment ........... S e 44
Acquisition-related intangible assets .. ... 65.2
In-process research and development............... PPN 0.8
GoodWill. . ..o _ 319
Total purchase price allocated ... ............ccoiiriieninii... [T $148.4

The value of identifiable intangible assets was determined by management which utilized, among
other factors, an independent appraisal by an independent financial consulting firm, LECG, LLC. The
preliminary allocation of costs to goodwill was determined to be $57.9 million. Of this amount,
$32.5 million was allocated to the Integrated Mixed Signal Products reporting unit, $20.8 million to the
Image Sensors Products reporting unit and $4.6 million to the Structured Digital Products reporting unit.
In total, $53.3 million was allocated to the Integrated Mixed Signal segment and the remainder to the
Structured Digital Products segment. Of the aggregate goodwill balance, approximately $15.3 million is
deductible for tax purposes. During 2005, approximately $0.3 million was amortized for tax purposes. In
connection with the purchase, a charge of $0.8 million for in-process research and development was
recorded the third quarter of 2005. The following is a detail of the acquisition-related intangible assets
acquired in the Flextronics Acquisition (in millions):

Usefu} Life

Total Value in Years
Customer relationships ......... . $35.7 8
Proprietary technology . ... ... ... 25.2 4
Patents ... ... e 24 10
Non-compete agreement . . .. ..o vttt e 1.9 3
Total acquisition-related intangible assets........................... $65.2

Unaudited pro forma information as if the Flextronics Semiconductor Business had been acquired on
January 1, 2004 is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively
(rounded, in millions, except per share data).

Years Ended
December 31:

2005 2004
REVEIUE ... it e e $565.7 $588.0
Nt INCOME . . oottt e e $ 155 §$ 444
Basic net income per common share . ........... ... .. .. il $ 018 $ 054
Diluted net income per common share .............cuuiiiiniiinnninn.... $ 018 $ 051

The unaudited pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2004 combines the Company’s
historical results for the year ended December 31, 2004 with the Flextronics Semiconductor Division’s

77




AMIS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

historical results for its fiscal year ended March 31, 2005. The revenue and excess revenue over direct
expenses of the Flextronics Semiconductor Division for the three months ended March 31, 20035 was
$20.3 million and $2.3 million, respectively.

The pro forma operating results for the year ended December 31, 2005 include $0.8 million for the
write-off of in-process research and development associated with the Flextronics Acquisition. These costs
were written off in the In-process Research and Development line on the statement of operations. The
pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations had the acquisition actually
occurred on the assumed acquisition date,

The results of operations related to the Flextronics Semiconductor Business have been included in the
Company’s statement of operations since the acquisition date.

16. Acquisition of Dspfactory Ltd.

On November 12, 2004, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of
Dspfactory Ltd., (“Dspfactory”) headquartered in Waterloo, Ontario, Canada. Dspfactory develops and
markets ultra-miniature and ultra-low power digital signal processing solutions for audio devices targeting
the medical and consumer markets. As part of the acquisition, the Company also acquired all of the
common stock of Dspfactory’s wholly-owned subsidiary, dspfactory S.A., located in Neuchatel,
Switzerland. Excluding cash acquired of approximately $0.2 million, the Company paid approximately
$27.0 million in cash, including fees and expenses, and approximately 1.3 million shares of common stock,
with a value of approximately $16.6 million, based on a stock price of $12.61 per share. The purchase
price of approximately $43.6 million was allocated as follows (in millions):

Net tangible liabilities . .........o i $(0.1)
Intangible @SSELS ..o\ vttt e e e 28.5
GoOdWilL. . o e e e e e 15.2
Total . oo e $43.6

The value of the identifiable intangible assets was determined by management, which utilized, among
other factors, an independent appraisal by an independent financial consulting firm, LECG, LLC. Goodwill
related to the acquisition is allocated to the Integrated Mixed Signal Products segment. In connection with
the purchase, a charge of approximately $1.5 million for in-process research and development was recorded
in the fourth quarter of 2004. The remaining identifiable intangible assets are being amortized over lives
ranging from 2 to 10 years.

A provision for additional purchase price consideration of $8.5 million in common stock is payable in
whole or in part upon the achievement of certain revenue milestones in 2005 or 2006. Based on 2005
revenues, the additional purchase consideration has been earned in full, and will be payable in common
stock during the second quarter of 2006. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128,
approximately 0.8 million shares have been added to the computation of diluted shares outstanding at
December 31, 2005, as if these shares were issued on October 2, 2005, which was the beginning of the
Company’s fourth fiscal quarter. The effect for the full year was an addition of 0.2 million shares on a
weighted average basis. Such shares have been calculated using the formula set forth in the purchase
agreement assuming the shares are issuable as of December 31, 2005, Final shares to be issued will be
dependent upon the Company’s share price in the period before the shares are issued, in accordance with
the terms of the purchase agreement.

The results of operations related to Dspfactory have been included in the Company’s statement of
operations since the acquisition date.
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17. Operating Segments and Geographic Information

The Company designs, develops, manufactures and sells cusiom and semi-custom integrated circuits
of high complexity. The Company focuses on selling its integrated circuits primarily to original equipment
manufacturers in the automotive, medical and industrial markets through worldwide direct sales,
commissioned representatives and distributors.

In the third quarter of 2005, in conjunction with a reorganization, the Company determined that it
has two reportable segments: Integrated Mixed Signal Products and Structured Digital Products. Each
segment is composed of product families with similar technological requirements. The Company formerly
had three segments, but management has realigned the business, combining Mixed Signal Foundry
Services with Integrated Mixed Signal Products to ensure greater service to our integrated mixed signal
customers in the Company’s target markets of automotive, medical and industrial by having one
organization service those customers. Prior periods have been adjusted to reflect these new segments.

Integrated Mixed Signal Products: designs, manufactures and markets system-level integrated
mixed signal products using the Company’s proprietary wafer fabrication process technologies and the
expertise of the Company’s analog and mixed signal engineers. The Company also supplies mixed
signal foundry services that leverage current process technolcgies. The Company applies its mixed
signal expertise primarily for sensors, controls, high voltage outputs, applications utilizing digital signal
processing, wireless or radio frequency communication and low power.

Structured Digital Products: designs, manufactures and markets structured digital products,
which involve the conversion of higher cost field programmable gate arrays, or FPGAs, into lower cost
digital semiconductors, and medium complexity prime digital semiconductors, which are customized
solutions developed directly from customer specifications rather than from a pre-existing semi-
standard integrated circuits. Opportunities are focused on the mid-range of production volumes, where
the Company believes it can create the most value for its customers.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. Management evaluates performance based on income or loss from operations before
restructuring charges, interest, nonrecurring gains and losses and income taxes.

The Company’s wafer manufacturing facilities fabricate integrated circuits for all business units as
necessary and their operating costs are reflected in the segments’ cost of revenues on the basis of product
costs. Because operating segments are defined by the products they design and sell, they do not make sales
to each other. Management does not report assets, or track expenditures on long-lived assets by operating
segments.
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Information about segments (in miilions):

Integrated Structured
Mixed Signal Digital
Products Products Total
Year ended December 31, 2005:
Net revenue from external customers ................... $393.2 $110.4 $503.6
Segment operating income . .......... i 44.8 27.6 72.4
Year ended December 31, 2004:
Net revenue from external customers ................... $397.7 $119.6 $517.3
Segment operating income ........... ..., 71.7 22.9 94.6
Year ended December 31, 2003:
Net revenue from external customers ................... $357.4 $ 96.7 $454.1
Segment operating income . ........ .ol 47.8 15.5 63.3
Reconciliation of segment information to financial statements as of December 31 (in millions):
2005 2004 2003
Total operating income for reportable segments .................... $724 $946 § 633
Restructuring and impairment charges. .................. ... ... (5.3) (79 (@271
Nonrecurring charges .. ... e — — (11.4)
Operating ICOME . ..« vttt ettt $67.1 $86.7 $ 302

There are intercompany sales and transfers recorded between geographical subsidiaries. Major
operations outside the United States include fabrication facilities, sales offices and technology centers in
Canada, Europe and Asia-Pacific, as well as subcontract assembly and test operations in the Asia-Pacific
region. Foreign operations are subject to risks of economic and political instability and foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations.

Transfers between geographic areas are accounted for at amounts that are generally above cost and
consistent with the rules and regulations of governing tax authorities. Such transfers are eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements. Although assets are tracked by geographical locations, they are not
segregated by reportable segment nor reported separately for internal decision-making purposes.

Geographic information about revenue based on shipments to customers by region is as follows for the
years ended December 31 (in millions):

2005 2004 2003
Geographic information:
Revenue(1):
United States. ..o v vt $192.6 $186.1 $174.2
Other North America........... ..o i, 21.4 31.8 11.6
Europe ... 190.3 2139 184.6
Asia-Pacific .......... .. e 99.3 85.5 83.7
Subtotal Non-United States ...............ccooieiiinin... 311.0 331.2 279.9

Total . .o $503.6 $517.3  $454.1
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Geographic information about property, plant and equipment associated with particular regions is as
follows as of December 31 (in millions):

2005 2004
Property, plant and equipment, net:
United StaleS . .ttt e e e $1429 $152.6
BUIOpE . o oo e 40.4 26.0
Allother ... 205 206
Subtotal Non-United States . ...ttt _ 609 466
Total L §_£__3__8 $199.2

(1) Revenue is attributed to geographic regions based on the shipments to customers located in those
regions.

U.S. export sales were approximately $84.6 million, $92.9 million, and $93.0 miltion for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Levels of export sales varied by country in all
periods. In 2005, Thailand, Malaysia, China and Canada accounted for approximately 26%, 16%, 11% and
11%, respectively, of total export sales. In 2004, Singapore, Mexico, Canada and Malaysia accounted for
approximately 19%, 18%, 14% and 12%, respectively, of 2004 export sales. Thailand accounted for 16% of
total export sales during 2003.

18. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
Year
2005 2004
Qi(1)  Q2(2) Q3(3) Q44 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4(5)

(In millions, except loss per share)

Revenue ....................... $1159 §$122.5 $125.6 $139.6 $128.3 §$134.5 $131.2 $123.3
Grossprofit..........coovvinn.. $ 538 $602 $61.6 5616 $590 3632 $ 636 § 605
Net income (loss) ............... $(IL) $ 113 $ 117 % 87 $135 $154 $162 § 73
Basic net income (loss) per

common share ................ $(0.13) $0.13 $0.14 $010 $016 $019 $020 $ 0.09
Diluted net income (loss) per

common share ................ $(0.13) $0.13 $013 $010 $016 $0.18 $0.19 $ 0.08

Weighted average number of
common shares used to compute
basic net income (loss) per

common share ................ 85.2 85.6 85.9 86.2 82.1 82.5 82.9 83.9

Weighted average number of
common shares used to compute
diluted net income (loss) per
common share ................ 85.2 81.9 88.1 88.8 86.3 86.3 86.4 87.3

(1) In the first quarter of 2005, the Company recorded nonrecurring charges of approximately
$34.8 million related to redemption of the Company’s senior subordinated notes.

(2) In the second quarter of 2003, the Company recorded restruciuring charges of approximately
$1.0 million related primarily to the relocation of its sort operations to the Philippines.
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(3) The results of the Flextronics acquisition have been included in the Company’s operations since the

4)

(5)

September 9, 2005 acquisition date. The Company also recorded $0.8 million related to the write-off
of in-process research and development in association with the Flextronics acquisition in the third

quarter of 2005.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $3.8 million primarily
related to the termination of certain employees related to its fab consolidation plan.

In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company recorded restructuring charges of approximately

$7.9 million primarily related to the termination of certain employees. The results of the Dspfactory
acquisition have been included in the Company’s operations since the November 12, 2004 acquisition
date. The Company also recorded $1.5 million related to the write-off of in-process research and
development in association with the acquisition of Dspfactory, Ltd.




ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Controls and Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2005. A material weakness in internal control over
financial reporting related to recognition of revenue in the proper period was identified in our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 1, 2005. This material weakness was not remediated
and therefore remained a material weakness in the fourth quarter of 2005. Therefore, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) were not
effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their
objectives. However, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all error and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the
fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their
costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected.

There were no other changes in our internal control over financial reporting, other than described
below, during the quarter ended December 31, 2005 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting is included on page 42 of this
annual report on Form 10-K.

Background and Remediation Actions

As reported in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 1, 2005, we
determined a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting existed relating to our ability to
recognize revenue in the proper period. We use a freight forwarder as our agent in the United States for
shipments arriving from our overseas facilities to be distributed to our customers in the United States. In
the quarter ended October 1, 2005, a number of shipments from our overseas facilities were delivered to
our freight forwarder at the very end of the fiscal quarter. We arranged for the shipments to be picked up
from the freight forwarder before the fiscal quarter-end. The terms and conditions governing the shipments
in question required delivery to the customers’ carriers in order for delivery to be completed. It was
discovered that the products had not been effectively delivered to the customers’ carriers by the end of the
fiscal quarter. As a result, we determined that the revenue associated with these shipments needed to be
reversed and recognized in the subsequent quarter. Had this material weakness in our internal control over
financial reporting not been identified prior to the reporting date of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the third quarter of 2005, our revenue and net income would have been overstated by $2.4 million and
$1.0 million, respectively. This revenue was properly recognized in the fourth quarter of 2005. Our
previously filed financial statements for the first and second fiscal quarters of 2005 were also affected by
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this material weakness in internal control over financial reporting, however the effect was immaterial for
those periods. The prior fiscal year results were not affected by this issue.

Corrective actions were put in place in the fourth quarter of 2005, including:

« Updating our terms and conditions of sale, except where stated by contract, to ExWorks for
delivery and specified that title and risk of loss passed to the buyer when the goods were made
available for pickup by the buyer, or the buyer’s carrier for pickup at the location specified by the
seller.

+ Sending notification to our customers of the changé in our terms and conditions of sale.

« Providing training on Incoterms (worldwide standard delivery terms) for certain customer service,
logistics and finance personnel.

» Implementing stricter quarter-end cut-off procedures and more detailed revenue recognition process
documentation.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, pursuant to these terms and conditions, we recognized revenue on
shipments that were made available to the buyer but not picked up by the buyer or the buyer’s carrier at
our specified location. We subsequently determined that despite updating our terms and conditions of sale
for ExWorks shipments, our controls and procedures were not sufficient to ensure that revenue was being
recognize in the proper period under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. We determined that
product had to be picked up from our specified location by the buyer’s carrier at a minimum, except where
the buyer has affirmatively agreed to our terms and conditions of sale, in order for revenue to be
recognized. As a result, we determined that revenue recognized for shipments not picked up by the buyer’s
carrier and where the customer did not affirmatively acknowledge our new terms and conditions, needed to
be reversed. Had this material weakness in internal control over financial reporting not been identified prior
to the reporting date of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, fourth quarter and full year 2005 revenues and
. net income would have been overstated by $1.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively. This revenue will be
recognized in the first quarter of 2006.

We intend to remediate this material weakness in the first quarter of 2006 by changing our revenue
recognition procedures so that at a minimum, shipments must be picked up by the buyer’s carrier in order
for revenue to be recognized, even under ExWorks terms. We believe our existing internal control over
financial reporting and revenue recognition procedures are effective to enable us to recognize revenue
‘properly under terms and conditions other than ExWorks.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART I

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this item with respect to directors and executive officers is incorporated
by reference to our proxy statement for the 2006 annual meeting of stockholders, which we expect to file
on or before April 21, 2006.

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics applicable to our directors, officers (including
our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and corporate controller) and employees, known as
the Code of Ethics. The Code of Ethics is available on our website at www.amis.com/investor —
relations/ corporate — governance.html. In the event that we amend or waive certain provisions of the
Code of Ethics applicable to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer or controller, or our
other executive officers or directors, we intend to disclose the same on our website.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our 2006 proxy statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is inéorporated by reference to our 2006 proxy statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our 2006 proxy statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our 2006 proxy statement.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are ﬁlcd as part of this report:
(1) Financial Statements. See the “Index to Financial Statements” in Item 8.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules. All financial statement schedules for which provision is
made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not
required under the related instructions, are inapplicable, or the required information has been provided
in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits. See Exhibit Index.

85



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

AMIS HOLDINGS, INC.

By:‘ /s/ David A. Henry

David A. Henry
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 15, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated have signed this report below.

Signature Title Date
/s/ CHRISTINE KING President, Chief Executive Officer and  March 15, 2006
Christine King Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ DAVID A. HENRY Chief Financial Officer (Principal March 15, 2006
David A. Henry Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ DIPANJAN DEB Director March 15, 2006

Dipanjan Deb

/s/ COLIN SLADE Director March 15, 2006
Colin Slade

/s/  WILLIAM N. STARLING, JR. Director March 15, 2006
William N, Starling, Jr.

/s/ GREGORY L. WILLIAMS Director March 15, 2006
Gregory L. Williams

/s/ PAUL C. SCHORR IV Director March 15, 2006
Paul C. Schorr IV
/s/ S. ATIQ RAZA Director March 15, 2006
S. Atig Raza
/s/ DAVID STANTON Director March 15, 2006

David Stanton

/s/ JAMES A. URRY Director March 15, 2006
James A. Urry
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No.
3.1
3.2
4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6
*10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

*10.15
10.16
*10.17

10.18

*10.19
10.20
10.21

Exhibit Index

Document

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of AMIS Holdings, Inc., és amended
Amended and Restated By-Laws of AMIS Holdings, Inc.(4)

Indenture dated as of January 29, 2003 among AMI Semiconductor, Inc., AMIS Holdings, Inc.,
AMI Acquisition LLC, AMI Acquisition I LLC and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, N.A.(1)

Form of Certificate of Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of AMIS Holdings, Inc.(2)

Credit Agreement dated as of December 21, 2000 among the Company, AMIS Holdings, Inc.
(formerly named AMI Holdings, Inc.), the lenders party thereto and Credit Suisse First Boston
Corporation, as Collateral Agent and Administrative Agent (the “Credit Agreement”) (3)

Global Assignment and Acceptance and Amendment dated as of February 20, 2001 relating to the
Credit Agreement(3)

Amendment No. 2, Waiver and Agreement dated as of February 6, 2002, relating to the Credit
Agreement(3)

Amendment No. 3, Consent, Wavier and Agreement dated as of May 2, 2002, relating to the Credit
Agreement(3)

Amendment No. 4, Waiver and Agreement dated as of September 6, 2002, relating to the Credit
Agreement(3)

Summary of Director Compensation

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of August 15, 2001 by and between AMIS
Holdings, Inc. and Christine King(13)

First Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement among AMIS Holdings, Inc. and the holders
named therein(4)

Supply Agreement between STMicroelectronics, NV and AMI Semiconductor Belgium BVBA
dated June 26, 2002(8)

Form of warrant held by Merchant Capital, Inc. to purchase shares of common stock of AMIS
Holdings, Inc.(8)

Form of warrant held by Nippon Mining Holdings, Inc. (formerly Japan Energy Electronic
Materials, Inc.) to purchase shares of common stock of AMIS Holdings, Inc.(8)

Agreement dated May 8, 2002 between AMI Semiconductor Belgium BVBA, AMI Semiconductor,
Inc. and STMicroelectronics NV for the acquisition of the business of the Mixed Signal Division of
Alcatel Microelectronics(8)

Advisory Agreement dated December 21, 2000 by and between AMI Holdings, Inc., AMI Spinco
Inc. and Francisco Partners GP, LLC(8)

Advisory Agreement dated December 21, 2000 by and between AMI Holdings, Inc., AMI Spinco,
Inc. and TBW LLC(8)

Amended and Restated AMIS Holdings, Inc. 2000 Equity Incentive Plan(12)
Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and executive officers of AMIS Holdings, Inc.(13)

Appendix to the Minutes of the General Shareholders’ Meeting regarding the Appointment of
Mr. Walter Mattheus in the Office of Compensated Director of AMI Semiconductor Belgium BVBA
dated June 26, 2002(8)

Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated June 26, 2002 between STMicroelectronics NV and
AMI Semiconductor, Inc.; Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated June 26, 2002 between
Alcatel Microelectronics NV and AMI Semiconductor, Inc.(14)

Amended and Restated AMIS Holdings, Inc. 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan(5)
Amendment No. 1 to the Advisory Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.13(13)
Amendment No. 1 to the Advisory Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.14(13)
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Exhibit
No. Document

10.22 Asset Purchase Agreement dated September 9, 2004 among AMI Semiconductor, Inc., Emma
Mixed Signal C.V., AMI Semiconductor Canada Company, AMIS Holdings, Inc., Dspfactory Ltd.
and the other parties named therein(5)

10.23  Share Purchase Agreement dated September 9, 2004 among AMI Semiconductor Netherlands B.V.,
AMIS Holdings, Inc., Dspfactory Ltd. and the other parties named therein(5)

¥10.24 Key Manager Incentive Plan for 2006
*10.25 Form of 2000 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement (Nonstatutory Stock Option) (6)
*10.26 Key Manager Incentive Plan for 2004, as amended(16)
*10.27 Key Manager Incentive Plan for 2005(7)
10.28 Amendment No. 1 to the First Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement(15)
10.29 Contract of Lease, as amended(15)
10.30 Memorandum of Agreement, as amended(15)
¥10.31 Terms of Compensation Arrangement with Jon Stoner
*10.32 Employment Agreement dated as of July 26, 2005 by and between AMIS Holdings, Inc. and
Christine King(9)
*10.33 Terms of Compensation Arrangement with Charlie Lesko
*10.34 Terms of Compensation Arrangement with David Henry

10.35 Credit Agreement dated as of April 11, 2004, among AMIS Holdings, Inc., AMI Semiconductor,
Inc., the lenders party thereto and Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation as Collateral Agent and
Administrative Agent(10)

10.36 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of September 9, 2005, between AMI Semiconductor, Inc.
Emma Mixed Signal C.V., AMI Semiconductor [srael Ltd., AMIS Holdings, Inc. and Flextronics
Semiconductor, Inc., Flextronics International USA, Inc., Flextronics Semiconductor Ltd. (UK),
Flextronics Semiconductor Ltd., Peripheral Imaging Corporation, KMOS Semiconductor, Inc., and
Flextronics Semiconductor Design, Inc.(11)

10.37 Amendment No. 1 Consent, Waiver and Agreement dated August 19, 2005, to the Credit Agreement
dated as of April 1, 2005(11)

10.38 Agreement in Principle

21.1  Direct and Indirect Subsidiaries of AMIS Holdings, Inc.

23.1  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
31.1  Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2  Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32.1  Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

322  Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

* This Exhibit constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our registration statement on Form S-4
(No. 333-103070) filed on February 10, 2003.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our registration statement on Form S-1
g
(NO. 333-108028) filed on August 15, 2003.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our registration statement on Form S-4/A
(No. 333-103070) filed on May 13, 2003.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 25, 2004,
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(6)

)

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our current report on Form 8-K dated October 1, 2004,
filed on February 7, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit to our current report on Form 8-K dated February 16, 2005
filed on February 22, 2005.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the registration statement on Form S-4/A

)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(No. 333-103070) of AMI Semiconductor, Inc. filed on June 2, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our current report on Form 8-K dated July 26, 2005,
filed on August 1, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
April 2, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
October 1, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 27, 2003).

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our registration statement on Form S-1/A
(No. 333-108028) filed on September 18, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the registration statement on Form S-4/A
(No. 333-103070) of AMI Semiconductor, Inc. filed on June 13, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005.
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Reconciliations From GAAP Financial Measures to Non-GAAP Financial Measures
In Millions

GAAP Net Income and Earnings Per Share to Non-GAAP Net Income and Earnings Per Share

2005

GAAP Net Income Available to Common Stockholders ................... .. ...... $20.6
Fully Diluted Share Count . ... i i e 88.2
$0.23

GAAP Fully Diluted EPS .. .. . e e
Non-GAAP Adjustments:

Amortization of Acquisition-Related Intangible Assets ........................... 9.0
In-Process Research and Development ............ . ... ... i ... 0.8
Restructuring EXpenses ... ......oooiiii i 53
Write-off of Deferred Financing and Other Costs. ..................oiiin... 6.8
Costs Associated with the Tender Offer of 10%:% Notes. ... ..o, 28.0
Tax Effects ... (17.6)
Non-GAAP Net Income Available to Common Stockholders ....................... $52.9
Fully Diluted Share Count ....... D _88.2
Non-GAAP Fully Diluted EPS ... ... . e $0.60

GAAP Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities to Non-GAAP Operating Cash Flow and
Last Twelve Months (LTM) Free Cash Flow

2002 — 2003 1002 2Q02  3Q02  4Q02  1Q03 2003 3Q03  4Q03

GAAP Net Cash Provided By
(Used In) Operating Activities .. $208 $ 6.5 $39.6 $142 § 251 3188 §$ 2.7 § 241

Costs Associated with the Tender of
103/4% Notes ................ — — — — — — — _

Non-GAAP Operating Cash Flow .. $20.8 $ 6.5 $396 $142 §$ 251 $188 $27 § 241

GAAP Capital Expenditures. ... ... $61 $10 $97 $55 8§ 19 §$80 §$102 § 6.5
Free Cash Flow ................. $147 $55 $299 $87 $232 S$108 $(7.5) $ 176
LTM Free Cash Flow ............ $ 673 8726 $352 § 441
2004 — 2005 1004 2004 3Q04  4Q04  1Q05  2Q05  3Q05  4Q0S

GAAP Net Cash Provided By
(Used In) Operating Activities .. $ 8.8 $§19.0 $38.0 $304 $(i6.5) $ 82 $25.8 § 42.0

Costs Associated with the Tender of

10%% Notes ............oo... — — — — 28.0 — — —
Non-GAAP Operating Cash Flow .. $ 88 $19.0 $38.0 $304 §$ 115 §$82 $258 § 420
GAAP Capital Expenditures. . ..... $97 $65 849 8113 § 37 §$104 §$63 § 141
Free Cash Flow ................. $(0.9) $12.5 $33.1 §19.1 i_LS_ $(2.2) §19.5 § 279
LTM Free Cash Flow ............ $20.0 $21.7 $623 $63.8 § 725 $57.8 $442 § 53.0
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Christine King, President,
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Dipanjan Deb, Birector®?
Managing Partner
Francisco Partners

Atiq Raza, Director'?
Chief Executive Officer
Raza Microelectronics, Inc.

Paul C. Schorr IV, Director®
Senior Managing Director
The Blackstone Group

Colin Slade, Director!
Chief Financial Officer
Tektronix, Inc.

David Stanton, Director
Managing Partner
Francisco Partners

1-Audit Committee Member; 2-Compensation Committee Member; 3-Nominating and Carporate Governance Committee Member

Executive Officers

Christine King
President and Chief Executive Officer

Walter Mattheus
Chief Operating Officer

Corporate Headquarters
AMIS Holdings, Inc.

2300 Buckskin Road
Pocatello, Idaho 83201
Tel: 208.233.46%90

Stock Exchange Listing
Stock Symbol: AMIS

Traded on NASDAQ National
Market System

Investor Relations and Inquiries

Communications regarding investor
records, including duplicate mailings,
changesofaddressorownership, transfer
of shares and lost certificates, should be

Forward Looking Statement

David A. Henry
Chief Financial Officer

Jon Stoner
Chief Technology Officer & Senior Vice
President Image Sensor Product Line

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
Wednesday, May 17, 2006

The Grand America Hotel

555 South Main Street

Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

Stock Transfer Agent

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

161 North Concord Exchange

South St. Paul, Minnesota 55075-1139
Tel: 800.689.8788

directed to the Company's stock transfer
agentidentified above. All other inquiries
should be directed to the Company's
Investor Relations department:

William N. Starling, Director'?
Chief Executive Officer
Synecor, LLC

James A. Urry, Director?
Partner
Citigroup Venture Capital Equity Partners

Charlie Lesko
Senior Vice President,
Sales and Marketing

Corporate Counsel

Darlene E. Gerry, Senior Vice President
General Counsel & Secretary

AMIS Holdings, Inc.

2300 Buckskin Road

Pocatello, ID 83201

Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Ernst & Young LLP

60 East South Temple, Suite 800
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

Wade Olsen
Treasurer

2300 Buckskin Road
Pocatello, Idaho 83201
Tel: 208.234.6045

Fax: 208.234.6718
investor@amis.com

Statements in this Annual Report other than statements of historical fact are “forward-locking" statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
These forward-looking statements include statements regarding our expectations, beliefs, outiook, or predictions for future financial results, product introductions, technological
advances, benefits from operational actions, growth opportunities within our target markets, and success in the markeat. [n some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by
terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “target,” “anticipates,” "believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continues” or the negative of these terms or
other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions and speak only as of the date of this report. These forward-looking statements are based largely on our current
expectations and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from these forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute
to such differences include the availability of required capacity at our key subcontractors, manufacturing underutilization, changes in the conditions affecting our target markets,
fluctuations in customer demand, timing and success of new products, competitive conditions in the semiconductor industry, failure to successfully integrate the recently-acquired
Flextronics business, loss of key personnel, general economic and political uncertainty, conditions in the semiconductor industry, and other risks and uncertainties indicated from time to
time in our filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, including our most recent Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and Annual Report on Form 10-K. In light of these risks
and uncertainties, there can be no assurance that the matters referred to in the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report will in fact occur. We do not intend to publicly
release any revisions to these forward-looking statements ta reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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